
 
                                   Date: 05th September, 2025 

To, 

The Secretary, 

Department of Corporate Services, 

BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 

Mumbai 400001, MH.  

 

BSE Code: 538610 

 

Sub: Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 including Notice of Annual 

General Meeting  

 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

 

We wish to inform you that 35th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be 

held on Monday, 29th September, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. (IST) at the Registered Office situated 

at Plot No. 5015, Phase-4, Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva, Ahmedabad 382445. Pursuant 

to Regulation 30 read with Para A, Part A of Schedule III of the Securities Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find 

enclosed herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 

including the Notice convening the 35th Annual General Meeting of UNISON METALS 

LIMITED, which is being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail 

addresses are registered with the Company/ Registrar & Share Transfer Agent / Depository 

Participant(s). 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 36 of Listing Regulations, we enclose herewith Annual Report for 

the Financial Year 2024-25 along with the notice of the 35th AGM. The said report is being 

sent to the shareholders through email and have been uploaded on the “investor relations” 

section of the website of the Company at www.unisongroup.net. 

 

This is for your information and records. 

 

Thanking you, 

Yours truly, 

For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Mitaliben R. Patel 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

 

Encl.: 

35th Annual Report 

 

 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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NOTICE 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 35th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Unison 

Metals Limited will be held on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. at the Registered Office 

situated at Plot No. 5015, Phase-4, Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva, Ahmedabad 382445, to transact 

the following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements 

of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 comprising of the Balance 

Sheet as at March 31, 2025, Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement as 

on March 31, 2025 and the Explanatory Notes annexed to, and forming part of, any of the 

above documents together with the Report of the Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta [DIN: 02176397] who retires by 

rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. TO RATIFY THE REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE COST AUDITOR 

APPOINTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2025-26 PURSUANT TO SECTION 148 AND ALL OTHER 

APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 

as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rule 14 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee and the Board of Directors, the remuneration of Rs. 60,000/- (Rupees Sixty 

Thousand Only) including GST to M/s. K V Melwani & Associates, Cost Accountants, 

Ahmedabad, for conducting cost audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-25, as 

approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby ratified. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta (DIN: 02176397) Director or Mr. 

Maheshbhai Vishandas Changrani (DIN: 00153615), Whole Time Director or Mitaliben Ritesh 

Patel, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby empowered and authorized singly 

or jointly to take such steps, in relation to the above and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 

things as may be necessary for giving effect to this resolution.” 
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4. SUB-DIVISION OF EQUITY SHARES: 

  

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 

as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 61(1)(d) and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any 

statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), read with the 

applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, as amended, and other applicable laws, rules and regulations for the time being in force, 

if any, prescribed by any relevant authorities from time to time, to the extent applicable, and 

subject to the relevant provisions of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company 

and subject to the approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions, if any, required from any 

competent authority, and as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, approval of 

the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to sub-divide each of the 3,42,50,000 

(Three Crores Forty Two Lakh Fifty Thousand) fully paid-up equity shares of the Company 

having a face value of  Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each into 34,25,00,000 (Thirty Four Crores 

Twenty Five Lakh) equity shares having a face value of  Re. 1/- (Rupee One Only) each, fully 

paid-up, ranking pari passu with each other in all respect with effect from such date as may be 

fixed for this purpose (“Record Date”) by the Board of Directors of the Company.  

  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, pursuant to the sub-division of the authorised share capital 

of the Company, the existing issued, paid-up and subscribed share capital of the Company as 

on the record date shall automatically, and with any further corporate action, if required on the 

part of the Company, its Shareholders, or any other party, be sub-divided to Rs. 29,62,22,870/- 

(Rupees Twenty Nine Crores Sixty Two Lakhs Twenty Two Thousand Eight Hundred and 

Seventy Only) consisting of 29,62,22,870/- (Twenty Nine Crores Sixty Two Lakhs Twenty 

Two Thousand Eight Hundred and Seventy) Equity Shares of face value of Re. 1/- (Rupee One 

Only) each.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon the sub-division becoming effective, the existing share 

certificates in respect of the equity shares of Rs. 10/- each shall, where applicable, be deemed 

to have been automatically cancelled and be of no effect on and from the Record Date (to be 

fixed), and the Company may issue new share certificates in lieu of the old certificates and/or 

credit the sub-divided shares to the respective demat accounts of the shareholders. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where the equity shares held in dematerialized form, the 

sub-divided equity shares shall be credited proportionately into the respective beneficiary 

demat account(s) of the Members held with their Depository Participant(s), in lieu of the 

existing credits present in their respective beneficiary demat account(s). 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mrs. Rashi Tirth Mehta (DIN: 10697866), Mr. Tirth Uttam 

Mehta (DIN: 02176397), Director, Mr. Maheshbhai Vishandas Changrani (DIN: 00153615), 

Whole-time Director and Ms. Mitaliben Ritesh Patel, Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer of the Company be and are hereby authorized singly or jointly to take all the steps for  
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giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, including making of necessary applications and / or 

filing necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at Ahmedabad or to any other 

statutory authority necessary for obtaining such approvals in relation to the above and to 

execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required in this connection 

and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required to be done to give effect to 

the above resolution and which it may deem fit in the interest of the Company.” 

 

5. TO APPROVE THE ALTERATION OF THE CAPITAL CLAUSE OF THE 

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 

as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 13, 61 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant Rules made thereunder (including 

any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof, for the time being in force), and subject 

to receipt of such other approvals, consents and permissions as may be required from concerned 

statutory authorities and subject to such other conditions and modifications as may be 

prescribed or imposed while granting such approvals, approval of the Members of the 

Company be and is hereby accorded to alter the existing Clause V of the Memorandum of 

Association of the Company by substituting it with the following new Clause V: 

 

“V. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 35,00,00,000/‐ (Rupees Thirty Five 

Crores Only) consisting of 34,25,00,000 (Thirty Four Crores Twenty Five Lakh) Equity 

Shares of Re. 1/- (Rupee One Only) each and 7,50,000 (Seven Lakh Fifty Thousand) 

Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/‐ (Rupee Ten Only) each.” 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mrs. Rashi Tirth Mehta (DIN: 10697866), Mr. Tirth Uttam 

Mehta (DIN: 02176397), Director, Mr. Maheshbhai Vishandas Changrani (DIN: 00153615), 

Whole-time Director and Ms. Mitaliben Ritesh Patel, Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer of the Company be and are hereby authorized singly or jointly to take all the steps for 

giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, including making of necessary applications and / or 

filing necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at Ahmedabad or to any other 

statutory authority necessary for obtaining such approvals in relation to the above and to 

execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required in this connection 

and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required to be done to give effect to 

the above resolution and which it may deem fit in the interest of the Company.” 

 

6. TO CONSIDER THE APPOINTMENT OF M/S G R SHAH & ASSOCIATES, 

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY (FCS: 12870/COP No.: 14446) AS THE 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 

as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 
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“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and all other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in 

force) and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. G R Shah & 

Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS No.: 12870 / COP No.: 14446), be and is 

hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a consecutive period of five (5) 

years i.e. from FY 2025-26 upto FY 2029-30, to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company and 

to furnish the Secretarial Audit Report at an Annual Audit fee of Rs. 80,000/- exclusive of 

applicable taxes.. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mrs. Rashi Tirth Mehta (DIN: 10697866), Mr. Tirth Uttam 

Mehta (DIN: 02176397), Director, Mr. Maheshbhai Vishandas Changrani (DIN: 00153615), 

Whole-time Director and Ms. Mitaliben Ritesh Patel, Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer of the Company be and are hereby authorized singly or jointly to take all the steps for 

giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, including making of necessary applications and / or 

filing necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat or to any other statutory 

authority necessary for obtaining such approvals in relation to the above and to execute all such 

documents, instruments and writings as may be required in this connection and do all such acts, 

deeds, matters and things as may be required to be done to give effect to the above resolution 

and which it may deem fit in the interest of the Company.” 

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD     By Order of the Board                    

DATE: 04.09.2025     For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

 

       Sd/- 

___________________________ 

Registered Office: Plot No 5015, Phase 4,  MITALIBEN RITESH PATEL 

Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva,    Company Secretary 

Ahmedabad 382445      Mem No.: A37334   

Tel: (079)-25841512 

Website: www.unisongroup.net  

CIN: L52100GJ1990PLC013964 

 

  

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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NOTES: 
 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the 35th Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint 

one or more proxies to attend and vote instead of him/herself and such proxy need not be a 

member of the company.  The instrument appointing proxy should however, be deposited at 

the registered office of the company not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

meeting. 

 

2. Person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate 

not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A 

member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting 

rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy or any 

other person or shareholder. 

 

3. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) 

relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) is 

annexed hereto. The Board of Directors have considered and decided to include the Item No. 

3 to 6 given above as Special Business in the forthcoming AGM. 

 

4. Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 35th AGM are provided as 

annexure to the AGM notice. The Company has received the requisite consents/declarations 

for the appointment/ re-appointment under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 

thereunder. 

 

5. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the 

members at the registered office of the company on all working days, except Sundays, between 

11.00 a.m. and 05.00 p.m. up to the date of meeting. 

 

6. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 

for a period of Ten (10) days from Saturday, 20th September, 2025 to Monday, 29th September, 

2025 (both days inclusive). 

 

7. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, 24th September, 2025. 

 

8. Members are requested to contact Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) namely  MUFG Intime 

India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private Limited), 506-508, 

Amarnath Business Centre-1, Nr. XT Xavier’s College Road, Off C.G. Road, Ellisbridge,  

Ahmedabad 380006, India, Tel No.: 079-26465179,  for  recording  any  change  of  address,  

bank  mandate,  ECS  or nominations, and for redressal of complaints contact the Compliance 

Officer at the Registered Office of the Company. 
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9. The equity shares of the company are available for dematerialization, as the company has 

entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central 

Depository Services Limited (CDSL). Those shareholders who wish to hold the company’s 

share in electronic form may approach their depository participants. 

 

10. Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, extends the nomination facility to individual 

shareholders of the Company. Therefore, the shareholders holding share certificates in physical 

form and willing to avail this facility may make nomination in Form SH-13, which may be sent 

on request. However, in case of demat holdings, the shareholders should approach to their 

respective depository participants for making nominations. 

 

11. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their client ID and DP 

ID numbers for easy identification of attendance at the meeting. 

 

12. Shareholders seeking any information with regard to account are requested to write to the 

Company early so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready. 

 

13. Members/Proxies are requested to bring with the attendance slip duly filled in and hand it over 

at the entrance. 

 

14. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the AGM are 

requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution to the Company, authorizing them 

to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM. 

 

15. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the AGM is annexed and forms part 

of the Notice. 

 

16. DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE: 

 

 In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, Notice of the 

AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent through electronic mode to 

those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories. 

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register 

their e-mail address so that they can receive the Annual Report and other 

communication from the Company electronically. Members holding shares in demat 

form are requested to register their e-mail address with their Depository Participant(s) 

only. Members of the Company, who have registered their e-mail address, are entitled 

to receive such communication in physical form upon request. 

 

 In terms of the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM and the 

Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 including therein the Audited Financial 

Statements for the Financial Year 2024-25 has been uploaded on the website of the 

Company at www.unisongroup.net and may also be accessed from the relevant section 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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of the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The 

AGM Notice is also available on the website of MUFG Intime India Private Limited 

(Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private Limited) at 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in. 

 

 Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered/ updated their 

email address with the Company are requested to register/ update the same by writing 

to the Company with details of folio number and attaching a self-attested copy of PAN 

card at www.unisongroup.net or Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, MUFG 

Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private Limited) 

at www.in.mpms.mufg.com. The Members will be entitled to receive physical copy of 

the Annual Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, free of cost, upon 

sending a request to the Registrar and Transfer Agent or the Company Secretary of the 

Company. 

 

17. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS (EVSN: 250456): 

 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Secretarial Standard on 

General meeting (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) 

and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (as amended) read with MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the 

Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business 

to be transacted at the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 

agreement with MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India 

Private Limited) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-

Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well 

as the e-voting system on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by MUFG. The 

instructions for participation by Members are given in the subsequent notes. 

 

18. The Company has appointed Mr. Gaurang R Shah (CPN. 14446), Practicing Company 

Secretary, to act as the scrutinizer for conducting the voting process in a fair and transparent 

manner. 

 

19. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, count the votes 

cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence 

of at least 2 witnesses not in employment of the Company. The Scrutinizer shall submit a 

consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour of or against, if any, within 

2 working days after the conclusion of the AGM to the Chairman of the Company. The 

Chairman, or any other person authorised by the Chairman, shall declare the result of the voting 

forthwith. 

 

 

http://www.bseindia.com/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
http://www.in.mpms.mufg.com/
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20. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of 

the Company at www.unisongroup.net and on the website of MUFG Intime India Private 

Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private Limited) at 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in immediately after the declaration of Results by the Chairman 

or a person authorized by him. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE 

Limited, where the equity shares of the Company are listed. 

 

21. This Notice is being sent to all the Members whose names appear as on 29th August, 2025, in 

the Register of Members or in the Register of beneficial owners as received from MUFG Intime 

India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private Limited), the Registrar 

and Transfer Agent (“RTA”) of the Company. 

 

22. A person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of beneficial 

owners maintained by the depositories as on 24th September, 2025, (“Cut-Off date”) only shall 

be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting and to attend Annual General Meeting dated 

29/09/2025 at registered office. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their 

share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as of the Cut-Off date. 

 

23. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder 

in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 

 

24. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend 

the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 

25. As per Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, transfer of securities of the 

Company shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialised form with 

a depository. Further, transmission or transposition of Securities of the Company held in 

physical or dematerialised form shall be effected only in dematerialised form. In view of this 

and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 

members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings 

to dematerialised form. 

 

26. General instructions for voting through remote e-Voting: 

 

 The remote e-Voting period begins on 26th September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. IST and ends on 

28th September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. IST. The remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by 

MUFG for voting thereafter. 

 

 A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice of AGM for 

information purpose only. 

 

 The process and manner of remote e-Voting are as under: 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
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Instructions of Remote E-Voting for Shareholders are as under: 

 

 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.  

 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts 

to access remote e-Voting facility. 

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

 

1. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL: 

 

METHOD 1 - NSDL IDeAS facility  

Shareholders registered for IDeAS facility:  

 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under “IDeAS Login 

Section”. 

b) Click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under “IDeAS Login Section”. 

c) Post successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 

services section. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.  

d) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will 

be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

 

Shareholders not registered for IDeAS facility:  

 

a) To register, visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and select  “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” 

or click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

b) Enter 8-character DP ID, 8-digit Client ID, Mobile no, Verification code & click on “Submit”. 

c) Enter the last 4 digits of your bank account / generate ‘OTP’ 

d) Post successful registration, user 

will be provided with Login ID 

and password. Follow steps given 

above in points (a-d). 

  

METHOD 2 - NSDL e-voting website:  

  

a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/   

b) Click on the “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.  

c) Enter User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number held with NSDL), 

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.  

d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein 

you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-

Voting” under e-Voting services.  

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you 

will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

 

METHOD 3 - NSDL OTP based login 

 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp  

b) Enter your 8 - character DP ID, 8 - digit Client Id, PAN, Verification code and generate OTP.  

c) Enter the OTP received on your registered email ID/ mobile number and click on login.  

d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein 

you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-

Voting” under e-Voting services.  

e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you 

will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

 

Individual Shareholders registered with CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility 

 

METHOD 1 - CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

 

Shareholders registered for Easi/ Easiest facility:  

 

a) Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or 

www.cdslindia.com & click on New System Myeasi Tab. 

b) Enter existing username, Password & click on “Login”. 

c) Post successful authentication, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option will 

have links of e-voting service providers i.e., MUFG InTime. Click on “MUFG InTime” or 

“evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote 

website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 

Shareholders not registered for Easi/ Easiest facility:  

 

a) To register, visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration / 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration 

b) Proceed with updating the required fields for registration.  

c) Post successful registration, user will be provided username and password. Follow steps given 

above in points (a-c). 

 

METHOD 2 - CDSL e-voting page 

 

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com 

b) Go to e-voting tab.  

c) Enter 16-digit Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on “Submit”. 

d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded in 

Demat Account  

e) Post successful authentication, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option will 

have links of e-voting service providers i.e., MUFG InTime. Click on “MUFG InTime” or 

“evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote 

website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository Participant 

Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

depository participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-voting facility.  

 

a) Login to DP website 

b) After Successful login, user shall navigate through “e-voting” option.   

c) Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository website after 

successful authentication, wherein user can see e-voting feature. 

d) Post successful authentication, click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside 

Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the 

remote e-voting period.  

 

Login method for shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual 

Shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 

Shareholders holding shares in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register and vote on InstaVote as under: 

 

STEP 1: LOGIN / SIGNUP to InstaVote 

 

Shareholders registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in & click on “Login” under ‘SHARE 

HOLDER’ tab. 

b) Enter details as under: 

1. User ID: Enter User ID 

2. Password: Enter existing Password 

3. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) 

Code 

4. Click “Submit”.  

(Home page of e-voting will open. Follow the process given under "Steps to cast vote for 

Resolutions”) 

 

Shareholders not registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in & click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ 

tab & register with details as under:  

1. User ID: Enter User ID 

2. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders 

who have not updated their PAN with 

the Depository Participant (DP)/ 

Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.  

3. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with 

your DP/Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)  

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
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4. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with 

your DP/Company. 

o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above 

o Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall 

provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above 

5. Set the password of your choice.  

(The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character (!#$&*), 

at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).  

6. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code. 

7. Click “Submit” (You have now registered on InstaVote).  

Post successful registration, click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab & follow steps 

given above in points (a-b). 

 

STEP 2: Steps to cast vote for Resolutions through InstaVote 

 

A. Post successful authentication and redirection to InstaVote inbox page, you will be able to see the 

“Notification for e-voting”.  

B. Select ‘View’ icon. E-voting page will appear.  

C. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / 

Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file 

link).  

D. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’.  

E. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to 

change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.  

 

NOTE: Shareholders may click on “Vote as per Proxy Advisor’s Recommendation” option and view 

proxy advisor recommendations for each resolution before casting vote. “Vote as per Proxy Advisor’s 

Recommendation” option provides access to expert insights during the e-Voting process. Shareholders 

may modify their vote before final submission. 

 

Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it 

subsequently. 

 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders (“Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”) 

 

STEP 1 – Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Registration 

 

A. Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in    

B. Click on “Sign Up” under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”  

C. Fill up your entity details and submit the form.  

D. A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary contact person email 

ID (which is filled at the time of sign up). The said form is to be signed by the Authorised 

Signatory, Director, Company Secretary of the entity & stamped and sent to 

insta.vote@linkintime.co.in.   

E. Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) is sent to Primary contact 

person’s email ID. (You have now registered on InstaVote) 

 

STEP 2 – Investor Mapping  

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
mailto:insta.vote@linkintime.co.in
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A. Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials.  

B. Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu Section   

C. Map the Investor with the following details:  

 

1) ‘Investor ID’ – Investor ID for NSDL demat account is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 

Digit Client ID i.e., IN00000012345678; Investor ID for CDSL demat account is 16 Digit 

Beneficiary ID. 

2) ‘Investor’s Name - Enter Investor’s Name as updated with DP.  

3) ‘Investor PAN’ - Enter your 10-digit PAN.  

4) ‘Power of Attorney’ - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney.  

 

NOTE: File Name for the Board resolution/ Power of Attorney shall be – DP ID and Client 

ID or 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.  

 

Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also upload specimen signatures.  

D. Click on Submit button. (The investor is now mapped with the Custodian / Corporate Body/ 

Mutual Fund Entity). The same can be viewed under the “Report Section”.   

 

STEP 3 – Steps to cast vote for Resolutions through InstaVote 

 

The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-voting period.  

 

METHOD 1 - VOTES ENTRY  

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials.  

b) Click on “Votes Entry” tab under the Menu section.  

c) Enter the “Event No.” for which you want to cast vote.  

Event No. can be viewed on the home page of InstaVote under “On-going Events”.   

d) Enter “16-digit Demat Account No.”. 

e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / 

Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file 

link). After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’.  

f) A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to 

change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.  

(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it 

subsequently). 

 

METHOD 2 - VOTES UPLOAD 

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials. 

b) After successful login, you will see “Notification for e-voting”.    

c) Select “View” icon for “Company’s Name / Event number”.  

d) E-voting page will appear.  

e) Download sample vote file from “Download Sample Vote File” tab.  

f) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' in the sample vote file and 

upload the same under “Upload Vote File” option.  

g) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will be displayed.  

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
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(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it 

subsequently). 

 

Helpdesk: 

 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode: 

 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a 

request at enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000. 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for 

any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type  Helpdesk details  

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with NSDL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at: 022 - 

4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with CDSL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 

contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33  

 

Forgot Password: 

 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode: 

 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use 

the “Forgot Password” option available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

 Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

 Click “forgot password?”  

 Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).  

 Click on “SUBMIT”. 

 

In case Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password 

or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on: 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

 Click on ‘Login’ under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” tab  

 Click “forgot password?”  

 Enter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).  

 Click on “SUBMIT”. 

 

 

mailto:enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
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In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 

address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the 

particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI etc. The password should contain 

a minimum of 8 characters, at least one special character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 

alphabet and at least one capital letter.  

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the 

password:  

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or 

Password or both, then the Shareholders are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 

option available at above mentioned depository/ depository participants website. 

 

General Instructions - Shareholders 

 

 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 

to keep your password confidential.  

 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting 

on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on 

the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 

 

GREEN INITIATIVE - AN IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO MEMBERS 

 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a green initiative by permitting companies to send various 

documents like notices, annual reports including annual accounts etc. to its Members through 

electronic mode. Keeping in spirit with the said initiative, we request you to update your email ID with 

your respective DP’s in case of shares held in electronic form and with Registrar & Share Transfer 

Agent - M/s MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private 

Limited) in case of shares held in physical form. Email is a better method to receive the 

communications quickly, with least cost implications and have a longer shelf life.  The Company 

proposes to send all permitted communications electronically to the email id’s of Members unless 

specific request is received for a physical copy from Member. Please act and contribute to preserve the 

environment for our better future. 

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD     By Order of the Board                            

DATE: 04.09.2025               For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

       

Sd/- 

___________________________ 

MITALIBEN RITESH PATEL 

Company Secretary 

Mem No.: A37334 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 

ITEM NO. 3: TO RATIFY THE REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE COST AUDITOR 

APPOINTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25 PURSUANT TO SECTION 148 AND ALL OTHER 

APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved in its Board 

Meeting held on 30th May, 2025, the appointment of M/s K V Melwani & Associates, Cost 

Accountants, Ahmedabad at a remuneration of Rs. 60,000/- (Rupees Sixty Thousand Only) including 

GST to conduct the Cost Audit of the Company for the financial year 2025-26. 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of 

Companies (Audit & Auditor Rules), 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required 

to be ratified by the members of the Company.  

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution except to the extent of their 

shareholding in the Company. 

 

The Board recommends the said resolution to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

ITEM NO. 4 & 5: SUB-DIVISION OF EQUITY SHARES AND ALTERATION OF THE 

CAPITAL CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY: 

 

The current authorized capital of the Company is Rs. 35,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five Crore Only) 

comprising of Rs. 34,25,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Four Crore Twenty Five Lakhs Only) divided into 

3,42,50,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and Rs. 75,00,000/- 

(Rupees Seventy Five Lakhs Only) divided into 7,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of the face 

value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) at 

their meeting held on 22nd August, 2025 considered it desirable to sub–divide each of the 3,42,50,000 

(Three Crores Forty Two Lakh Fifty Thousand) fully paid-up equity shares of the Company having a 

face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each into 34,25,00,000 (Thirty Four Crores Twenty Five 

Lakh) equity shares having a face value of Re. 1/- (Rupee One Only) each, subject to approval of the 

members and such other authorities as may be necessary. 

  

The proposed Sub-division of the Authorized Share Capital of the Company requires consequential 

amendment in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company and therefore approval 

of the shareholders of the Company is required through Ordinary Resolution. 

 

None of the Directors or the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives 

are concerned or interested in the passing of the above Resolution. 
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The Board of Directors recommends the proposed resolution to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

ITEM NO. 6: TO CONSIDER THE APPOINTMENT OF M/S G R SHAH & ASSOCIATES, 

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY (FCS: 12870/COP No.: 14446) AS THE 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY: 

 

Regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) requires every listed entity to appoint a peer 

reviewed Company Secretary or a Firm of Company Secretary(ies) as a Secretarial Auditor on the 

basis of recommendation of the Board of the Directors.  

 

The Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), at its meeting held on 04th September, 2025 has, 

considering the experience and expertise and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, recommended to the Members of the Company, 

appointment of Mr. G R Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS No.: 12870 / COP 

No.: 14446), as Secretarial Auditor for a consecutive period of five (5) years i.e. from FY 2025-26 

upto FY 2029-30, to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company and to furnish the Secretarial Audit 

Report at an Annual Audit Fee of Rs. 80,000/- exclusive of applicable taxes, subject to approval of the 

Members at the Annual General Meeting.  

 

Mr. Gaurang Shah is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is engaged in 

rendering (i) Secretarial Audit; (ii) Advisory and Representation Services; and (iii) Transactional 

Services for various companies. Mr. Gaurang Shah, Practicing Company Secretary, has consented to 

his appointment as the Secretarial Auditor, if appointed and has confirmed that he has subjected 

himself to the peer review process of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) and holds 

a valid certificate of peer review issued by the ICSI. 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, the appointment of 

Secretarial Auditor, is required to be approved by the Members of the Company.  

 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

 

The Board of Directors recommends the proposed resolution to be passed as a Special Resolution. 

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD     By Order of the Board               

DATE: 04.09.2025     For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

 

      Sd/- 

___________________________ 

Registered Office: Plot No 5015, Phase 4,  MITALIBEN RITESH PATEL 

Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva,    Company Secretary 

Ahmedabad 382445      Mem No.: A37334    
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Form No. MGT-11 

 

Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

CIN: L52100GJ1990PLC013964 

 

Name of the Company: UNISON METALS LTD 

 

Registered office: Plot No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445 

 

Name of the Member(s): 

 

Registered address: 

 

E-mail Id: 

 

Folio No/ Client Id: 

 

DP ID: 

 

I/ We, being the member (s) of _________________ shares of the above named company, hereby 

appoint 

1. Name: ____________ 

    Address: 

    E-mail Id: 

    Signature: _________________, or failing him 

  

2. Name: ____________ 

    Address: 

    E-mail Id: 

    Signature: _______________, or failing him 

 

3. Name: ___________   

    Address: 

    E-mail Id: 

    Signature: _______________, or failing him 

 

As my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/ our behalf at the 35th Annual 

General Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 11:00 

A.M. at the Registered office situated at Plot No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva 
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Ahmedabad 382445 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated 

below Resolution: 

 

Ordinary Business: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of 

the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 comprising of the Balance Sheet as 

at March 31, 2025, Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement as on that date 

and the Explanatory Notes annexed to, and forming part of, any of the above documents together 

with the Report of the Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta [DIN: 02176397] who retires by rotation 

and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

Special Business: 

 

3. To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor appointed by the Board of Directors of the 

Company for the financial year 2025-26 pursuant to Section 148 and all other applicable provisions 

of Companies Act, 2013. 

 

4. To approve Sub-division of shares. 

 

5. To approve the alteration of the capital clause of the Memorandum of Association of the company. 

 

6. To consider the appointment of M/S G R Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS: 

12870/COP No.: 14446) as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company. 

 

 

Signed this _____day of…… 2025 

 

 

Signature of Shareholder 

 

 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

Meeting. 

  

 

Affix 

Revenue  

Stamp 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE 

ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL 

 

I hereby record my presence at the 35th Annual General Meeting of the Company convened on 

Monday, September 29, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. at the registered office of the Company situated at Plot 

No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445. 

 

Registered Folio No  

No of Shares  

 

Name and Complete Address of the Equity 

Shareholder 

 

 

 

Signature 

 

 

 

Name of the Proxy Holder/Authorized 

Representative: 

 

Signature 

 

 

 

NOTE: Equity shareholders attending the meeting in Person or by Proxy or through Authorized 

Representative are requested to complete and bring the Attendance Slip with them and hand it over at 

the entrance of the Meeting Venue.  
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT 

AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Additional Information of the Director seeking appointment/re-appointment as required under 

Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

 

Particulars Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta 

DIN 02176397 

Date of Birth 15/04/1990 

Date of Appointment 31/07/2010 

Qualifications MBA 

Expertise in specific functional areas Finance 

Directors in other listed entities Nil 

Membership of committees in other listed entity Nil 

Inter-se Relationship between Directors Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta is husband of Mrs. Rashi 

Tirth Mehta who is acting in capacity of 

Managing Director 

Shareholding of Non-executive director Nil 

Seeking appointment or reappointment Retire by rotation and seeking reappointment 

Shareholding as on 31.03.2025 14,44,750 (9.02%) Equity Shares 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

Dear Members, 

 

Your Director’s are pleased to present the 35th Annual Report of the Company covering the operating 

and financial performance together with the Audited Financial Statements and the Auditors’ Report 

thereon for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025. 

 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS 

 

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarised below: 

 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Financial Results Standalone Consolidated 

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations 16,682.42 14,938.87 31,525.23 27,575.59 

Other Income 85.55 65.64 102.23 90.93 

Total Income 16,767.97 15,004.51 31,627.46 27,666.52 

Profit/loss before 

Depreciation, Finance Costs, 

Exceptional items and Tax 

Expense 

634.30 814.62 1,627.62 1,674.88 

Less: Depreciation/ 

Amortization 

185.45 182.83 374.61 378.88 

Profit /loss before Finance 

Costs, Exceptional items and 

Tax Expense 

448.85 631.79 1,253.01 1,296.00 

Less: Finance Costs 258.71 493.84 643.39 794.27 

Profit /loss before 

Exceptional items and Tax 

Expense 

190.14 137.95 609.62 501.73 

Add/(less): Exceptional items 0 0 0 0 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 

Expense 

190.14 137.95 609.62 501.73 

Less: Tax Expense  

(a) Current tax 

(b) Prior period tax 

(c) Deferred tax 

 

4.82 

0.39 

49.21 

 

50.23 

1.08 

(7.30) 

 

104.30 

0.39 

62.68 

 

169.28 

2.45 

(21.99) 

Profit / (Loss) for the year  135.72 93.94 442.25 352.00 

Share of profit/loss of 

associates 

0 0 3.26 4.47 
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Profit /loss for the year (1) 135.72 93.94 445.51 356.47 

Add: Comprehensive Income/ 

loss for the year (2) 

3.40 0.51 (4.98) 2.95 

Total Comprehensive 

Income (1+2) 

139.12 94.45 440.53 359.42 

 

DIVIDEND 

 

The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant circumstances and 

keeping in view the company’s dividend distribution policy, has decided it would be prudent, not to 

recommend any Dividend for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 and the entire surplus be ploughed 

back to the business to meet the needs for additional finance for capital expenditure. 

 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

 

During the year under review, Company has transferred Rs. 139.12/- Lakhs to reserves. 

 

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS 

 

During the year under review, company made Total Income of Rs. 16,767.97/-(in Lakhs) as against 

Rs. 15,004.51/- (in Lakhs) in the previous year. The company has made Profit before Depreciation, 

Finance, Costs, Exceptional items and Tax Expense of Rs. 634.30/- (in Lakhs) against profit of Rs. 

814.62/- (in Lakhs) in the previous year in the financial statement. 

 

Your Company made net profit of Rs. 135.72/- (in Lakhs) as against net profit of Rs. 93.94/- (in Lakhs) 

in the previous year in the financial statement. 

 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

 

Authorised Share Capital:  

 

During the year under review, the Authorized Share Capital of your Company has been increased from 

Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crore Only) comprising of Rs. 24,25,00,000 (Rupees Twenty 

Four Crore Twenty Five Lakhs Only) divided into 2,42,50,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 

10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and Rs. 75,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Lakhs Only) divided into 

7,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to Rs. 

35,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five Crore Only) comprising of Rs. 34,25,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Four 

Crore Twenty Five Lakhs Only) divided into 3,42,50,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each and Rs. 75,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Lakhs Only) divided into 7,50,000 

Redeemable Preference Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. 

 

Paid Up Share Capital: 
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During the year under review, the company has not allotted any shares. The issued capital as on March 

31, 2025 stood at Rs. 16,02,10,000/- (Rupees Sixteen Crore Two Lakh Ten Thousand Only) divided 

into 1,60,21,000 (One Crore Sixty Lakh Twenty One Thousand) equity shares of the face value of Rs. 

10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. 

 

However, after the closure of the financial year 2024-25 the Company’s had issued and allotted 

1,36,01,287 equity shares of Rs. 10/- aggregating to Rs. 13,60,12,870/- at a price of Rs. 25/- by way 

of Right Issue vide Board Resolution passed at their Board Meeting held on July 12, 2025. 

 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 

 

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE 

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY  

 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 

between the end of the financial year and the date of this Directors’ Report. 

 

ALTERATION OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION 

 

During the year under review, the Company has made the alteration in the Memorandum of 

Association of the Company by way of increase in the Authorised Share Capital from Rs. 

25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crore Only) comprising of Rs. 24,25,00,000 (Rupees Twenty 

Four Crore Twenty Five Lakhs Only) divided into 2,42,50,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 

10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and Rs. 75,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Lakhs Only) divided into 

7,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to Rs. 

35,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five Crore Only) comprising of Rs. 34,25,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Four 

Crore Twenty Five Lakhs Only) divided into 3,42,50,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each and Rs. 75,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Lakhs Only) divided into 7,50,000 

Redeemable Preference Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each vide Ordinary 

Resolution passed at their Shareholder’s Meeting held on September 21, 2024. 

 

ALTERATION OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

 

During the year under review, there is no alteration made in Article of Association (AOA) of the 

Company. 

 

LISTING FEES WITH STOCK EXCHANGE 

 

The Company has paid requisite annual listing fees to BSE Limited (BSE) where its securities are 

listed. 



 

 

35th Annual Report 
26 

 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 

PROTECTION FUND 

 

Pursuant to the Section 124 applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 

(“IEPF Rules”), all the unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred to the IEPF 

established by the Central Government, upon completion of seven (7) years. 

 

Further, according to the Investor Education & Protection Fund ("IEPF") Rules, the shares in respect 

of which dividend has not been paid or claimed by the Shareholders for seven (7) consecutive years or 

more shall also be transferred to the demat account created by the IEPF Authority. 

 

During the year under review, the Company does not have any unpaid or unclaimed dividend or shares 

relating thereto which is required to be transferred to the IEPF as on the date of this Report. 

 

DEPOSITS 

 

During the year under review, the Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the 

public under Section 76 and Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

 

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE (JV) AND ASSOCIATES COMPANIES 

 

The Company has one subsidiary named M/s. Chandanpani Limited (Formerly known as Chandanpani 

Private Limited) as on March 31, 2025. There are no associates or joint venture companies within the 

meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of 

financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries in Form AOC-1 is attached to the director report 

of the Company in Annexure I. 

 

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the Company, 

consolidated financial statements along with relevant documents and separate audited financial 

statements in respect of subsidiaries, are available on the website of the Company i.e. 

www.unisongroup.net. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS 

 

Appointment/ Re-Appointment: 

 

During the year under review, the Company has on the recommendation of the NRC appointed Mrs. 

Rashi Tirth Mehta (DIN: 10697866) as an Additional Director (Executive) whose designation has been 

changed to Managing Director with effect from July 08, 2024.  

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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Further the appointment of Mrs. Rashi Tirth Mehta (DIN: 10697866) as a Managing Director for period 

of 5 years was approved by the Shareholders vide Special Resolution passed in the Annual General 

Meeting held on September 21, 2024. 

 

Retire by Rotation: 

 

Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta (DIN: 02176397), Director is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting, pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and 

being eligible have offered himself for re-appointment. 

 

Appropriate business for his re-appointment is being placed for the approval of the shareholders of the 

Company at the ensuing AGM. The brief resume of the Director and other related information has 

been detailed in the Notice convening the ensuing AGM of the Company. 

 

Cessation: 

 

During the year under review, there is no cessation of director from the Board. 

 

Independent Directors: 

 

The following Directors are independent in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015: 

 

 Mr. Narendra Thakkar 

 Ms. Deepali Malpani  

 Mr. Himanshu Rampal Chokhda  

 

Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

Name of Director Designation 

Tirth Uttam Mehta (Till July 08, 2024) Managing Director 

Rashi Tirth Mehta (From July 08, 2024) Managing Director 

Maheshbhai Vishandas Changrani Whole time Director 

Roshan Gulabchand Bothra Chief Financial Officer 

Mitaliben Ritesh Patel Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 

DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The Company has received declarations pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 from 

each of its Non-Executive and Independent Directors to the effect that they meet the criteria of 



 

 

35th Annual Report 
28 

independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 16(1)(b) and 

Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

These declarations have been placed before and noted by the Board. 

 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors to the best of their 

knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, the 

applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures; 

 

b) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31, 2025 and of the 

profit of the Company for that period; 

 

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of 

the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

d) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 

e) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

 

f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES 

 

The details of the meetings of Board of directors and its Committees convened during the Financial 

Year 2024-25 are set out in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Report. 

 

BOARD COMMITTEES 

 

The Company has several Committees which have been established as part of the best Corporate 

Governance practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of 

applicable laws and statutes. 

 

The Company has following Committees of the Board of Directors: 

 Audit Committee 
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 Stakeholder’s Grievances and Relationship Committee 

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

The details with respect to the compositions, powers, terms of reference and other information of 

relevant committees are given in details in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this 

Annual Report. 

 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 

 

The Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration Committee in terms of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations which has framed Nomination and 

Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees which sets out 

criteria for the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personal (‘KMP’) and other employees so 

as to attract, retain and reward talent who will contribute to our long-term success and thereby build 

value for the shareholders. The Committee reviews and recommend to the Board of Directors about 

remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other. The Company does not pay any 

remuneration to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company other than sitting fee for attending the 

Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees of the Board. Remuneration to Executive Directors 

is governed under the relevant provisions of the Act and approvals. 

 

The Company has devised the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for the appointment, re-

appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel. The Nomination and 

Remuneration Policy is also available on the website of the Company www.unisongroup.net in the 

head of Policies. 

 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

For Board of Directors and Senior Management Group, the Board of Directors of the Company has 

laid down a code of conduct for all the Board Members and Senior Management Group of the 

Company. The main object of the Code is to set a benchmark for the Company’s commitment to values 

and ethical business conduct and practices. Its purpose is to conduct the business of the Company in 

accordance with its value systems, fair and ethical practices, applicable laws, rules and regulations. 

Further, the Code provides for the highest standard of professional integrity while discharging the 

duties and to promote and demonstrate professionalism in the Company. 

 

All the Board Members and Senior Management Group of the Company have affirmed compliance 

with the code of conduct for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 as required by Regulation 

26(3) of the Listing Regulations. A declaration signed by the Chairman & Managing Director to this 

effect is attached as a part of this Annual Report. The code of conduct is also available on the website 

of the Company www.unisongroup.net. 

 

FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
http://www.unisongroup.net/
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 came 

into effect from May 15, 2015 to put in place a framework for prohibition of insider trading in securities 

and to strengthen the legal framework thereof. Pursuant to Regulation 8 of Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated and 

adopted  

 Code of Practices for Prevention of Insider Trading and  

 Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (“Code of Fair 

Disclosure”) of the Company.  

 

Further, pursuant to Regulation 9 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated and adopted the Code of Conduct for 

Prevention of Insider Trading. The Code lays down guidelines and procedures to be followed and 

disclosures to be made while dealing with the shares of the Company and cautioning them on the 

consequence of non-compliances. The Company Secretary has been appointed as a Compliance 

Officer and is responsible for monitoring adherence to the Code. 

 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle-blower policy in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The Company is committed to 

principles of professional integrity and ethical behavior in the conduct of its affairs. The Whistle-

blower Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of director(s) / employee(s) who 

avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

to report actual or suspected unethical behavior, fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct/ 

ethics/ principles and matters specified in the Policy.  

 

The Company affirms that in compliance with the Whistle-Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism no 

personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Compliance officer and Audit 

Committee is mandated to receive the complaints under this policy. The Board on a yearly basis is 

presented an update on the whistleblower policy. Whistle Blower policy is available on the website of 

the Company at www.unisongroup.net. The Policy ensures complete protection to the whistle-blower 

and follows a zero tolerance approach to retaliation or unfair treatment against the whistle-blower and 

all others who report any concern under this Policy.  

 

During the year under review, the Company did not receive any complaint of any fraud, misfeasance 

etc. The Company’s Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) has also been amended to make 

employees aware of the existence of policies and procedures for inquiry in case of leakage of 

Unpublished Price Sensitive Information to enable them to report on leakages, if any of such 

information. 

 

BOARD EVALUATION 

 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board, 

in consultation with its Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework 

containing, inter alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the Company, its 

Committees and individual directors, including Independent Directors. The Board evaluated the 

effectiveness of its functioning, that of the Committees and of individual Directors. 

 

The Board sought the feedback of Directors on various parameters including: 

 

 Degree  of  fulfillment  of  key  responsibilities  towards  stakeholders  (by  way  of  monitoring  

corporate governance practices, participation in the long-term strategic planning, etc.); 

 Structure, composition, and role clarity of the Board and Committees; 

 Extent of co-ordination and cohesiveness between the Board and its Committees; 

 Effectiveness of the deliberations and process management; 

 Board/Committee culture and dynamics; and 

 Quality of relationship between Board Members and the Management. 

 

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors 

and the Board as a whole. 

 

In the Board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent directors and the meeting of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Board, its committees, and 

individual directors was discussed. 

 

The evaluation process endorsed the Board Members’ confidence in the ethical standards of the 

Company, the resilience of the Board and the Management in navigating the Company during 

challenging times, cohesiveness amongst the Board Members, constructive relationship between the 

Board and the Management, and the openness of the Management in sharing strategic information to 

enable Board Members to discharge their responsibilities and fiduciary duties. 

 

The Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance and that of its 

committees and individual directors as per the formal mechanism for such evaluation adopted by the 

Board. The performance evaluation of all the Directors was carried out by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee. 

 

The performance evaluation of the Chairman, the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole 

was carried out by the Independent Directors. The exercise of performance evaluation was carried out 

through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the Board functioning such as 

composition of the Board & committees, experience & competencies, performance of specific duties 

& obligations, contribution at the meetings and otherwise, independent judgment, governance issues 

etc. 
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Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of the 

Directors individually as well as evaluation of the working of the Board by way of individual feedback 

from directors. 

 

The evaluation frameworks were the following key areas: 

 

1. For Non-Executive & Independent Directors: 

 Knowledge 

 Professional Conduct 

 Comply Secretarial Standard issued by ICSI Duties, 

 Role and functions 

 

2. For Executive Directors: 

 Performance as leader 

 Evaluating Business Opportunity and analysis of Risk Reward Scenarios 

 Key set investment goal 

 Professional conduct and integrity 

 Sharing of information with Board. 

 Adherence applicable government law 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

  

The Company is aware of the risks associated with the business. It regularly analyses and takes 

corrective actions for managing/mitigating the same. 

 

The Company has framed a formal Risk Management Policy for risk assessment and risk minimization 

which is periodically reviewed to ensure smooth operation and effective management control. The 

Audit Committee also reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework of the Company, the 

key risks associated with the business and measure and steps in place to minimize the same. 

 

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 

Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”) and Rules made there under, the Company has formed Internal 

Complaints Committee for various work places to address complaints pertaining to sexual harassment 

in accordance with the POSH Act. The composition of Internal Complaints Committee is as follows: 

 

Sr. No.  Name of the Member Designation 

1. Ms. Mitaliben Ritesh Patel Company Secretary  

2. Mrs. Rashi Tirth Mehta Managing Director 
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3. Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta Director  

4. Mr. Roshan Gulabchand Bothra CFO 

 

During the year under review, there were no complaints reported under the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 details of which form the part 

of Corporate Governance Report. Further, the Company ensures that there is a healthy and safe 

atmosphere for every women employee at the workplace and made the necessary policies for safe and 

secure environment for women employee. 

 

MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961:  

 

The Company has complied with all the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. 

 

AUDITORS 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

 

In the 34th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 21, 2024 M/s. Purushottam Khandelwal 

& Co, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm No. 123825W) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 

Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years until the conclusion of the Annual 

General Meeting of the Company in the year 2029. The Company has received letter from M/s. 

Purushottam Khandelwal & Co, Chartered Accountants, to the effect that their appointments, if made   

would be within the prescribed limits of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not 

disqualified for such appointment within the meaning of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

The Standalone and Consolidated Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 

have been provided in “Financial Statements” forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

The report of the Statutory Auditor have not made any adverse remarks in their Audit Report except 

qualified opinion on The Group's investment in the Chandanpani Enterprise (the "Associate"), an 

associate accounted for by the equity method, is carried at Rs. 202.15 Lacs on the consolidated balance 

sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Company's share of the Associate’s net profit of Rs. 4.64 Lacs is 

included in the Company's income for the year then ended. The Associate has an investment in a 

foreign entity which is carried at Rs. 202.16 Lacs in its accounts as at March 31, 2025. We were unable 

to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the fair value of Associate’s investment in the 

foreign entity as at March 31, 2025 because of unavailability of its financial information. 

Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any fair value adjustments to the carrying amount 

of the foreign entity were necessary. The observations made in the Auditor’s Report are self-

explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments. 

 

INTERNAL AUDITORS: 
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In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Susheel Ajmera & Co. (FRN: 034123C) has 

been appointed on 30th May, 2024 as the internal auditor of the company for the Financial Year 2024-

25. Internal Auditor is appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company on a yearly basis, based 

on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditor reports their findings on the 

Internal Audit of the Company to the Audit Committee on a half yearly basis. The scope of internal 

audit is approved by the Audit Committee. 

  

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Company has 

appointed M/s. G R Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-

3 for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 is attached as Annexure II to the Directors’ Report 

and forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

The report of the Secretarial Auditor have not made any adverse remarks in their Audit Report except: 

 

a) The Company has filed Shareholding Pattern with the following Non-Compliance: Company 

Names (Shelja Finlease Pvt Ltd & Meghjyoti Impex Private Limited) wrongly shown in 

Individuals/Hindu undivided Family (Promoter), it should be show in respective Category. 

 

Reply: We have filed the Revised Shareholding Pattern with the stock exchange. 

 

b) The Company has filed Financial Results with the following Non-Compliance: Financial result is 

not signed by the chairperson or managing director, or a whole time director or in the absence of 

all, other authorized director. Company is requested to confirm compliance of Regulation 33(2)(b). 

(If Financial Results is signed by authorized director, kindly Submit certified copy of the resolution 

passed by BOD in the meeting) for Quarter Ended - June 2024. 

 

Reply: We have submitted the Board Resolution passed for authorizing Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta, 

Director of the Company in the absence of the chairperson or managing director, or a whole time 

director. 

 

c) The Company has filed Financial Results with the following Non-Compliance: Consolidated 

Results - Limited Review Report is not as per SEBI prescribed Format (Refer SEBI circular 

CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019 dated March 29, 2019). Submit Limited Review Report as per the 

prescribed format. (Point not 4 not given) for Quarter Ended - December 2024. 

 

Reply: We have submitted the Revised Limited Review Report including the Point 4 as per SEBI 

circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019 dated March 29, 2019 for Quarter Ended December 31, 2024 

alongwith financial result. 
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DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTING BY AUDITOR 

 

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the auditors to the Board under section 

143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with Secretarial standards and its 

provisions and is in compliance with the same. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

In accordance with Sections 134(3)(a) & 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, The annual return in Form No. MGT-

7 for the financial year 2024-25 will be available on the website of the Company 

(www.unisongroup.net). The due date for filing annual return for the financial year 2024-25 is within 

a period of sixty days from the date of annual general meeting. Accordingly, the Company shall file 

the same with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs within prescribed time and a copy of the same shall 

be made available on the website of the Company (www.unisongroup.net) as is required in terms of 

Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

Pursuant to the Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Part C of the Listing Regulations, a “Report on 

Corporate Governance” is given separately, forming part of this Annual Report. Pursuant to Regulation 

34(3) read with Schedule V, Part E of the Listing Regulations, the Certificate from M/s. G.R Shah, 

Practicing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance is annexed to the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.  

  

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Regulation 34(2)(e) read with 

Schedule V Part B of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015") is annexed herewith as 

Annexure III. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

As the Company does not fall under the mandatory bracket of Corporate Social Responsibility as 

required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, hence Company has not taken any initiative 

on Corporate Social Responsibility. 

 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
http://www.unisongroup.net/
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENT UNDER 

SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along with the 

purpose for which the loan, guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient are provided 

in the financial statement (Please refer to Note 3, 6 to the standalone financial statement). 

 

LOANS FROM DIRECTOR/ RELATIVE OF DIRECTOR 

 

The balances of monies accepted by the Company from Directors/ relatives of Directors at the 

beginning of the year were Rs. 6.36/- (in Lakhs) and at the close of year were Rs. 11.42/- (in Lakhs). 

 

The Funds has been given out of Directors owned Funds and is not being given out of funds acquired 

by borrowing from others. 

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 

PARTIES 

 

All Related Party Transactions that were entered during the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 

were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business and is in compliance with the 

applicable provisions of the Act. There were Related Party Transactions made by the Company during 

the year that required shareholders’ approval. 

 

The Company has entered into related party transactions which fall under the scope of Section 188(1) 

of the Act. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) 

of the Act in Form AOC 2 are given in  Annexure IV of this Director Report for the F.Y 2024-25.  

 

Details of other related party transactions have been included in Note 28 to the standalone financial 

statements and Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. The Policy on the Related Party 

Transactions is available on the Company’s website at www.unisongroup.net. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

The Company has laid down the set of standards, processes and structure which enables to implement 

internal financial control across the Organization and ensure that the same are adequate and operating 

effectively. To maintain the objectivity and independence of Internal Audit, the Internal Auditor 

reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in 

the Company, its compliance with the operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of the 

Company. Based on the report of Internal Auditor, the Company undertake the corrective action in  

 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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their respective areas and thereby strengthen the Control. Significant audit observation and corrective 

actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 

 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 

Company and percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, 

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in the financial year: 

 

Name Ratio to median 

remuneration 

% increase in remuneration 

in the financial year 

Executive Director 

Maheshbhai Vishandas 

Changrani 

1.75 18.75 

Rashi Tirth Mehta 3.94 78.33 

Tirth Uttam Mehta 5.67 - 

Chief Financial Officer 

Roshan Gulabchand Bothra 1.67 12.78 

Company Secretary 

Mitaliben Ritesh Patel 0.65 11.05 

 

2. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 44.62% 

 

3. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 31 

 

4. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase 

in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any 

exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: The average 

percentage increase in the salary of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 

financial year is 10.52% as per market standards. Managerial remuneration increased by 

30.23% due to change in the position of Mrs. Rashi Tirth Mehta as Managing Director and also 

their individual performance, internal parity and market competitiveness. 

 

5. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: The 

Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 
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The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the 

particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of 

the Companies (Appointment  and  Remuneration  of  Managerial  Personnel)  Rules,  2014,  is  not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

As required by the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the relevant data pertaining to conservation of Energy, 

Technology Absorption, Foreign exchange earnings is attached with Annexure V. 

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 

COURTS/REGULATORS 

 

During the year under review, there were no significant and/or material orders passed by any Court or 

Regulator or Tribunal, which may impact the going concern status or the Company’s operations in 

future. 

 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

 

The Directors are pleased to report that the relations between the employees and the management 

continued to remain cordial during the year under review. 

 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Listing Regulations, the Business Responsibility Report is to be 

given only by top 1000 listed companies based on market capitalization, therefore the same is not 

applicable to the Company as on March 31, 2025. 

 

MAINENTANCE OF COST RECORD 

 

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to maintain cost records. 

Cost records are made and maintained by the Company as required under Section 148(1) of the Act. 

 

DEMATERIALISATION 

 

The Demat activation number allotted to the Company is ISIN INE099D01018. The company is 

holding its shares in dematerialized form i.e. 145,39,900 and physical form i.e. 14,81,100. 

 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 
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There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 (31 of 2016) during the year. 
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PLACE: AHMEDABAD   By Order of the Board                            

DATE: 04.09.2025    For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

 

    Sd/-     Sd/- 

________________________ ____________________ 

Maheshbhai Changrani  Rashi Tirth Mehta 

Wholetime Director   Managing Director 

DIN: 00153615   DIN: 10697866 

 

Registered Office: Plot No 5015, Phase 4,  

Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445 

Tel: (079)-25841512 

Website: www.unisongroup.net  

CIN: L52100GJ1990PLC013964 
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ANNEXURE’S TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

ANNEXURE I 

 

Form AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

companies/joint ventures 

 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Details (in Lakhs) 

1. Name of the subsidiary Chandanpani Limited 

(Formerly Known as 

Chandanpani Limited) 

2.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting period 

01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025 

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 

date of the relevant Financial year in the case of 

foreign subsidiaries 

NA 

4. Share capital 28.36 

5. Reserves & surplus 1,675.16 

6. Total assets 8,028.57 

7. Total Liabilities 6,325.05 

8. Investments - 

9. Turnover 17,129.73 

10. Profit before taxation 424.69 

11. Provision for taxation 112.95 

12. Profit after taxation 311.74 

13. Proposed Dividend - 

14. % of shareholding 99.99% 
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PLACE: AHMEDABAD   By Order of the Board                            

DATE: 04.09.2025    For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

 

 

     Sd/-    Sd/- 

___________________ _______________________ 

Rashi Tirth Mehta   Maheshbhai Changrani 

 DIN: 10697866  DIN: 00153615 

 Managing Director  Wholetime Director 

 

 

Sd/-    Sd/- 

______________________ ___________________ 

CA Roshan Bothra   CS Mitali Patel 

 Mem. No.146769   Mem.No. A37334 

 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
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ANNEXURE II 

 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

(For the financial year ended on March 31, 2025) 

 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

UNISON METALS LTD 

Plot No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta,  

GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445. 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Unison Metals Ltd [CIN: L52100GJ1990PLC013964] 

(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 

opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books,  minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also information provided by the Company, its officers, 

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and 

clarifications given to me and the representations made by the management, I hereby report that in my 

opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 

2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 

Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 

reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 and made available to me according to the 

provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under as applicable; 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
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(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations    made there under to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; Not applicable to the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company: 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015 as amended from time to time; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018;  

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2021; Not applicable to the company for the financial year ended March 

31, 2025 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; Not applicable to the company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2021; Not applicable to the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

Not applicable to the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025; and 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 

2018. 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

a) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 

 

b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s) and the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

I have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism 

formed by the Company for compliances system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the 

relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied 

with the provisions of The Factories Act, 1948 and rules made thereunder, as is specifically applicable 

to the Company. 
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During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the all material aspects of 

applicable provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above 

subject to the following observations: 

 

a) Company Names (Shelja Finlease Pvt Ltd & Meghjyoti Impex Private Limited) wrongly shown 

in Individuals/Hindu undivided Family (Promoter), it should be show in respective Category. 

 

b) Financial result is not signed by the chairperson or managing director, or a whole time director 

or in the absence of all, other authorized director. Company is requested to confirm compliance 

of Regulation 33(2)(b). (If Financial Results is signed by authorized director, kindly Submit 

certified copy of the resolution passed by BOD in the meeting) for Quarter Ended - June 2024. 

 

c) Consolidated Results - Limited Review Report is not as per SEBI prescribed Format (Refer SEBI 

circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019 dated March 29, 2019). Submit Limited Review Report as 

per the prescribed format. (Point not 4 not given) for Quarter Ended - December 2024. 

 

I further report that: 

 

a) The Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, 

has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory 

financial auditor and other designated professionals. 

 

b) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women Director. The changes 

in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  

 

c) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were generally sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 

further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

d) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 

recorded as part of the minutes.  

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

and regulations and guidelines. 

 

I further report that during the audit period of the Company, there were following events / actions 

having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 

regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.: 
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 During the year under review, the Company has made the alteration in the Memorandum of 

Association of the Company by way of increase in the Authorised Share Capital from Rs. 

25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crore Only) comprising of Rs. 24,25,00,000 (Rupees 

Twenty Four Crore Twenty Five Lakhs Only) divided into 2,42,50,000 equity shares of the 

face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and Rs. 75,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Lakhs 

Only) divided into 7,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each to Rs. 35,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five Crore Only) comprising of 

Rs. 34,25,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Four Crore Twenty Five Lakhs Only) divided into 

3,42,50,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and Rs. 

75,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Lakhs Only) divided into 7,50,000 Redeemable Preference 

Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each vide Ordinary Resolution passed 

at their Shareholder’s Meeting held on September 21, 2024. 

 

 During the year under review, the Company has on the recommendation of the NRC appointed 

Mrs. Rashi Tirth Mehta (DIN: 10697866) as an Additional Director (Executive) whose 

designation has been changed to Managing Director with effect from July 08, 2024. Further 

the appointment of Mrs. Rashi Tirth Mehta (DIN: 10697866) as a Managing Director for period 

of 5 years was approved by the Shareholders vide Special Resolution passed in the Annual 

General Meeting held on September 21, 2024. 

 

 During the year under review, the designation of Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta (DIN: 02176397) has 

been changed from Managing Director to Director with effect from July 08, 2024. 

 

 During the year under review, the Board of Directors in its meeting held March 05, 2025 

approved the Draft Letter of Offer for the proposed Rights Issue of up to ₹ 35,00,00,000/-. 

 

For, G R Shah & Associates 

        Company Secretaries 

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD     Sd/- 

DATE: 30-08-2025      _________________________ 

        [GAURANG SHAH] 

        PROPRIETOR 

Mem NO.: F12870 

COP. NO.: 14446        

UDIN NO: F012870G001120339 

Peer Review No.: 6653/2025 

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE B’ 

and forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure A - List of Documents Verified 

 

1. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. 

 

2. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Independent Directors 

Meeting along with attendance register held during the period under report. 

 

3. Minutes of General Body meetings held during the period under report. 

 

4. Statutory registers records under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under namely: 

 Register of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel 

 Register of the Directors’ shareholding 

 Register of loans, guarantees and security and acquisition made by the Company 

 Register of Members. 

 

5. Declarations received from the Directors of the Company in Form MBP-1 pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

6. E-Forms filed by the Company, from time-to-time, under applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and attachments thereof during the period under report. 

 

7. Communications/ Letters issued to and acknowledgements received from the Independent 

Directors for their appointment. 

 

8. Various policies framed by the Company from time to time as required under the Companies Act, 

2013. 
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Annexure B 

To, 

The Members, 

UNISON METALS LTD 

Plot No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta,  

GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445. 

 

My Secretarial audit report for the financial year 31st March, 2025 is to be read along with this letter. 

 

Management’s Responsibility 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

2. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibly of the management. Our examination was limited to the 

verification of the procedures on test basis. My Responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the company with respect to 

secretarial compliances. 

 

3. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that 

Audit evidence and information obtained from the company’s management is adequate and 

appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management’s representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

Disclaimer 

 

5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 

 

6. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

account of the company. 

     

 For, G R Shah & Associates 

        Company Secretaries 
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PLACE: AHMEDABAD     Sd/- 

DATE:  30-08-2025      _________________________ 

        [GAURANG SHAH] 

        PROPRIETOR 

Mem NO.: F12870 

COP. NO.: 14446        

UDIN NO: F012870G001120339 

Peer Review No.: 6653/2025 
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ANNEXURE III 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the management discussion and analysis report for the year 

ended on March 31, 2025. 

 

1. GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW: 

 

The global economy in 2024 displayed cautious optimism, continuing to navigate the aftermath of 

monetary tightening cycles, persistent geopolitical tensions, and a fragile recovery in global trade. The 

International Monetary Fund (IMF) estimates global growth to have slowed slightly to 2.9% in 2024, 

from 3.0% in 2023, reflecting moderated activity in both advanced and emerging markets. This is 

below the pre-pandemic historical average of 3.8%. 

 

Advanced economies are witnessing a period of soft landing, with growth expected at 1.4% in 2024, 

following sustained tight monetary policies and waning fiscal support. Meanwhile, emerging market 

and developing economies have demonstrated relatively greater resilience, with growth holding steady 

around 4.0%, bolstered by domestic demand and improving supply chains. 

 

Global inflation has continued its downward trajectory, estimated to average 5.8% in 2024, aided by 

easing commodity prices and policy interventions. However, core inflation remains above target in 

many countries, prompting central banks to maintain a cautious stance. Inflation in most advanced 

economies is not expected to return to target before mid-to-late 2025. 

 

GDP GROWTH 

 

FRAGILE RECOVERY AMID TIGHT CONDITIONS 

 

The global growth narrative remains subdued. The expected global GDP growth of 2.9% in 2024 

highlights the fragility of recovery, especially amidst ongoing geopolitical disruptions and a volatile 

energy market. Growth continues to be geographically skewed, with Asia-Pacific—particularly India 

and Southeast Asia—accounting for a disproportionate share of global economic expansion. 

 

2. INDIAN ECONOMY: 

 

India has maintained its position as one of the fastest-growing major economies in the world. 

Supported by a robust domestic market, digital transformation, and an ongoing infrastructure push, the 

Indian economy exhibited sustained momentum throughout 2024–25 despite global headwinds. 

 

Urban demand remained strong, while rural demand showed consistent recovery, aided by improved 

agricultural output and increased rural spending. Private investment is gradually picking up, while  
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exports have faced challenges due to muted global demand. Monetary policy remained cautious amid 

sticky core inflation, though headline inflation moderated in the latter half of the fiscal. 

 

GDP GROWTH 

 

According to provisional estimates, India’s real GDP grew by 7.0% in FY 2024–25, supported by 

healthy private consumption, government capex, and improved manufacturing and services output. 

The IMF and World Bank have revised India’s medium-term growth potential to 6.5–7.0%, placing it 

well above the global average. 

 

India’s consistent outperformance reinforces its stature as a key global growth engine. Structural 

reforms, digital penetration, and proactive policy interventions have laid the groundwork for long-term 

sustainable growth. 

 

INVESTMENT LANDSCAPE & OUTLOOK  

 

Investment revival continues to be a central theme of India’s economic strategy. While global 

uncertainties initially dampened private sector enthusiasm, the situation improved in the latter half of 

FY 2024–25, with improved credit growth, robust GST collections, and rising manufacturing PMI. 

 

Key indicators—such as e-way bill generation, auto sales, power consumption, and bank credit—

remained strong throughout the year, reinforcing the positive sentiment in the economy. 

 

THE ROAD AHEAD: ECONOMIC PROJECTIONS 

 

India is poised for a stable growth path in the near term. Barring unforeseen global shocks, the 

economy is expected to grow between 6.5%–7.0% in FY 2025–26, driven by: 

 Recovery in rural demand 

 Continued government-led infrastructure spending 

 Increased private sector capex 

 Stable financial system with improving asset quality 

 Ongoing digital and structural reforms 

 

However, global uncertainties—including commodity price fluctuations, geopolitical risks, and 

climatic challenges—remain key downside risks. A calibrated monetary policy, fiscal prudence, and 

supply-side interventions will be essential to maintaining macroeconomic stability. 

 

3. INDUSTRY OVERVIEW: 

 

The Indian steel industry, which plays a pivotal role in national economic development, continues to 

thrive amid growing domestic demand, policy support, and global diversification trends. 
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India retained its position as the second-largest steel producer globally, with steady year-on-year 

production growth. The steel sector’s direct contribution to GDP remains at approximately 2%, with a 

much higher indirect impact, especially in infrastructure, construction, automotive, and capital goods 

sectors. 

 

India's push for self-reliance through initiatives like PM Gati Shakti, PLI schemes, and the National 

Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP) is driving increased steel consumption. In addition, supply chain 

diversification away from China has prompted global manufacturers to set up or expand operations in 

India, bolstering demand for steel and allied products. 

 

The domestic steel demand is projected to grow by 7–8% in FY 2025–26, supported by infrastructure, 

real estate, and manufacturing sector growth. 

 

LOOKING AHEAD 

 

The Indian manufacturing sector is on track to become a USD 1 trillion industry by 2025, and steel 

will play a key role in this transition. With consistent policy support, increased FDI inflows, and 

expanding production capacities, the Indian steel industry is well-positioned for sustained growth in 

the medium term. 

 

4. OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS: 

 

Opportunities 

 

We believe that our growth in other states in the country can fetch us new business expansion and 

opportunities. Presently, our presence is in the states of India except Orissa, Chhattisgarh, Bihar, 

Jharkhand and J&K. Going forward we intend to establish our presence in more locations in the 

country. Our emphasis is on scaling up of our operations in other markets which will provide us with 

attractive opportunities to grow our client base and revenue. 

 

Threats 

 

 Rise in cost of material and cost of transportation may affect the margin 

 Changes in Government Policies 

 Intense competition may reduce profitability 

 Act of God 

 Client Dissatisfaction 

 Customer’s inability to pay 

 

5. SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE: 
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The Company’s main business activity is trading and Manufacturing of Steel Patta, Ceramics Products 

and Sodium Silicate.  

 

6. OUTLOOK: 

 

The Company continues to explore the possibilities of expansion and will make the necessary 

investments when attractive opportunities arise. 

 

7. RISK & CONCERNS: 

 

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key 

business objectives. Key business risks and mitigation strategy are highlighted below: 

 

Business Risk 

 

To mitigate the risk of high dependence on any one business for revenues, the Company has adopted 

a strategy of launching new products/services, globalizing its operations and diversifying into different 

business segments. The strategy has yielded good results and the Company therefore has a diversified 

stream of revenues. To address the risk of dependence on a few large clients, the Company has also 

actively sought to diversify its client base. 

 

Legal & Statutory Risk 

 

The Company has no material litigation in relation to contractual obligations pending against it in any 

court in India or abroad. The Company Secretary, compliance and legal functions advice the Company 

on issues relating to compliance with law and to pre-empt violations of the same. The Company 

Secretary submits a quarterly report to the Board on the Company’s initiatives to comply with the laws 

of various jurisdictions. The Company also seeks independent legal advice wherever necessary. 

 

Human Resource Attrition Risk 

 

Unison Metals Limited key assets are its employees. In a highly competitive market, it is a challenge 

to address the attrition. Unison Metals Limited continues to accord top priority to manage employee 

attrition by talent retention efforts and offering a competitive salary and growth path for talented 

individuals. 

 

Macroeconomic Risks 

 

Company’s business may be affected by changes in Government policy, taxation, intensifying 

competition and uncertainty around economic developments in Indian and overseas market in which 

the Company operates. 

 

Mitigation Strategy 
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The Company has well defined conservative internal norms for its Business. The Company ensures a 

favourable debt/equity  ratio,  moderate  liquidity,  strong clientele  with  timely  payment  track  record, 

appropriate due diligence before bidding and focus on expanding presence in newer markets to 

minimize the impact in adverse conditions. The Company has geographically and operationally 

diversified into multiple countries and business segments thereby reducing its dependency on one 

country or market. 

 

Operational Risks 

 

The Company’s operations and financial condition could be adversely affected if it is unable to 

successfully implement its growth strategies. Competition from others, or changes in the products or 

processes of the Company’s customers, should reduce market prices and demanding for the 

Company’s products, thereby reducing its cash flow and profitability. Product liabilities claims may 

adversely affect the Company’s operations and finance. 

 

Others 

 

The Company is exposed to risks & fluctuations of foreign exchange rates, raw-material prices and 

overseas investments exposures. 

 

8. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUEACY: 

 

One of the key requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 is that companies should have adequate 

Internal Financial Controls (IFC) and that such controls should operate effectively. Internal Financial 

Controls means the policies and procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and timely preparation of reliable financial information. Your Company process of assessment ensures 

that not only does adequate controls exist, but it can also be evidenced by unambiguous documentation. 

The process involves scoping and planning to identify and map significant accounts and processes 

based on materiality. Thereafter, risk is identified and their associated controls are mapped, else 

remediation is implemented.  These controls are tested to assess operating effectiveness. The auditor 

performs independent testing of controls. The Auditors’ Report is required to comment on whether the 

Company has adequate IFC system in place and such controls are operating effectively. Your 

Company’s Internal Control System is robust and well established. It includes documented rules and 

guidelines for conducting business. The environment and controls are periodically monitored through 

procedures/ processes set by the management, covering critical and important areas. These controls 

are periodically reviewed and updated to reflect the changes in the business and environment. 

 

The Audit Committee periodically reviews the internal controls systems and reports their observations 

to the Board of Directors. 
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The Directors have appointed M/s. Susheel Ajmera & Co., Chartered Accountants as the Internal 

Auditors of the Company for the FY 2024-25 on 30/05/2024. 

 

9. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL 

PERFORMANCE: 

 

During the year, the Company has generated turnover of Rs. 16,682.42/- Lakhs as compared to Rs. 

14,938.87/- Lakhs in the previous year. The net profit before exceptional items and taxes is Rs. 

190.14/- Lakhs as compared to Rs. 137.95/- Lakhs in the previous year. The Company has made net 

profit after taxes of Rs. 135.72/- Lakhs as compared to Rs. 93.94/- Lakhs of the previous year for the 

year ended 31st March, 2024.   

 

10. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HR / INDUSTRIAL RELATION / NUMBER OF 

PERSON EMPLOYED: 

 

Our Company believes that the human capital is key to bring in progress. The Company believes in 

maintaining cordial relation with its employees, which is one of the key pillars of the Company's 

business. The Company's HR  policies  and  practices  are  built  on  core  values  of  Integrity,  Passion,   

 

Speed, and Commitment.  The Company's focus is on recruitment of good talent and retention of the 

talent pool. The Company is hopeful and confident of achieving the same to be able to deliver results 

and value for our shareholders. As on 31st March, 2025, the total employees on the Company's rolls 

stood at 74. 

 

The Company continues to run an in-house training programmer held at regular intervals and aimed at 

updating their knowledge about issues. 

 

11. ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

 

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those 

used in the previous year. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 

convention on an accrual basis. The management accepts responsibility for the integrity and objectivity 

of the financial statements, as well as for the various estimates and judgment used therein. 

 

12. DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT: 

 

The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI) while preparing Financial Statements. 

 

13. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E. CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS 

COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY 

FINANCIAL RATIOS: 
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The Company has identified the following ratios as key financial ratios: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Changes Reason 

1. Return on Equity (%) 6.60 4.84 36.24% During the financial 

year under 

consideration there 

was high volatility in 

raw material prices 

in the industry which 

was not converted in 

equal margins in the 

revenue because of 

uneven demands. 

Due to the same the 

net profit margins 

and returns have 

decreased which has 

affected the 

company's 

profitability. 

2. Inventory Turnover Ratio 5 8 -32.06% Has been Improved 

due to fast 

Conversion of sales 

order to dispatch. 

3. Net profit ratio (%) 0.81 0.63 29.35% Company's working 

capital management 

is more efficient and 

aim to increase the 

number of “turns”. 

4. Return on Capital Employed 

(%) 

8.69 12.27 -29.14% There is decrease in 

Finance cost and for 

the reason EBTA has 

been decreased. 

However there vis 

increased in Net 

profit for the year. 

 

14. DETAILS OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH AS COMPARED TO THE 

IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG WITH A DETAILED 

EXPLANATION THEREOF: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Changes Reason 
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1. Return on Net Worth (%) 6.60 4.84 36.24% During the financial 

year under 

consideration 

product wise margin 

has been improved. 

 

15. CAUTIONERY STATEMENT: 

 

Statements in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s 

objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward-looking statements” 

within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially 

from those expressed or implied. 

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD   By Order of the Board                            

DATE: 04.09.2025   For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

 

 

    Sd/-     Sd/- 

________________________ ____________________ 

Maheshbhai Changrani  Rashi Tirth Mehta 

Wholetime Director   Managing Director 

DIN: 00153615   DIN: 10697866 

  

 

Registered Office: Plot No 5015, Phase 4,  

Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445 

Tel: (079)-25841512 

Website: www.unisongroup.net  

CIN: L52100GJ1990PLC013964  

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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ANNEXURE IV 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 

length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: 

 

Unison Metals Ltd (the Company) has not entered into any contract/ arrangement/ transaction with its 

related parties, which is not in ordinary course of business or at arm’s length during the financial year 

2024-25. The Company has laid down policies and processes/ procedures so as to ensure compliance 

to the subject section in the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the corresponding Rules. In addition, the 

process goes through internal and external checking, followed by quarterly reporting to the Audit 

Committee. 

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable 

b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions: Not Applicable 

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Not 

Applicable 

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable 

f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: Not Applicable 

g) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable 

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first 

proviso to Section 188: Not Applicable 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:  

 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Name(s) of the 

related party 

Nature of 

relationship 

Nature 

of 

contract

s/ 

arrange

ments/ 

transacti

ons 

Duration of the 

contracts / 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Salient terms 

of the 

contracts or 

arrangements 

or 

transactions 

including the 

value, if any: 

Date of 

approval 

by the 

Board 

Amou

nt 

paid 

as 

advan

ces, if 

any 

Mangalam 

Alloys  

Limited 

Enterprise 

significantly 

influenced by 

Job work 01st April, 2024 to 

31st March, 2025 
37.62 30.05.2024  



 

 

35th Annual Report 
58 

Directors or their 

Relatives 

Chandanpani  

Private  

Limited 

Subsidiary 

Company 

Purchase 01st April, 2024 to 

31st March, 2025 
212.67 30.05.2024  

Chandanpani  

Private  

Limited 

Subsidiary 

Company 

Sale 01st April, 2024 to 

31st March, 2025 
1166.34 30.05.2024  

Chandanpani  

Private  

Limited 

Subsidiary 

Company 

Job 

Work 

01st April, 2024 to 

31st March, 2025 
1374.01 30.05.2024  

Unison 

Forgings 

Private Limited 

Enterprise 

significantly 

influenced by 

Directors or their 

Relatives 

Purchase 01st April, 2024 to 

31st March, 2025 
1057.19 30.05.2024  

Unison 

Forgings 

Private Limited 

Enterprise 

significantly 

influenced by 

Directors or their 

Relatives 

Sale 01st April, 2024 to 

31st March, 2025 
3042.89 30.05.2024  

 

Note: All related party transactions are benchmarked for arm’s length, approved by Audit Committee 

and reviewed by Statutory Auditors. The above disclosures on material transactions are based on 

threshold of 10 percent of consolidated turnover and considering wholly owned subsidiaries are 

exempt for the purpose of Section 188(1) of the Act. 

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD   By Order of the Board                            

DATE: 04.09.2025    For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

 

    Sd/-     Sd/- 

________________________ ____________________ 

Maheshbhai Changrani  Rashi Tirth Mehta 

Wholetime Director   Managing Director 

DIN: 00153615   DIN: 10697866  

Registered Office: Plot No 5015, Phase 4,  

Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445 

Tel: (079)-25841512 

Website: www.unisongroup.net  

CIN: L52100GJ1990PLC013964 

  

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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ANNEXURE V 
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS / OUTGO 

 

Additional particulars required under the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in reports of Directors) 

Rules, 1988 forming part of the Directors report for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:  

 

Energy conservation measures taken: 

 

The Company has adopted the system of shutting down the electrical machinery and appliances when 

not in use to avoid unnecessary waste of energy and has put latest design of electrical equipment. New 

investments in machines are being considered with an idea to have reduction of consumption of energy. 

The impact of these measures on the cost of production of goods are not precisely ascertainable. The 

total energy consumption as per Form A to the extent applicable is given here under. 

 

ANNEXURE A - POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION: 

 

1. ELECTRICITY: 

Unit KWH : 645820 

Total Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) : 68.65 

Cost/Unit (Rs.) : 10.63 

2. GAS: 

Quantity (SCM) : 2977926 

Total Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) : 1339.43 

Rate/Unit (Rs./SCM) : 44.98 

3. OIL: 

Quantity (KG) : NIL 

Total Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) : NIL 

Rate/Unit (Rs./KG) : NIL 

 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION: 

 

To enhance efficiency, accuracy and overall productivity, our batch making plant has recently 

undergone significant updation and automation. 

 

This modernization includes integration and synchronizing our machinery for controlling its decisions 

through Programmable logical control (PLC). 
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After doing this our manufacturing has hit a new benchmark in terms of automation, with cutting-edge 

technology playing a significant role. It speeds up our production processes while maintaining a high 

level of precision and consistency 

 

It has lower production costs by reducing expenses associated with labour and waste. Key processes 

such as raw material feeding, mixing, batching and discharge are now controlled electronically. Real 

time monitoring and data logging have improved transparency and traceability. 

 

We have also Automized Complete combustion systems required for our melting Processes by 

ensuring consistent and reliable burner operations controlled by PLC automation to minimize the risk 

of misfiring and improved thermal efficiency. 

 

As a result burner performances are now more stable, energy consumption is optimized and operational 

safety has significantly improved supporting both environment compliances and production reliability. 

 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO: 

 

The details of Foreign Exchange Earnings and out-go are as under: 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 2025 2024 

a. Foreign exchange earnings 2.96 11.74 

b. CIF Value of imports 0 0 

c. Expenditure in foreign currency 0 0 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

[Pursuant to Part C of Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations] 

 

1. BRIEF STATEMENT ON COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

 

Corporate Governance is the application of best management practices, compliance of laws, rules, 

regulations and adherence to ethical principles in all its dealings, to achieve the objects of the 

Company, enhance stakeholder value for the benefit of the Company and its stakeholders. It is 

essentially a system by which Companies are directed and controlled by the management in the best 

interest of all stakeholders. 

 

Unison Metals Limited firmly believes that effective Corporate Governance practices constitute a 

strong foundation on which successful commercial enterprises are built to last. The Company has a 

strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices. The key principles on which this 

edifice is built includes well developed internal controls, systems and processes, transparency in 

business operations, performance and financial position, clearly defined management performance 

& accountability and full adherence to compliances and disclosures. This has been further 

strengthened by the adoption of the Code of Conduct for its employees, including the Managing 

Director and adoption of a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors. 

 

The Company has made disclosures under this part as per the Regulation 34 read with Schedule V 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 

from time to time, (hereinafter referred as “Listing Regulations”) which came into effect from 

December 1, 2015. 

 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

The primary role of Board is to protect and enhance stakeholders’ value through strategic 

supervision. The Board also sets goals, policies, provides direction and exercises appropriate 

control to ensure that the company achieves its set goals. All the statutory and other significant 

material information are placed before the Board to enable it to discharge its responsibility in an 

effective & efficient manner. 

 

The Board of the Company constantly endeavors to set new goals and targets that complement the 

vision & mission of the Company so that the interests of stakeholders are protected. 

 

The Board of your Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Independent Non-

executive and Woman Directors with conformity of Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (herein after known as “Listing Regulations”) as well 

as the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder, to maintain the independence of 

board and separate its functions of management and governance in transparent manner. 

 



 

 

35th Annual Report 
62 

 

The Board of Directors of Unison as on March 31, 2025, comprised of 06 Directors, out of which 

1 was Executive Director (“ED”) (MD), 2 was Executive Directors (“EDs”) (Chairman), and 3 were 

Non-Executive Independent Directors (“IDs”). 

 

A. Board Composition: 

 

Name of the Directors Category Designation 

Mrs. Rashi Tirth Mehta Executive Director Managing Director 

Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta Executive Director Director 

Mr. Maheshbhai 

Vishandas Changrani 

Executive Director Whole-time Director 

Ms. Deepali Malpani Non-Executive and Women 

Independent Director 

Independent Director 

Mr. Himanshu Rampal 

Chokhda 

Non-Executive and 

Independent Director 

Independent Director 

Mr. Narendra Thakkar Non-Executive and 

Independent Director 

Independent Director 

 

B. Details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings and at the last year’s Annual 

General Meeting is as follows: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Directors Board Meeting 

held during 

respective tenure of 

Director 

No. of 

Meetings 

attended 

Attendance 

at the 34th 

AGM 

1. Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta 17 17 Yes 

2. Mrs. Rashi Tirth Mehta 12 12 Yes 

3. Mr. Maheshbhai 

Vishandas Changrani 

17 17 Yes 

4. Mr. Narendra Thakkar 17 17 Yes 

5. Ms. Deepali Malpani 17 04 Yes 

6. Mr. Himanshu Rampal 

Chokhda 

17 17 Yes 

 

C. The number of other boards or committee in which director is a chairman or member 

including names of the listed companies where the directors are holding directorship with 

category of directorship as on 31st March, 2025 is as follow: 

 

Name of the 

Directors 

Categor

y of  

Director

ship  

Number of other Directorships and Committee 

Memberships/ Chairmanships 

Other Other Other 

Committee 

Other 

Committee 
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In other 

Listed  

Compan

ies 

Directorshi

ps 

Chairmanshi

ps 

Membership

s 

Chairmanship

s 

Mr. Tirth 

Uttam Mehta 

- 2 - 2 - 

Mrs. Rashi 

Tirth Mehta 

- - - - - 

Mr. 

Maheshbhai 

Vishandas 

Changrani 

- 2 - 2 1 

Ms. Deepali 

Malpani 

- 1 - 1 - 

Mr. 

Himanshu 

Rampal 

Chokhda 

- - - 1 1 

Mr. Narendra 

Thakkar 

- - - - - 

 

Notes: 

1. The number of other Directorships and Committee Memberships/Chairmanships 

excludes Directorships and Committee Memberships/Chairmanships held in the 

Company, private limited companies, foreign companies, companies registered under 

Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 or Section 8 of the Act. Further, it includes only 

the Memberships/Chairmanships of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee. 

2. All the Directors meet the criterion laid down in the Act and the Listing Regulations, 

vis-à-vis, independence, number of directorship in other companies, Memberships/ 

Chairmanships of committees across all public companies in which he is a Director. 

Necessary disclosures in this respect as on March 31, 2025 have been made by the 

Directors. 

 

D. Number of Board Meetings held and the dates on which they are held: 

 

The Company held 17 Board Meetings during the year 2024-25 and the gap between two 

meetings was in compliance with the provisions contained in the Act, the Listing Regulations 

and the Secretarial Standard which are notified. The dates on which the Board Meetings held 

were:  

 

Sr. No. Date of Board Meeting 

1. 30th May, 2024 
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2. 07th June, 2024 

3. 25th June, 2024 

4. 27th June, 2024 

5. 08th July, 2024 

6. 06th August, 2024 

7. 14th August, 2024 

8. 27th August, 2024 

9. 18th September, 2024 

10. 01st October, 2024 

11. 13th November, 2024 

12. 10th December, 2024 

13. 20th December, 2024 

14. 31st December, 2024 

15. 24th January, 2025 

16. 14th February, 2025 

17. 05th March, 2025 

 

E. Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive Directors: 

 

None of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is holding shares or convertible 

instruments in the Company. 

 

F. Skills/ Expertise/ Competence of the Board: 

 

Unison’s Board is a skill-based board comprising of Directors who collectively have the skills, 

knowledge and experience to effectively govern and direct the organization. 

 

The Board of Directors have identified the below mentioned core skills / expertise / 

competencies in the context of the business and the sector in which the Company is operating, 

for the Company to function effectively: 

 Knowledge and/or expertise in one or more of areas like manufacturing, accounts, 

finance, taxation, marketing, business and management. 

 This criteria is designed to ensure the Board consists of individuals with a balance of 

skills to oversee the organization, achieve the strategic goals and direct the 

organization’s future. 

 

The above core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Company are also actually 

available with the Board as under: 

 

Name of the 

Directors 

Understan

ding of 

business 

industry 

Critical 

and 

innovati

Strategy 

and 

Strategic 

planning 

Financial 

understan

ding 

Market 

understan

ding 

Risk and 

complian

ce 

oversight 
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ve 

thoughts 

Mr. Tirth 

Uttam Mehta 

√ √ √ √ √ √ 

Mrs. Rashi 

Tirth Mehta 

√ √ √ √ √ √ 

Mr. 

Maheshbhai 

Vishandas 

Changrani 

√ √ √ √ √ √ 

Ms. Deepali 

Malpani 

√ √ √ √ √ √ 

Mr. 

Himanshu 

Rampal 

Chokhda 

√ √ √ √ √ √ 

Mr. Narendra 

Thakkar 

√ √ √ √ √ √ 

 

G. Independent Directors: 

 

Three directors out of Six directors of the Company are Independent Directors (non-executive 

directors) as defined under regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations read with Section 

149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules framed thereunder. Further, in terms 

of Regulation 25(8), they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or 

situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability 

to discharge their duties. All Independent Directors make disclosure of their Independence to 

the Company. None of the Independent Directors has any material pecuniary relationship or 

transactions with the Company or its subsidiaries, apart from receiving sitting fee as an 

Independent Director. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the 

Board of Director of the Company are of the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfill the 

criteria of independence as specified under the Listing Regulations and that they are 

independent of the Management of the Company. 

 

During the year under review, no director has resigned from its position. 

 

H. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 

25(3) of the Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 14th 

February, 2025 to discuss the following purposes: 

 

 Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
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 Evaluation of performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the 

views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors; 

 Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the 

Management and the Board that is necessary to effectively and reasonably perform their 

duties. 

 

All Independent Directors of the Company were present in the meeting. Mr. Himanshu Rampal 

Chokhda chaired the Meeting. 

 

3. BOARD COMMITTEES: 

 

The Board Committees play a vital role in ensuring sound Corporate Governance practices. The 

Committees are constituted to handle specific activities and ensure speedy resolution of diverse 

matters. The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out 

clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by members of the Board, as a part of 

good governance practice. The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the 

Committees and is responsible for their action. The minutes of the meetings of all the Committees 

are placed before the Board for review. 

 

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 

(a) Brief description of terms of references: 

 

The Company has an Audit Committee at the Board level with powers and role that are in 

accordance with Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee and power of this 

committee are in accordance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

The brief description of role and terms of reference of Audit Committee is as under: 

 

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and if required, the 

replacement or removal of statutory auditor and fixation of audit fees. 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 

auditors; 

4. Reviewing with management the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon 

before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

 

a) Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub section 3 of Section 134 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, 
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b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same, 

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management, 

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings, 

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements, 

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions, 

g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report 

 

5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before its submission 

to the Board for approval; 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 

through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds 

utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and 

the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a 

public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up 

steps in this matter. 

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of 

audit process. 

8. Approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related 

parties. 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 

adequacy of the internal control systems; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 

reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

14. Discussion with internal auditors, any significant findings and follow up thereon; 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters 

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 

material nature and reporting the matter to the Board; 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about nature and scope of 

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 

holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole time Finance Director or any other 

person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the 

qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit 

Committee. 
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In addition to the areas noted above, Audit Committee looks into controls and security of the 

Company’s internal control systems and internal audit reports. 

 

The Committee Meetings were also attended by Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors and 

Company Secretary who also acted as Secretary of the Committee. 

 

(b) Composition of the Committee, No. of Meetings and Attendance at the Meeting: 

 

All members of the Committee are financially literate. Mr. Himanshu Rampal Chokhda, 

Chairman of the Committee is a qualified and having the relevant accounting and financial 

management expertise. 

 

The Composition and attendance of Audit Committee Meeting are given below: 

 

Name of Member Designation Category No. of 

Meetings 

Meetings 

attended 

Mr. Himanshu Rampal 

Chokhda 

Chairperson Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

7 7 

Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta Member Executive Director 7 7 

Ms. Deepali Malpani Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

7 7 

 

The Audit Committee met 7 times during the year and gap between two meetings did not exceed 

120 days. The dates on which Audit Committee Meetings were held on 30th May, 2024, 14th 

August, 2024, 27th August, 2024, 01st October, 2024, 13th November, 2024 and 14th February, 

2025. Necessary quorum was present at above Meetings. 

 

During the year, Audit Committee reviewed key audit findings covering operational, financial 

and compliance areas. Risk mitigation plans covering key risks affecting the Company were 

presented to the Committee. The Chairman of Committee briefs Board members about 

significant discussions at Audit Committee Meetings. 

 

The meetings of Audit Committee are usually attended by Chief Financial Officer, Internal 

Auditor, Company Secretary and a representative of the Statutory Auditors. The Business and 

Operation Heads are invited to the Meetings, when required. The Company Secretary acts as 

the secretary to Committee. 

 

B. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 

(a) Brief description of terms of references: 
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The Company has complied with the requirements of Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as regards composition of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

 

The Board has adopted a charter of the NRC for its smooth functioning covering aspects 

relating to composition, responsibilities, evaluation process, remuneration, Board development 

and reviewing HR strategy. The key terms of reference of the NRC, are: 

 

1. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in 

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the 

Board their appointment and removal; 

2. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the 

remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

3. To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 

4. To devise a policy on Board Diversity; 

5. Formulate the system and procedure for evaluating performance of Directors; 

6. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Senior 

Management; 

7. Carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or enforced 

by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable;  

8. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the 

basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors; 

9. Perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of 

its duties. 

 

(b) Composition of the Committee, No. of Meetings and Attendance at the Meeting: 

 

The composition of the Committee and details of Meetings attended by Directors during the 

year are given below: 

 

Name of Member Designation Category No. of 

Meetings 

Meetings 

attended 

Mr. Himanshu Rampal 

Chokhda 

Chairperson Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

4 4 

Mr. Narendra Thakkar Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

4 4 

Ms. Deepali Malpani Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

4 4 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 4 times during the year. The dates on which 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held on 07th June, 2024, 08th July,  
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2024, 27th August, 2024 and 13th November, 2024. Necessary quorum was present at above 

Meetings. 

 

(c) Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors: 

 

As per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company, the performance evaluation 

of independent directors is carried out on the basis of prescribed criteria including participation 

and contribution by every director in the meeting, commitment, effective deployment of 

knowledge and expertise, effective management relationship with stakeholders, integrity and 

maintenance of confidentiality, Professional Conduct and Independence, willingness to devote 

sufficient time to carry out the duties and responsibilities effectively including attendance at 

meetings, act in the best interest of minority shareholders of the Company etc. 

 

C. STAKEHOLDERS’ GRIEVANCES AND RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 

(a) Brief description of terms of references: 

 

The Company has complied with the requirements of Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing 

obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and pursuant to provision of 

Companies Act, 2013 as regards to composition of this Committee. 

 

As per Regulation 20(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, following are the Role of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

specified under Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015: 

 

1. Review and resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company including 

complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-

receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

2. Review measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 

3. Review the adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of 

various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

4. Review the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the 

quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely payment of dividend/dispatch of 

annual reports/statutory notices to the shareholders of the Company. 

 

(b) Composition of the Committee, No. of Meetings and Attendance at the Meeting: 

 

The composition of Committee and details of Meetings attended by Directors during the year 

are given below: 
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Name of Member Designation Category No. of 

Meetings 

Meetings 

attended 

Ms. Deepali Malpani Chairperson Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

4 4 

Mr. Maheshbhai 

Vishandas Changrani 

Member Executive Director 4 4 

Mr. Tirth Uttam Mehta Member Executive Director 4 4 

 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met 4 times during the year. The dates on which 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meetings were held on 16th April, 2024, 13th July, 2024, 

12th October, 2024 and 10th January, 2025. Necessary quorum was present at above Meetings. 

 

(c) Name and Designation of Compliance officer: 

 

Ms.  Mitaliben Ritesh Patel, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for complying 

with the requirements of Securities laws and the Listing Regulations. 

 

(d) Number of shareholders’ complaints received during the financial year, number of 

Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders and number of pending 

complaints: 

 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, no complaints were received from the Shareholders. 

Hence, no complaints were pending at the end of the financial year. 

 

4. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS: 

 

(a) Pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non-executive director’s vis-à-vis the 

Company: 

 

There was no any pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non-executive director’s vis-

à-vis the Company. 

 

(b) Criteria for making payment to non-executive directors: 

 

Criteria for making payment to non-executive director is mentioned in the nomination and 

remuneration policy of the company which is available on the website of Company 

www.unisongroup.net.  

 

(c) Disclosure with respect to remuneration: 

 

The details of remuneration paid to Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2025 are as 

follows: 

 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Name of the 

Director 

Salaries Sitting Fees Total 

Mr. Tirth Uttam 

Mehta 

46.20 - 46.20 

Mrs. Rashi Tirth 

Mehta 

32.10 - 32.10 

Mr. Maheshbhai 

Vishandas 

Changrani 

14.25 

 

- 14.25 

Mr. Narendra 

Thakkar 

- 0.75 0.75 

Ms. Deepali 

Malpani 

- 0.60 0.60 

Mr. Himanshu 

Rampal Chokhda 

- 0.75 0.75 

 

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company does not have any stock option scheme for 

its Directors or employees. 

 

5. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

 

(a) Location, date and time of Annual General Meetings held during the last 3 years and 

special resolutions passed: 

 

Financial 

year  

ended 

Day/Date 

of AGM 

Time Location Special  

Resolution 

31st March, 

2024 

Saturday, 

21st 

September, 

2024 

11:00 

A.M. 

Through Video 

Conferencing (VC) 

/Other Audio-Visual 

Means (OAVM) 

(Deemed Venue: Plot 

No. 5015, Phase-

4IV, Ramol Char 

Rasta GIDC, Vatva, 

Ahmedabad 382445) 

1. Appointment of Mrs. 

Rashi Tirth Mehta 

(DIN: 10697866) as a 

Managing Director of 

the Company 

 

2. Approval of 

remuneration of Mrs. 

Rashi Tirth Mehta 

(DIN: 10697866) being 

Managing Director of 

the Company 
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3. To approve the 

dilution of the 

company's 

shareholding, partially, 

in its material 

subsidiary i.e. 

Chandanpani Private 

Limited 

31st March, 

2023 

Saturday, 

30th 

September, 

2023 

11:00 

A.M. 

Through Video 

Conferencing (VC) 

/Other Audio-Visual 

Means (OAVM) 

(Deemed Venue: Plot 

No. 5015, Phase-

4IV, Ramol Char 

Rasta GIDC, Vatva, 

Ahmedabad 382445) 

1. Regularisation of 

Additional Director Ms. 

Deepali Malpani (Din: 

10296034) as Non-

Executive Independent 

Director of the 

Company 

 

2. Regularisation of 

additional director Mr. 

Himanshu Rampal 

Chokhda (DIN: 

07975409) as Non- 

Executive Independent 

Director of the 

Company 

 

3. Authority to the 

Board of Directors to 

make Loans, Give 

Guarantees and make 

Investments in other 

bodies corporate 

 

4. Approval under 

Section 180(1)(A) of 

Companies Act, 2013 

 

5. Approval under 

Section 180(1)(C) of 

Companies Act, 2013 

31st March, 

2022 

Friday, 30th 

September, 

2022 

11:00 

A.M. 

At the Registered 

office of the 

Company at Plot No. 

5015, Phase-4IV, 

1. Re-Appointment of 

Tirth U. Mehta (DIN: 

02176397) as a 
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Ramol Char Rasta 

GIDC, Vatva, 

Ahmedabad 382445 

Managing Director of 

the Company 

 

(b) The Details of special resolution passed last year through postal ballot and details of 

voting pattern: 

 

During the period under review, no special resolution was passed last year through postal 

ballot. 

 

(c) Person who conducted the Postal Ballot exercise: 

 

During the period under review, no special resolution was passed last year through postal 

ballot, therefore there was no requirement of Scrutinizer to conduct the Postal Ballot 

exrecise. 

 

(d) Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: 

 

No Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot as on the date of 

this report. 

 

(e) Procedure for Postal Ballot: 

 

Postal Ballot Notice (“Notice”) containing the proposed resolution(s) and explanatory 

statement pursuant to Section 102 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, are 

sent electronically to all the members whose email address is registered with the 

Company/their Depository Participant. Further, the Company also gives option to the 

members to cast their vote electronically. The votes cast on the e-voting platform within 

specified time are considered by the Scrutinizer. The Scrutinizer submits his report to the 

Chairman and the results of the voting by Postal Ballot is declared/announced by the 

Chairman or any other person authorised by him. The results are also displayed on the 

Company’s website (www.unisongroup.net) besides being communicated to the stock 

exchanges. 

 

6. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

 

(a) The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results are published in Free Press – English 

circulating in whole of Gujarat and Lokmitra – Gujarati (i.e. daily newspaper published in 

the language of the region where the registered office of the company is situated). 

 

(b) The quarterly results are submitted to the Stock Exchanges, wherein the equity shares of the 

company are listed and traded. 

 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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(c) The Company’s website www.unisongroup.net contains separate section for Investors 

where information for shareholders is made available. The Annual Report, Shareholding 

Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, and other communiqué of the Company are also 

available on the website in a user-friendly manner. 

 

7. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

 

The Company is registered in the State of Gujarat having Corporate Identification Number (CIN) 

as allotted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) as L52100GJ1990PLC013964. 

 

(a) Annual General Meeting: 

 

Day and Date Monday, 29th September, 2025 

Time 11:00 A.M. 

Venue 
At the Registered office of the Company at Plot No. 5015, Phase-4, 

Ramol Char Rasta GIDC, Vatva, Ahmedabad 382445. 

 

(b) Financial year: 

 

The Company follows period of 01st April to 31st March as its Financial Year. Financial 

results will be declared for the financial year 2025-26 as per the following schedule: 

 

Particulars Tentative schedule 

Quarterly unaudited results 

June 30, 2025 On or before August 14, 2025 

September 30, 2025 On or before November 14, 2025 

December 31, 2025 On or before February 14, 2025 

Annual audited result 

March 31, 2026 On or before May 30, 2026 

  

(c) Dividend Payment Date: 

 

Director of the company has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended on 

31st March, 2025. 

 

(d) Listing on Stock Exchanges: 

 

The Company’s Equity Shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), P. J. Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai 400001. 

 

The annual listing fees for the year 2024-25, as applicable, has been paid to the stock 

exchanges. 

 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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(e) In case the securities are suspended from trading, the Directors Report shall explain 

the reason thereof: Not Applicable 

 

(f) Registrar to an issue and share transfer agents: 

 

Share Registrar and Transfer Agent: MUFG INTIME INDIA PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Link Intime India Pvt. 

Ltd.) 

Address:  5th Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business 

Centre-1, (ABC-1), Beside Gala Business 

Centre, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Road, Off 

C.G.Road, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380006 

SEBI registration number: INR000004058 

Ph. No.: 079 26465179 

Email: ahmedabad@in.mpms.mufg.com  

Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com 

 

(g) Share Transfer System: 

 

Trading in equity shares of the Company through recognized Stock Exchanges can be done 

only in dematerialised form. 

 

(h) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2025: 

 

Distribution of shareholding of fully paid up equity shares of face value of ₹ 10/- each, as 

on 31st March, 2025. 

 

Sr. 

No.  

Shares Range No. of 

Shareholders 

% of Total 

Shareholders 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

Shareholding 

1. 01 to 500 8870 84.23 8,56,998 5.35 

2. 501 to 1000 740 7.03 6,05,968 3.78 

3. 1001 to 2000 368 3.49 5,64,960 3.53 

4. 2001 to 3000 132 1.25 3,36,006 2.10 

5. 3001 to 4000 89 0.85 3,22,679 2.01 

6. 4001 to 5000 103 0.98 4,96,036 3.10 

7. 5001 to 10000 111 1.05 8,19,097 5.11 

8. 10001 and above 118 1.12 1,20,19,256 75.02 

 TOTAL 10,531 100.00 1,60,21,000 100.00 

 

(i) Pattern of Shareholding: 
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Category No. of Shares % of total no. of shares 

Promoters & Promoter 

Group 

82,68,434 51.61 

Public Shareholding 

Individuals - Resident 

Individual holding nominal 

share capital up to Rs. 2 

lakhs. 

45,79,732 28.59 

Individuals - Resident 

individual holding nominal 

share capital in excess of Rs. 

2 lakhs. 

22,67,033 14.15 

Investor Education and 

Protection Fund (IEPF) 

5,74,000 3.58 

Non Resident Indians 

(NRIs) 

1,26,193 0.79 

Bodies Corporate 30,585 0.19 

Any Other 

Hindu Undivided Family 1,69,874 1.06 

LLP 2,649 0.02 

Unclaimed or Suspense or 

Escrow Account  

2,500 0.01 

TOTAL 1,60,21,000 100.00 

 

(j)  Dematerialisation of shares and Liquidity: 

 

As on March 31, 2025, except 14,81,100 equity shares, all the equity shares of the Company 

are held in dematerialised form with NSDL and CDSL. The details are as under: 

 

Sr. No. Description No. of Shares % of Shares 

1. CDSL 41,09,071 25.65 

2. NSDL 1,04,30,829 65.11 

3. Physical 14,81,100 9.24 

 TOTAL 1,60,21,000 100.00 

 

(k) Outstanding GDRS / ADRS / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion 

date and likely impact on equity: NIL 

 

(l) Plant Locations: 

 

Plot no 5015, Phase IV, Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva, Ahmedabad 382445. 

 

(m)Address for correspondence: 
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In case of any problem or query, shareholders can contact at: 

 

(i) Registered/ Corporate Office: Unison Metals Limited; 

Address: Plot No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 

382445; 

Phone No.: 079 25841512 

Email: unisonmetals@gmail.com 

Website: www.unisongroup.net  

 

(ii) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent: Mufg Intime India Private Limited (Formerly 

Known As Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.);  

Address: 5th Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Centre-1, (ABC-1), Beside Gala 

Business Centre, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Road, Off C.G.Road, Ellisbridge, 

Ahmedabad-380006; 

Phone No.: 079 26465179 

Email: ahmedabad@in.mpms.mufg.com 

Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com 

 

(iii) Compliance Officer: Mitaliben Ritesh Patel; 

Address: Plot No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 

382445; 

Phone No.: 079 25841512 

Email: secretary@unisongroup.net  

 

(n) List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during 

the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit 

programme or any scheme or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilisation of 

funds, whether in India or abroad: Not Applicable 

 

8. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

 

(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have 

potential conflict with the interest of Company at large:  

 

There were no material related party transactions during the year 2024-25 that may have a 

potential conflict with the interest of the Company as provided under Section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. The Company has 

entered into some transactions with related parties as defined under Section 2(76) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, which were in the ordinary course of business and at arms’ length 

basis and the same were duly approved or reviewed by the Audit Committee.  
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The necessary disclosures regarding the transactions with related parties are given in the 

notes to the financial statements. The policy on dealing with related party transactions is 

disclosed on the Company’s website at the www.unisongroup.net. 

 

(b) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the 

Company by Stock Exchange or the Board or any statutory authority on any matter 

related to capital markets during the last three years: 

 

During the year under review, there were no instance of non-compliance nor were any 

penalties or strictures imposed by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authority 

on any matter related to capital markets. However, following submissions were made 

inadvertently for which BSE issued notice:  

i. BSE issued a notice dated 04th November, 2024 with regards to non-compliance of: 

Company Names (Shelja Finlease Pvt Ltd & Meghjyoti Impex Private Limited) 

wrongly shown in Individuals/Hindu undivided Family (Promoter), it should be 

show in respective Category. 

ii. BSE issued a notice dated 02th September, 2024 with regards to non-compliance 

of: Financial result is not signed by the chairperson or managing director, or a whole 

time director or in the absence of all, other authorized director. Company is 

requested to confirm compliance of Regulation 33(2)(b) (If Financial Results is 

signed by authorized director, kindly Submit certified copy of the resolution passed 

by BOD in the meeting) for Quarter Ended - June 2024. 

iii. BSE issued a notice dated 17th March, 2025 with regards to non-compliance of: 

Consolidated Results - Limited Review Report is not as per SEBI prescribed Format 

(Refer SEBI circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019 dated March 29, 2019). Submit 

Limited Review Report as per the prescribed format. (Point not 4 not given) for 

Quarter Ended - December 2024. 

 

During the financial year 2023-24, following were the non-compliances for which penalties 

and strictures imposed on the Company by BSE: 

i. The Company has received notices from the BSE Limited who had imposed a fine 

of Rs. 1,93,520/- plus GST at the rate of 18% for non-complying with the 

Regulation 18(1) for the quarter ended September, 2023 on completion of 

Independent Director as per the requirement under Regulation 18(1) and 

19(1)/19(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, for the constitution of audit committee 

and nomination and remuneration committee for the quarter ended 30th September, 

2023. Accordingly, the said imposed fine was paid by the Company to BSE 

Limited. 

ii. BSE Limited also imposed fine of Rs. 23,600/- plus GST at the rate of 18% for not 

making disclosure of Related Party Transactions within fifteen days from the date 

of publication of its standalone and consolidated financial result for the half year 

ended on 30th September, 2023. Accordingly, the said imposed fine was paid by 

the Company to BSE Limited. 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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During the financial year 2022-23, following were the non-compliances for which penalties 

and strictures imposed on the Company by BSE: 

i. The Company has received notices from the BSE Limited who had imposed a fine 

of Rs. 12,000/- plus GST at the rate of 18% for non-complying with the Regulation 

18(1) for the quarter ended March, 2022 on non-appointment of Independent 

Director as per the requirement under Regulation 18(1) and 19(1)/19(2) of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, for the constitution of audit committee and nomination and 

remuneration committee for the quarter ended 31st March, 2022. Accordingly, the 

said imposed fine was paid by the Company to BSE Limited. 

ii. BSE Limited also imposed fine of Rs. 5,000/- plus GST at the rate of 18% for not 

making disclosure of Related Party Transactions within fifteen days from the date 

of publication of its standalone and consolidated financial result for the half year 

ended on 30th September, 2022. Accordingly, the said imposed fine was paid by 

the Company to BSE Limited. 

 

(c) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy and affirmation that 

no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee: 

 

In terms of Regulation 22 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177(9) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a 

formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical 

behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics 

policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who 

avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit 

Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

 

(d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-

mandatory requirements: 

 

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Regulation 34(3) read with 

Schedule V of the Listing Regulations. Disclosure of Compliance of Non-mandatory 

requirements as specified in Part E of the Schedule II of Listing Regulations are as under: 

 

Shareholder’s Right: The quarterly and half-yearly financial performance along with 

significant events are published in the newspapers and are also hosted on the Company’s 

website and the same are also emailed to the shareholders who have registered their email 

ids with the Company. 

 

Audit Qualification: There is an Unqualified opinion on Audit Report of Audited 

Standalone Financial Results ended on 31st March, 2025 and Qualified opinion on Audit 

Report of Consolidated Financial Results ended on 31st March, 2025. 
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Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Company’s Internal Auditor, reports directly to the 

Audit Committee. 

 

(e) Web link where policy on dealing with Material Subsidiaries: 

 

The Company has formulated a policy for determining material subsidiary which is 

available on the website of the Company www.unisongroup.net. 

 

(f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transaction: 

 

The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with related party transaction which is 

available on the website of the Company www.unisongroup.net. 

 

(g) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 

 

The Company have receivable of foreign exchange and hedged through Commodity 

derivatives. 

 

(h) Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): 

 

During the year, there were no funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutions placement. 

 

(i) Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding Non-debarment and Non-

Disqualification of Directors: 

 

The Company has obtained the Certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary regarding 

compliance with the provisions relating to corporate governance laid down in Part E of 

Schedule V to the SEBI LODR Regulations along with Certificate to the effect that none of 

the Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as Director of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

These Certificate(s) are annexed to the Board’s Report and will be sent to the stock 

exchanges, along with the Annual Report to be filed by the Company. 

 

(j) Confirmation by the Board of Directors’ Acceptance of Recommendation of 

Mandatory Committees: 

 

During the year, there were no such instances of non-acceptance by the Board of Directors 

of any mandatory recommendations made by the Committees. 

 

http://www.unisongroup.net/
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(k) Total fee paid to Statutory Auditors: 

 

Total fees paid by the Company for the services rendered by the statutory auditor and to all 

the entities in network firm/network entity belonging to them, is Rs. 3.13 Lakhs. 

 

(l) Disclosure pertaining to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars No. of Complaints 

1. Number of complaints filed during the financial 

year 2024-25 

NIL 

2. Number of complaints disposed of during the 

financial year 2024-25 

NIL 

3. Number of complaints pending as at end of the 

financial year 2024-25 

NIL 

 

(m) Disclosure with respect to ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 

firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount: 

 

Details of loans and advances given to firms/companies in which directors are interested, if 

any, is mentioned in Note: 28 of Related Party transactions forming part of Financial 

Statements.  

 

(n) Details  of  material  subsidiaries  of  the  listed  entity;  including  the  date and  place  

of  incorporation  and  the  name  and  date  of  appointment  of  the statutory auditors 

of such subsidiaries: 

 

The details of material subsidiaries, during the financial year 2024-25, are given below: 

 

Name of 

Material 

Subsidiary 

Date of 

Incorporation 

Place of 

Incorporation 

Name of 

Statutory 

Auditors 

Date of 

Appointment of 

Statutory Auditors 

Chandanpani 

Limited 

(Formerly known 

as Chandanpani 

Private Limited) 

May 02, 2018 Ahmedabad, 

Gujarat 

Purushottam 

Khandelwal 

& Co. 

November 20, 2023 

  

9. DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO (I) OF 

SUB-REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION 46 ARE AS FOLLOWS: 
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The 

Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements except as mentioned in the Secretarial 

Audit Report annexed as Annexure II forming part of the Board Report specified in Regulations 17 

to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub–regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the listing regulations to the 

extent as applicable with regards to Corporate Governance. 

 

10. DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED 

SUSPENSE ACCOUNT: 

 

The Company does not have any shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense 

account. 

 

11. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION: 

 

In terms of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, the 

Managing Director and the Chief Finance Officer of the Company is required to issue annual 

certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board. The certificate for financial 

year 2024-25 given by the Managing Director and the Chief Finance Officer is annexed to this 

Report. 

 

12. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE: 

 

Certificate from M/s. G R Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, confirming 

compliances with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing 

Regulations is annexed to this Report. 

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD      By Order of the Board 

DATE: 04.09.2025       For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

 

 

       Sd/- 

   ____________________ 

   Rashi Tirth Mehta 

   Managing Director 

        DIN: 10697866 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To, 

The Members, 

UNISON METALS LTD 

Plot No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta,  

GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445 

 

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Unison Metals Limited for 

the purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as prescribed under 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing 

Regulations”) for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025. I have obtained all the information and 

explanations, which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of 

certification. 

 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 

examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 

expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to us and 

representation made by the management, I certify that the Company has complied with all the 

mandatory conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses 

(b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and Paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, 

during the year ended on March 31, 2025. 

 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

                                                                                                            

For, G R Shah & Associates 

        Company Secretaries 

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD     Sd/- 

DATE: 30-08-2025      _________________________ 

        [GAURANG SHAH] 

        PROPRIETOR 

Mem NO.: F12870 

COP. NO.: 14446        

UDIN NO: F012870G001120262 

        Peer Review No.: 6653/2025  
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION 

OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

To, 

The Members, 

UNISON METALS LTD 

Plot No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta,  

GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445. 

 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 

Directors of Unison Metals Limited having CIN: L52100GJ1990PLC013964 and having registered 

office at Plot No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta, GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445, (hereinafter 

referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 

Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 

Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015.  

 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 

explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors 

on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending  on 31st March, 2025 have 

been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory 

Authority.  

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director  DIN Date of appointment in 

Company * 

1 Maheshbhai Vishandas Changrani 00153615 16/11/2010 

2 Rashi Tirth Mehta 10697866 08/07/2024 

3 Tirth Uttam Mehta 02176397 31/07/2010 

4 Narendra Thakkar 09620772 30/05/2022 

5 Deepali Malpani 10296034 28/08/2023 

6 Himanshu Rampal Chokhda 07975409 28/08/2023 

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal. 

 

 

http://www.mca.gov.in/
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company.  

     

 For, G R Shah & Associates 

        Company Secretaries 

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD     Sd/- 

DATE: 30-08-2025      _________________________ 

        [GAURANG SHAH] 

        PROPRIETOR 

Mem NO.: F12870 

COP. NO.: 14446        

UDIN NO: F012870G001120240 

        Peer Review No.: 6653/2025 
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DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

Declaration on Compliance with Code of Conduct under Regulation 26(3) Of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  

 

Pursuant to Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, all the Board Members and the Senior Management Group of the Company have 

affirmed compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Board Members & Senior 

Management of Union Metals Ltd for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025. 

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD     For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

DATE: 04.09.2025     

 

 

      Sd/-      

____________________ 

Rashi Tirth Mehta 

Managing Director 

DIN: 10697866           
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION 

 

To, 

The Board of Directors, 

UNISON METALS LTD 

Plot No 5015, Phase 4, Ramol Char Rasta,  

GIDC, Vatva Ahmedabad 382445. 

 

We hereby certify to the Board that: 

 

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended 

on March 31, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading; 

 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

B. There are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the financial year which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the Company’s Code of 

Conduct. 

 

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining 

to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies 

in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps 

we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee: 

 

1. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the financial year; 

 

2. Significant changes in accounting policies during the financial year and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
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3. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if 

any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal 

control system over financial reporting. 

      

PLACE: AHMEDABAD   By Order of the Board                            

DATE: 04.09.2025    For, UNISON METALS LIMITED 

 

 

    Sd/-     Sd/- 

________________________ ____________________ 

Roshan Gulabchand Bothra Rashi Tirth Mehta 

Chief Finanical Officer  Managing Director 

     DIN: 10697866 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CA\ Purushottam Khandelwal & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

INDIA 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To t he Members of 

Unison Metals Limited 

Report on the Audit of t he Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standa lone financial statements of Unison Metals Limi ted (the 

"Company") wllich comprise the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the 

standalon e statement 0 1 profit and loss (including other compreh ensive income), standalone 

statement of changes in equ ity and sta nda lone statement of cash f lows for the year then 

ended, and not es to the sta nda lone fi nancia l statements, including material accoun ting 

policies and other explanatory information . 

In our opinion and to the best of our in formation and according to the expla na tions given to 

us, the aforesaid standalone fina ncial statements give the information requ ired by the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the manner so requ ired and give a true and fair view in 

conform ity w ith the accounting principles generally accepted in Ind ia, of the state of affa irs 

of the Com pany as at March 31, 2025, and its profit and oth er comprehensive income, 

changes in equ ity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opi nion 

We conducred our audit in accordan ce with the Standards on Audit ing (SAs) specified under 

Section 143(10) of the Act. Ou r respons ibili t ies under those SAs are further described in the 

Aud ito r's Responsib ilities for the Audit of th e Standalone Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance w ith the Code of Ethics issued by 

the Inst itute of Chartered Accou ntants of India together with th e eth ical requirements that 

are relevan t to our audit o f the standalone financ ial sta teme nts under the provisions of the 

Act and th e lIules thereunder, and we hdve fulf illed our other ethical responsibilit ies in 

accordance with these requ irements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that th e aud it 

eviden ce obta ined is sufficient and appropriate to pro v i ~e a basis for our opinion on the 

standalone fin ancia l statements. 

Key Aud it Matter 

Key audit mot ters are Lil ose motters th dt, in our professional judgment, were 01 most 

sign ificance in our audit of the sta nda lone rina ncial state ments of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our aud it of the standalone financial statements as 

Head Office: 216, Madhupura Vyapar Bhawan, Near Gunj Bazar, Madhupura, Ahmedabad-380004. 

Tel. : 079-22164423, Mobile: +91-98250 20844, Email : office@pkhandelwal.com, phkhandelwal@rediffmail.com, Website : www.phkhandelwal.com 



The Key Audit iVlatter --=rHow the matter was addressed in ou"r a-;;d;t 
Revenue Recognition - Refer Note 19 of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. 

Revenue is recognised when sign if icant risk Our audit procedures incl uded: 
and rewards of ownersh ip of t he products • Assess ing the appropriateness of the 
have passed to customers and it is measured 
at the fair val ue of the cons ideration 
received or receivable, ne t of returns and 
allowances, trade discounts and volu me 
rebates. 

Owing to the variety of products, markets, 
product specifications, credit terms, delivery 
te rms and other terms of supply, discounts 
and volume related co ncessions, the 

product pri cing, recognition and 

measurement of revenue involves a 

signi ficant amount of 
judgement and est im ation. 

management 

Therefore, there is a risk o f reve nue being 

miss tated "s" resu lt o f I"ulty judgements or 
estimations. The re is al so a r isk of revenue 
being overstated due to fraud resu lting from 

the pressure on management to achi eve 

perfo rmance ta rgets at the reporting date. 

revenue recogn ition accounting 
policies, by compari ng with 
applicable accou nting sta nda rds. 

• Pe rforming su bsta nt ive t es ting 

• 

(includ ing yea r- end cut-off testing) 
by se lecting samp les of revenue 

transact ion s recorded duri ng the 
year (and be fore and after the 
financial year end) by verifyi ng the 

underl ying documents, which 

included sa les invo ices/contracts 
and shipping documents. 

Compa ri ng the hi storica l Sa les Price 

to current trends. We also 
co nsidered the historica l accu ra cy of 

th e Company's estimates in previous 

years. 

• Seeking management explanations 

and just ifi cat ion s in specifi c cases 
an d examining and evaluating them i 
wi th ava ilab le documentary 
ev idences wherever comidered ; 

necessa ry 

• Eva luat ing the adeq uacy of the 
I Com pany's d isclosures in k----- respect of revenu e. 

Suspension of manufacturing operations of Co ld Rolled Patta-Patt i Plant - Refer Not e 2.3 

of the Standalone Ind AS Fi nancial Statements. 

Our audit of the Financial Statemen ts for the 

year ending 31st March, 2025 included the 

eva luation of t he Account ing Treat men t and 
disclosure of assets cla ss ified as "Held for 

Sal e", which have not been sold within one 

year from the classi fi cation date. The assets 

in question have not been sold w ithin the 

expected timeframe due to lim ited 

avai lab il ity of buyers in the market, primaril y 

attributed to the high vulu e and special ized 

nature of th e assets . 

Our aud it procedures included: 

• Eva luating the rat ionale and 
support ing docum entat ion decision i 
to class ify these assets as held for I 
management's for sale despite the 

absence of potentia l buyers with in I 
one year an d assess ing whether the 

decision was we ll -founded, 

consideri ng factors such as ma rket i 
I 



Our audit procedures revea led that 
managem ent's decision to classify the assets 
as held for sale, even though 
a sal e within one year was not feas ible due 
to limited availab il ity of buyers, was 
su pported by appropriate justi ficat ions. The 
market condition s and specialized nature of 
the assets were cons istent cha llenges 
encountered in attracting potent ial buyers. 

We confirmed that the fa ir va lue 

determination was appropriately 
co nducted, taking into account the unique 

circumstances surrounding the assets. 
Additi onall y, the related disclosures were 

found to be in and transparent 

comprehensive co mmunicati ng the reasons 
for the delayed sale and the potentia l 

impact on the entity's operations. 

conditions, historica l sales data, and 
expert opinions. 

• Examining whether management 
conducted ma rket research to 
ident ify potent ial buye rs and to 
assess the feas ibi lity of sa le w ithin 
the designated time frame as wel l 
as determining the cred ibility o f the 
reasons provided for the lack of 
availab le buyers. 

• Reviewi ng the methodologies 
employed by management to 
determine the fair va lue less costs to 
sell relevant to the specialized 

nature of the assets and li mited 
buyer availa bility and verifi ed the 

inputs used in the va lua tion process 

and t heir alignment with market 

data and expert opinions. 

• Assessing w heth er the sa le is 
ant icipated to qu alify for recogn ition 

as a completed sa le within the 

stipulated t ime frame prov ided in 

Ind AS. 

• Eva luat ing whether t he assets 
class ified as held for sale are 
measured at lower of its carrying 

amount or fai r valu e less costs to sell 
and whether furth er impairment 1055 

to be provided or not in accordance 

w ith Ind AS-36 Impairment of Assets. 

• Reviewing the disclosures in the 
financia l statements related to the 

classi ficati on of assets as held for 
sa le and not so ld withi n one year and I 

evaluating the reasons for the delay 
in &a le, potential impact on the 

ent ity's operations, and the 

uncerta inties su rround ing the timing 
of sa le are accu rately and adequately 

communicated to users of the 

financ ial statements. 

• Evaluating whether the uudit 
procedures appli ed provi des a 

reasonab le level assurance on the 

accoun t ing treatment and disclosure 

of these for Sa le" --' 



Other Information 

despite the extended timeframe, are 
in accord ance with the appl icab le 
framework fin ancia l reporting 
specificall y IND AS. 

The Company's M anagement and Board of Directors are responsible for the other 

info rmation . The other information co mpri ses the informa tion included in the Company' s 

an nual report, but does not include the financial statements and auditor's re ports thereon. 

Ou r op inion on the sta ndalone fina ncial statements does not cover the other informati on and 

we do not express any form of assu rance concl us ion th ereon. 

In connect ion with ou r aud it of the st and alone f in ancial state ments, our responsibility is to 

read the other informat ion and, in doing so, consider w hether the other info rmat ion is 

mate ria lly in co nsistent with the standa lone financial sta tements or our knowledge obtained 

in the audit or otherwise appears to be materi ally misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conc lude tha t t here is a material mi sstatement of th is other in fo rmat ion, we 

are requ ired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in thi s rega rd. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial 

Statements 

The Company's Managemen t and Board of Directors are responsib le for the matters stated 

in Section 134(5) of the Act w ith respect to the prepara t ion of these stan dalone fina ncia l 

statements tha t give a true and fa ir view of the st at e of affairs, profit/ loss and other 

co mprehensive inco me, changes in equity an d cash flows of the Co mpany in accordance w ith 

the accounting princip les generally accepted in In dia, includ ing th e Ind ian Account ing 

Standards (Ind AS) speci fied under Sect ion 133 of the Act. Thi s respons ibi li ty also includes 

maintenance of adequate accou nt ing records in accordance w ith the prov isions of t he Act for 

safeguarding of the asse ts of the Company and for preve nting an d detecting fra uds an d other 

irregu larities; select ion and appli ca ti on of appropria te accounting policies; making judgments 

and es ti mates that are reasonabl e an d pru dent; and deSign, implementat ion and 

maintenance of adequate inte rnal fin ancial cont rol s, t hat were operat ing effective ly for 

ensuring th e accuracy and co mpl eteness of the accou nt ing records, re levant to the 

preparation an d presenta t ion of the standalone financia l sta tem ents that give a t rue and fair 

view and are free from mute rial misstatement, wh ether due to fraud or erro r. In prepa ring 

the standa lone f inancial stateme nts, the M anagement and Board of Directors are responsible 

fo r assess ing the Company's abil ity to cont inue as a going conce rn , disclosing, as appl ica ble, 

mat ters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of account ing unless the 

Boa rd o f Directo rs either in tends to liquid ate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 

realisti c alterna t ive but to do so . 

The Boa rd of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repo rting 

process. 



Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Ou r objectives are to obtain reasonable assu rance about wheth er the sta ndalon e financia l 

sta tements as a whole are free from materia l misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

and to issue an auditor' s report that includes our opin ion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 

of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an aud it conducted in accordance w ith SAs wil l 

always detect a materi al misstatement when it exists. M isstatements can arise from fraud or 

error and are considered materia l if , individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to in fluence the econom ic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

sta ndalone fina ncial statements. 

As part of an aud it in accorda nce with SAs, we exerci se pro fessi ona l judgement and maintai n 

professional skepti cism throughout the aud it. We also: 

• Identify and assess the r isks of material misstatement of the standa lone financial 

statemen ts, whether due to frau d or error, design and perform audit procedu res 

responsive to those risks, and obtai n audit ev idence that is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide" bas is fo r our op inion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

co llusion, forgery, intent iona l omiss ions, misrepresentat ions, or the override of 

internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal contro l relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures tha t are appropriate in the ci rcumstances . Under Section 143(3)(i ) 

of the Ac t, we arc also responsible for express ing ou r opinion on whether th e com pany 

has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place 

and the operating effect iveness of such contro ls. 

• Eva luate the appropriateness of account ing pol icies used and the reasonab leness of 

account ing estimates and related disclosures made by th e Management and Boa rd of 

Directors . 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of 

the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of standa lone l inancia l 

statements and, based on the audit evidence obta ined, w hether a material 

uncertainty exists re lated to events or cond itions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company's ability to cont inue as a going concern. If we conclude that a materia l 

uncertainty ex ists, we are required to draw atten'tion in ou r auditor's report to the 

related disclosures in the standalon e financia l statements or, if such disclosu res are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclu sions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or cond it ions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Eva luate the overall presentat ion, structure and content of t he standalone financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standa lon e financ ial 

statements represent th e underlying t ransactions and events in a manner that 

ach ieves fair presentation. 



We communicate with th ose charged with govern ance rega rdin g, among other matters, t he 

planned scope and timing of the aud it and significant audit f indings, including any significant 

defic iencies in internal contro l that we id entify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with govern ance with a statement that we have comp lied with 

re levant ethi ca l requirements regard ing independence, and to communicate w ith them al l 

relationships and oth er mat ters that may reason ably be though t . to bear on ou r 

in dependence, and w here applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communica ted with those charged w ith governance, we determin e those 

matters that were of most significa nce in the audit of the sta ndal one fin ancia l statements o f 

th e current period and are therefore th e key audi t matters . We describe these matlers in our 

au di to r's repor t unless law or regulation precl udes public discl osure about th e matter or 

when, in ex tremely rare circumsta nces, we determin e that a matter should no t be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on other Legal and Regu latory Requirements 

1. As requi red by the Co mpanies (Aud itors' lIeport) Order, 2020 ("the Ord er") issu ed by 

the Central Government of India in te rms of Section 143{1l) of the Ac t, we give in th e 

"Annexure A" a statement on t he matters spec if ied in paragraph s 3 and 4 of th e Order, 

to t he extent applicable 

2. A. As requ ired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report th at : 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and exp lanations wh ich to th e 

best o f our knowledge and belief were necessary for t he purposes of our audit. 

b) In our op inion, proper books of account as requ ired by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appea rs from ou r examination of those books. 

c) Th e standalon e balance sheet, the standa lone statement of pro fit and loss 

(including other comprehen sive income), the stan dalone statement of ch anges in 

equity und the stand alone statement of cash flows dealt w ith by th is Report are in 

agreement with the books of acco unt. 

d) In our op inion, the aforesa id standalone f inancial statements comply w ith the Ind 

AS specified under Sect ion 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the w ritten representat ions received from t he directors as on May 

02, 2025 taken on record by the Boa rd of Directors, non e of the directors is 

disqualified as on M arch 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms or 

Section 164(2) 01 the Ac t. 

n The modification re lating to the ma intenance of accou nts and other matters 

connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2A{b) above on reporting 

under Sect ion 143(3){b) and paragraph 2B{f) be low on report ing under Rul e ll{g) 

of the Compa nies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 



g) With respect to the adequacy 0 1' th e internal financ ial co ntrols w ith reference to 

financial statements of the Company and the operat ing effect iveness of such 

cont rol s, refer to our sepa rate Report in "Annexu re B". 

B. With respect to the other matters to be inclu ded in the Aud itors' Report in 

accordance w ith Ru le 11 of the Compan ies (Aud it and Aud itors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opinion and to the bes t of ou r in formati on and accord ing to th e expla nat ions given to 

us: 

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigat ions as at March 31, 2025 

on its financ ial posit ion in it s standa lone financial st atements 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts includ ing derivative contracts 

for which there were any mater ial foreseea bl e losses. 

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, requ ired to be transferred, to 

the Inves tor Education and Protection Fund by the Compa ny. 

d. (i) The ma nagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no fun ds have been advanced or loaned or invested (ei ther from borrowed fu nds 

or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 

Jny other person(s) or en ti ty(ies), including fore ign entities ("I ntermediaries")' 

with the unders tandin g, wh ether recorded in writing or otherwise, tha t the 

Intermedia ry shall direct ly or ind irect ly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of th e Company ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on beha lf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The managernent has represented that, to the best of its kn owledge and bel ief, 

no fund s have been received by th e Company from any person(s) or enLily(ies), 

including foreign entit ies ("Fund ing Part ies"), w ith the und ersta nding, whethel 

record ed in w riting or otherw ise, t hat the Com pa ny shall di rect ly or indirectly, 

lend or invest in other persons or ent it ies ident if ied in any mann er whatsoever by 

or on behalf of the Funding Part ies ("Ultimate Beneficiari es") or provide any 

t;umalllee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul tim <lle Ben efici<l ri es. 

(iii) Based on the aud it procedures performed that have been con sidered 

reasonable and appropriate in the circums tances, nothing has come to our notice 

that has caused us to believe that the representat ions under su b-cl ause (i) and (ii) 

of Ru le l1(e), as provided under (i) and j ii ) above, conta in any mater ia l 

misstatement. 

e. The company has not declared and pa id any dividend during th e year under 

Icview. 

f. Based on our exam inat ion which included lesl check s, the Compa ny has used 

accounting software for main tai ning its books of account which has a fealure of 

recording audit t rail (ed it log) faci li ty and the sa me has operated throughout th e 

year for all relevant transact ions recorded in t he respecti ve software. Further, 

where audit t rai l (edit log) fa ci lity was enabled and operated throughout the year 

n 



for the accounting so ftware, we did not come across any instance of the aud it trai l 

featu re being tampered with. 

e. W ith respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Sect ion 

197(16) of the Act: 

In our opinion and accord ing to the informat ion and explanat ions given to us, the 

remune rat ion paid by t he Co mpany to its di rectors du ri ng t he cu rrent year is in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act . The remu neration pa id to 

any di rector is not in excess ' of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. Th e 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) 

of the Act wh ich are required to be co mm ented upon by us. 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date: May 30, 2025 

For Purush ottam Khande lwal and Co 
Chartered A ccounta nts 

FRN: 0123825W 

CA Mah endras ingh S Rao 
Pa rtne r 

Membersh ip No : 154239 
UDI N: 2515429 BMGYXU5 365 



Annexure A 

to the Ind ependent Auditors' Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of Unison 

Metals Limited fo r t he year ended March 31, 2025. 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requi rements' 

section of our report of even date) 

(i) (a) Th e Company has ma in tained proper records showing fu ll particulars, including 

quantitative details and si tuation of Property, Plant and Equ ipment and capital work-in ·· 

progress. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, t he Company has a regu lar progra mme of 

physical verifi cat ion of its Property, Plant and Equ ipment by which all property, plant and 

equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accord an ce with 

this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during th e year. In ou r 

opinion, thi , periodicity of physical verification is rea,onable having regard to the size of the 

Company end th e nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on ,uch 

verification. 

(c) Accord ing to the information and expla nations given to us and on the basi s of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the tit le deeds of immovable properties (other 

than immovable propertie, where the Company i, the lessee and the leases agreements are 

du ly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalon e financial statements are 

held in the name of the Compa ny as at the balance sheet date. 

(d) According to the information and explanatio ns given to us and on the basis of our 

exam in ation of the records of the Company, the Company has not reva lued its Property, Plant 

and Equipment during th e year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ou r 

examination of th e records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pend ing 

agains t th e Company for holding any benami property under the Prohib ition of Benam i 

Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The inventory, has been physically verified by the management during the year, except 

goods-in-transit and stock lying w ith third parties. In our opini on, the frequency of such 

verification is reason able and procedures and coverage as fo llowed by management were 

appropriate. No discrepancies were not iced on verification between the physical stocks an d 

book records that were more than 10% in aggregate of each class of inventory. 

(b ) According to the information and exp lan at ions given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records cif the Company, the Company has been ,anctioned wo rking 

capital limits in excess of five crore rupe es in aggregate from banks and financial ins titutions 

on th e basis of security of current assets. As di,closed in Note 38 of Stand laon e INd As 



bank or financia l institution are not in agreement w ith th e books of account. The deta ils of 

the same are as stated below: 

(i n Lacs) 

Amount reported 

Particu lars of Amount as in t he quarterly Amount of Perce ntage 
Na m e 

As on date 
of Banl< 

Security per books of return/sta tement differe.nce of variation 

Provided account(a) submitted to (a-b) d=(c/a )*100 
bank(b) 

30/06/2024 Primary- 6465.18 5988.66 476.52 7.37 

Stock & 
30/09/ 2024 Book Debts 7259.57 6805.44 454.14 6.26 

HDFC - --
31/12/2024 Bank 

& 6712.62 6867.2 -154.59 -2. 30 
Collateral-

31/03/2025 
Land & 

8385.57 8879.77 -494.21 -5 .89 
Building 

(ii i) According to th e information and expla nations given to us and on the basis of ou r 

exam ination of th e records of the Company, the Company has made investments in and 

granted · unsecu red loans to com pan ies and other part ies, in respect of which the requisite 

information is as below. 

(a) Based on the audit procedures ca rri ed on by us and as per the information and 

explanations given to us the Compa ny has provided loans or advances in the nature or loan s 

during the year and detai ls of which are given: 

Part iculars Amoun t (in Lacs) 

Aggrega te amoun t mad e du ring the year: 

-Others 66.00 
Balallce Outstalluing as at Balance Sheet 
date in respect or the above cases : 

-Others 45.10 

Aggregate amount of gua rantee provided 
during th e year 

- to Subsidiary 3196.00 

(b) According to the inlormation and explanations given to us and based on the audit 

procedures conducted by us, we are of the op ini on that the investments made and loans given 

during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicia l to the interest of the Com pany. 

(c) Acco rdin g to t he information and explan ations given to us and on th e basis of our 

examination of the record s of the Company, in the case of loans given, the loan are repayable 

on demand. 



(d) According to the in formation and explanat ions given to us and on the basis of our 

exam inat ion of the records of t he Company, there is no ove rd ue amou nt for more than ninety 

days in respect of loans given. Fu rther, t he Company has not given any advances in the nature 

of loans to any party during the year. 

(e) According to the info l-mat ion and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examin ation of th e records of the Company, there is no loan granted falUng due during the 

year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of 

existing loans given to same pa rt ies. 

(f) In res pect of loans granted w hich are repayable on demand by the company during the 

year: 

Parti cula rs Amount --
Aggregate amoun t of loans granted 66.00 

Percentage of Aggregate loans to tota l loans 100% 

granted 

Loans granted to promoters and re lated Loan made to Shelja Fin lease Pvt Ltd 

party I -..J 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of records of the Com pany, the Company has compl ied w ith the provisions of 

section 185 and sec tion 186 of the Com pan ies act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making 

investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. 

v) The Compa ny has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 

from th e pub lic. Acco rdingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not appli ca bl e. 

(vi) Th e maintenance of cost records has been specif ied by the Central Governmen t under 

Section 148(1) of the Compan ies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records 

mainta ined by th e Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Aud it) Rules, 2014, 

as amended and prescribed by the Central Government under Sub-sect ion (1) of Sec tion 148 

of the Companies Act, 2013, and are o f the opinion that, prima facie, the prescri bed cost 

records have been made and ma inta ined. We have, however, not made a deta iled 

exam ination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are 

accurate or complet e. 

(vii) Accordin g to th e information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a) Un disputed statutory dues includ ing prov ident fu nd, employees ' state In surance, income­

tax, sal es-tax, serv ice tax, duty of custom, duty of exci se, value added ta x, cess have been 

regularly deposited by the company with the appropriate authorities in ali cases during th e 

year, except Goods and Services tax and Income Tax. Goods and Services tax and Income Tax 

have not generally been regu larly deposited by the company w ith the approp riate authorities 

though the delays in deposit have not been ser ious 



Th ere were no undisputed arnounts payable in respec t of providen t fund, ernploye,>s' state 

insuranc(2, incorne tax, cus torns duty, cess, goods and services tax and oth er rnater ia l 

sta tutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025, for a period of rnore than six rnonths frorn the 

date they becarne payable. 

(b) There are no disputed arnounts in respect of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a ) 

above an therefore reporting under su b-cl ause (b) is not appl icabl e. 

(viii) According to the inforrnat ion and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

exarn ination of the records of the Cornpany, the Co rnpany has not surrend ered or di sc losed 

any transactions, previou sly unrecord ed as in corne in the books of account, in the tax 

assessrnents under the Incorne Tax Act, 1961 as incorne during the year. 

(ix) (a) Accol ding to the inforrnat ion and explana tions given to us and on the basis of our 

exarn ination o f the records of t he Cornpany, the Cornpany has not defaulted in repayrnent of 

loans and borrowing or in the payrnent of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the inforrnat ion and explanations given to us and on the bas is of our 

exarn ination o f the records of the Corn pany, the Cornpany ha s not been declared a w ilful 

defaulter by any bank or financial inst itution or governrn en t or governrnent authorit y. 

(c) According to the in for rnation and explanations given to us by the rnanagernent, the 

Co rnpany has not ob tained any te rrn loans during the yea r. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the in fo rrnation and explanations given to us and on an overa ll examinat ion 

o f the balance sheet of the Corn pany, we report that no funds rai sed on short-terrn basis have 

been used for long-terrn purposes by the Corn pany. 

(e) According to th e in fo rrnation and explanat ions given to us and on an overa ll exarninat ion 

of the standa lone fi nancia l staternents of the Cornpany, we report that the Cornpany has not 

ta ken any funds frorn any entity or person on account of or to meet the ob ligations of its 

subsidiarie s, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act. 

(f) According to the inforrnation and expl anat ions given to us and proced ures perforrned by 

us, we report that the Corn pany has not raised loans du ring the yea r on the pledge of 

securiti es held in its subsidiari es, jo int ventures or assoc iat,e cornpan ies (as defined under th e 

Act). 

(x) (a) The Cornpany has not raised any rn oneys by way of initial public offer or fu rther pu blic 

offer (including debt instrurnents). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not ap plicab le. 

(b) Th e Cornpany has not rnade any preferential allotrn ent or private placernent of (fu lly or 

partly or optiona lly) converti ble debentures during the year. 

(xi) (a) Based on exarnination of the books and records of the Cornpany and according to t he 



Standards on Aud it ing, we report that no fraud by the Com pany or on the Company has been 

noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 

(b) Accul Liillg tu the illlul mal ion ond explaJlatiofis given to us, no report un der sub-sectio n 

(12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under 

Ru le 13 of the Compan ies (Audit and Auditors) Ru les, 2014 with the Central Govern ment. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the wh istle blower co mplain ts rece ived by the Company . 

during th e year while determining the nature, timing and extent of ou r aud it procedures. 

(xii) According to the information and expla nat ions given to us, the Company is not a Nidh i 

Company. Accordingly, clause 3(x ii ) .of the Order is not ap plicable. 

(x iii) In our op inion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us, t he 

transact ions w ith re lated parties are in comp liance with Section 177 and 188 of t he Act, where 

applicable, and the detail s of the re lated party transactions have been disclosed in the 

standalone financial statements as required by the applicab le accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in 

our opinion, the Compa ny has an intern al aud it system commensu rate w ith the size and 

nature of its bus in ess. 

(b) We have cons idered the in terna l audit reports of th e Company issued t ill date fo r the 

period under audit. 

(xv) In our opi nion and accord ing to th e information and explanat ions given to us, the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions w ith its directors or persons 

connected to its directors and hence, provis ion s of Section 192 of t he Act are not applicable 

to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) Th e Company is not requ ired to be regist ered under Section 4S- IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (a) o f the Order is not appl icab le. 

(b) The Company is not requ ired to be registe red under Sect ion 4S-IA of the Rese rve Ba nk of 

India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (b) of t he Order is not app licable. 

(c) Th e Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulati ons made 

by the Reserve Bank of India. Accord ingly, clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicab le. 

(d) The group (the Company and its subsidiory compan ies) poes not have any core investment: 

company (as defined in the core investment compan ies) (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) as 

part of the group and acco rdingly reporting under clause (xvi) (d) of t he ord er is not 

commented upon . 

(xvii) The Com pany has not incu rred cash losses in the current and in the imm ed iately 

preced ing financial year. s 

(xvi ii ) There has been res ignat ion of the statutory aud itors during the year, there were no 

issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoi ng auditors . 



(xix) Accord ing to t he in format ion and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

f inancial rat ios, ageing and expected dates of rea lisation of finan cial assets and payment of 

financi al liabilities, oth er inFormat ion accompanying the standa lone fin ancial statements, our 

knowledge of the Board of Di rectors and management plans and based on ou r examination 

of the evid ence supporting the assum ptions, noth in g has come to our attention, wh ich causes 

us to believe tha t any materia l unce rtai nty ex ists as on th e date of the audit report tha t the 

Com pany is not capab le of meeting its liab ili ties ex isti ng at the date of ba'la nce sheet as and 

when t hey fa ll du e w ithin a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 

state th at this is not an assurance as to the futu re viab ility of the Company. We furth er state 

that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 

any guar<lntoe nor any "ssurance that al l liabilities falling due within a period of one ye ilr from 

the balan ce sheet date, wi ll get discha rged by t he Company as and w hen t hey fall due. 

(xx) In ou r opinion, provisions of section 135 is not applicable to the company. Accord ingly, 

clauses 3(xx) (a) and 3(xx) (b) of the Order are not applicab le. 

(xxi) Th e auditor of the subs idiary company has qualifications in certa in clauses companies 

auditor's "eport Order !leport as per given table 

Sr No. Name 

1 Chandanpani 
Limited 

I -- J -

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: May 30, 2025 

ClN Relationship Clause 

Number of 

CARO wh ich 
is quali fied __ 

U28999GJ2018PLC102117 Subsidiary (ii)(b) 

I (vii)(a) 

(xviii) I 

For Purushottam Kh andelwa l and Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 0123B25W 



Annexure B 

to the Independent Auditors' Report on the standalone financial statements of Unison 

Metal s Limited fo r the year ended March 31, 2025 

Report on the Internal Fina ncial Contro ls with Reference to t he Aforesaid Standalone 

Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act (Referred t o 

in Paragraph 2{A){g) under 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' Section of 

our Report of Even Date) 

Opinion 

We have audited the interna l f inancial controls with reference to f inancial statem ents of 

Unison M etals Limited ("the Company") as of M arch 31, 2025 in conjunction with our aud it. 

of the standalone f inancial statements of the Company fo r the yea r ended on that date . In 

ou r opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal f inancial controls 

with referen ce to financial statements and such in~erna l f inancial controls were opera t ing 

effective ly as at March 31, 2025, based on the interna l financial co ntrols with reference to 

financi al state men ts criteria es tabl ished by the Compa ny conSidering the essentia l 

components of internal cont rol stated in the Guidance Note on Au dit of Inte rn al Financial 

Controls Over Fi nancial Reporting issued by the Inst itute of Chartered Accoun ta nts o f India 

(the "Gu idance Note") 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management and the Boa rd of Directors are responsib le for establi shing and 

maintain ing in tern al financial controls ba sed on the internal finan cial controls with reference 

to financi al statements crite ri a es tabli shed by the Com pany cons idering the esse ntia l 

components of internal cont rol stated in the Gu idance Note. These responsibil ities include 

the design , impl eme ntation and maintenance of adequate internal fin ancial control s that 

were operating effecti ve ly fo r ensu ring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including ad herence to compa ny's pol icies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preventi on and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accu ra cy and co mpleteness of the accou nting records, and 

the timely preparation of reliable financial informution, uS requ ired under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to exp ress an op ini on on th e Company's internal fin anci al control s w ith 

reference to financ ial statements based on our aud it. We conducted our aud it in accordance 

with the Guidance Note and the Sta ndards on Auditing, prescri bed und er Sect ion 143(10) of 

the Act, to the extent appl ica ble to an audit o f interna l financial contro ls with reference to 

financial statements . Those Standards and the Guidan ce Note require that we comply with 

ethica l requ irements and plan and perform the aud it to obtain reasona bl e assurance about 

w hether adequate in ternal financial cont rols w ith reference to f inancial st atemen ts were 

estab li shed and maintain ed and if such cont rol s operated effect ive ly in all mat eri al respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit ev idence about the adequacy of the 

internal fin ancial con trols with reference to financi al statements and their operating 



included obtain in g an understanding of inte rn al fin ancial co ntro ls w ith refe rence to financial 

sta tements, assessing the risk that a material wea kness exists, and testing and evaluating th e 

design and operating effectiveness of in terna l contro l based on th e assessed risk. Th e 

procedu res se lected depend on the auditor's judgement, includ ing the assessment of the risks 

of materi al misst atement of the sta ndalone financ ial statements, w hether due to fraud or 

error. We beli eve that the aud it ev idence we have obtained is suffici ent and appropriate to 

provide a basis fo r our aud it opinion on the Company's interna l financial controls with 

reference to fin ancial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's in tern al financ ia l co ntrols with reference to f inan cia l statemen ts is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assu rance regarding the reliabi lity of financial reporting and 

th e preparation of financial statements fo r external purposes in accordance with generall y 

accepted accoun t ing principles. A company's internal financ ial controls w ith reference to 

financial sta tem ents include those polic ies and procedures that (1) perta in to th e 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable deta il , accurate ly and fair ly refl ect the 

transaction s and dispOSitions of the assets of t he company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 

t hat t ransactions are recorded as necessary to perm it preparation of fi nancia l statemen ts in 

accordance wi th generally accepted accounting prin ciples, an d that receip ts and expenditu res 

of th e company are being made on ly in acco rdance w ith aut hori sa tions of managem en t an d 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonab le assurance regarding prevention or 

time ly detection of unautho rised acqu isiti on, use, or disposit ion of the compa ny's assets that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contro ls with Refe rence to Fin ancial Statements 

Because of the inherent lim itations of internal fina ncia l control s w ith reference to financia l 

statements, in cluding the possib ili ty of co llusion or imp roper management override of 

control s, material m isstatements due to erro r or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projec tions of any eva luation of the interna l financia l controls w ith reference to financia l 

sta tements to future periods are su bj ect to the risk that the interna l financial controls with 

reference to tinancial statements may become inadequate because of changes in cond itions, 

or that the degree of complia nce with the po li cies or procedu res may dete riorate. 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date: May 30 , 2025 

For Purushottam Khandelwal and Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 0123825W 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Sta nda lone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 

(Rs in lakhs) 

Particula rs Notes As at As at 
March 31 2025 Ma rch 31 2024 

ASSETS 

I . Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 2 1,422.73 1,267.43 
Capital work-in-proqress 2. 1.25 1. 25 
Non-current financial assets 

Investment 3 262.39 257.65 

Trade Receivables 5 56.56 67.87 

Loans 6 - -
Other non-current financial assets 7 241.77 230.61 

Non-current ta x assets 18 25.88 25.72 

Other non-current assets 9 54.21 66.15 

2064.78 1 916.68 

II.Current asset s 
Inventories 4 3,707 .06 2,171.80 
Current Financial Assets 

Investment 3 - -
Trade receivables 5 4,678.51 4,799.82 
Cash and cash equivalents 8 13.98 3.39 
Other balances with Bank 8 180 .36 231.95 

Loans 6 56.30 54 .30 

Other current financial assets 7 246.71 4.35 

Other current assets 9 417 .85 482.01 

Current tax Asset 18 -
9300.77 7747.62 

Assets classified as held for sale .47 41 7 

Tota l Assets 11 724.02 10083.37 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Equity share capi tal 10 1,602 .10 1,602.10 
Other equity 11 524. 06 384.95 

2 126.16 1 987.05 
LIABILITIES 
1. Non-current liabilit ies 
Non-current financial liabilities 

Borrowinqs 12 1,469.30 1,343.37 
LonQ-term provisions 15 22 .30 17.96 
Other Finanacia! liability - -
Deferred tax liabilities 18 92.51 41.94 

1 584.11 1403.27 

II.Current liabi lit ies 
Current financial liabilities 

Borrowinqs 12 1,584.27 1,816.29 
Trade payables 13 

Total outstandinq dues of -
a) Micro enterprises and small 

2.75 -
enterprises 
b) Cred ito rs other than micro 

4,853.23 2,593.71 
enterorises and small 

Other current financial liabilities 14 1,454.47 1,390.09 
Other curren t liabilities 16 117 .93 854.38 
Short-term provisions 15 16.71 30.92 
Current tax liabilities 18 -15 .59 7 .66 

8013.76 6 693.05 

Tota l Equity and Liabilities 11 724.02 10083.37 

Notes forming part of financial statements (including significant accounting policies) (Notes 1-38) 

In terms of our report of even date attached 

For Purushottam Khandelwa l and Co 
Chartered Accoun tants 

~""ff.~5.: ~o 
Partner 
Membership No. 154239 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of 
Di rectors 

r 17 ) , 
Rashi Tirth Mehta 

DIN: 10697866 
Managing Director 

CA Roshan Bothra 

Mem No. 146769 
Chief Finance Officer 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

DIN: 00 153615 
Whole Time Director 

Mita li Pate l 

Mem No. 37334 
Company Secreta ry 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Standa lone Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 202S 

IRs in lakhsl 
Part iculars Notes For the year ended For the year ended 

'March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Revenue from operations 19 16,682.42 14,938.87 
Other income 20 85.55 65.64 

Tota l Income [I] 16767.97 15004.51 

Expenses 
Cost of Material Consumed 21 11,909.75 11,387.51 
Purchase of Stock in trade 22 597.22 395.07 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -
Trade and work-in-progress 26 471.43 -1,061.75 
Employee benefits expense 23 276.96 219.14 
Finance costs 24 258.71 493.84 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 185.45 182.83 
Impairment on Tangible Assets - 36.96 
Other Expenses 27 2,878.30 3 ,212 .96 

Tota l ex penses [II] 16577.83 14866.56 

Profit before tax [111=1-11] 190.13 137.96 

Tax expense 
Current tax 4.82 50.23 
Adj ustment of tax relating to earlier periods 0.39 1.08 
Deferred tax 49.21 -7.30 
Total tax expense [IV] 54.42 44.00 
Profit for the year [V=III-IV] [A] 135.71 93.95 

Othe r comprehensive income 
a) Items that will be classified to profit I loss - -
b) terns that w ill not to be r eclassified to profit I 
loss 

i) Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined 
benefit olans 4.75 0.69 
ii) Net gain j (loss) on FVOCI Equity instruments - -
iii) Income tax effect on above -1.35 -0.17 

Tota l other co mprehensive income for the year, net of tax [B=i+ii] 3.40 0.51 

Total comprehensive income for the y ear, net of tax [A+ B] 139.11 94.47 

Earning per equity share of Rs.10j- each (Amount in 
Rs.) 

Basic 0.85 0.59 
Diluted 0.85 0.59 

Notes forming part of financial statements (including significant accounting policies) (Notes 1-38) 

In terms of our report of even date attached 

For Purushottam Khandelwal and Co 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN : 01 U 25W 

/ /1 q, 
CA M ah end ra::s"i n"'g",J";s""R"a':o:-::)--~ \ 
Partner 
Membership No . 154239 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

()I'J1. 
Rashi Tirth Mehta 
DIN: 10697866 
Managing Director Whole Time Director 

CA Roshan Bothra Mitali Patel 
Mem No. 146769 Mem No. 37334 
Chief Finance Officer 

Place: Ahmedabad 
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Unison Metals Ltd 
Standalone statement of Cash flow for the year ended on March 31, 2025 

(Rs in lakhs) 
For the year -ended For the year ended 

Particulars on on 
March.31 2025 March 31 2024 

Cash flow from oper ating activities 

1. Profit be fore tax 190.12 137.95 
190.12 137.95 

2. Adjustment for : 
Depreciati on and amortisation expense 185.45 182 .83 
Impairment Loss . 36.96 
Assets Written off 0 .54 6.35 
Finance cost 258.71 493.84 
(Profit)jLoss on sale of Fixed Assets -0.73 -0.41 
Share (Income)! Loss from Partnersh ip firm (Net) (4.74 ) (4.47) 
Interest income (44.79) (47.25) 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain (2.96) (11.74) 
Provision on Rajesh Asawa Loan - -
Provision for Capital Advance 1.35 1.35 
Provision for Bad-Debts reversed - -
Provision for Gratuity 9 .90 4.27 
Gratuity Paid - -
liability written back (37.08) (0.64) 
Provision for doubtful debts 21.90 37.24 

Operating profit before working capital changes (1+2) 577.68 836.27 
3. Adjustments for working capital changes: 

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade and other receivables (16.44) 263.48 
(Decrease) I I ncrease in Trade and other payables 1,615 .2 1 422.36 
Decrease I( Increase) in Inventory (1 535.26) (841. 70) 

Cash u sed in operations 641.19 680.4 1 

Ex traordinary item 
4. Direct t axes paid (28.62) (46.17) 
Prior Year's Adjustment - -

Net Cash generated from / {used in) operating activities [A] 612.58 634.24 
Cash Flow from investing activities 

Purchase of fixed assets (includ ing capital advances) (Net of CWIP trf) (280.15) (73.22) 
Proceeds from sale of f ixed assets 0.73 5.25 
Share income (loss) from partnersh ip firm - -
(Purchase) I Proceeds of non~current investments (Net) -
(Purchase) I Proceeds of current investments (Net) - -
Proceeds from Loans and Advances (Net) -2.54 -26.26 
Interest received 44.79 47.25 
Net cash generated from / {used in) investing activities [B] (237.18) (46.98) 

Cash flo w from financing activities 
Proceeds from long term borrowings, net 125.93 236 .03 
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net ~~320i~ (337 .29) 
Finance cost 258.71 (493.84) 

Net cash gen era t ed from / (used in) financing activities [C] (364.81 595.10) 

Net increase/ (decrease} in cash & cash equivalents [A+B+C] 10.58 (7.84) 

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3.39 11.22 

Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 13.98 3 .39 

Notes: 
1 A} Components of cash & cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 13 .98 3.39 
Cheques on hand - -
Balances with banks 

~ In Current accounts - -
Total 13.98 3.39 

B} Cash and cash equivale nts not available for immediate use 
Unclaimed dividend account - -

Total - -
Ca sh & cash equivalents as p er Note 8 (A+B) 13.98 3.39 



The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'indirect method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard -
1 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". 

2 The previous year 's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary. 

Notes forming part of financial statements (includ ing significant accounting policies) (Notes 1-38) 

In t erms of o ur report of even date attached 
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Unison Meta ls Ltd 
Sta ndalon e statem ent of changes i n equit y for the year e nded on March 31, 2025 

.... . ...... UIL' ~ lIa,,:: .... .... lLCi I 

Particula rs 

Balance as at April 1, 2023 
Changes in Equity share capital during the year 
Ba lance as a t March 3 1, 2024 

Balance as at April 1, 2024 
Changes in Equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at March 3 1, 2025 

8. Other equit y 

Attributable t o the equity h o ld e rs o f the Com any 
Reserve and Surp lus Items of oel 

Particu lars 
Gene ra l Security Reta ined 

!'let: gam , . l _IOSS } 

Capi tal Reserve 
o n FVTOCI 

Reserve p remium Ear nings Equ ity 

Balance a s a t April I, 2023 39 .99 - - 250.50 -
Profi t for the year 94.47 
Utilisation for Bonus Issue 
Items of OCI, net of tax -

Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans 
Net gain I (loss) on Equity instruments carried at 
fair value through OCI 
Balance transfer on derecognition of Equity 
Instruments ca rried at fair value through OCI 
(See note below) 

Ba lance as at Ma rch 31, 2024 39.99 - - 344.96 -
Balance as at April 1, 2024 3 9 .99 - - 344.96 -

Profit for the year 139.1 1 
Utilisation for Bonus Issue -
Items of OCI, net of tax -

Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans 
Net gain I (loss) on Equity instruments carried at 
fair value through OCI 
Balance transfer on derecognition of Equity 
Instruments ca rri ed at fair value through OCI 
(See note below) 

Balance as at March 31, 20 25 39.9 9 - - 484.07 -
Refer Note 11 for nature and purpose of reserves. 
Notes forming part of financial statements (including significant accounting policies) (Notes 1-38) 

In terms of our report of eve n date attached 

For Purushottam Khandelwa l a nd Co 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 01H2SW 
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Note 1 

Unison Met a ls Lt d 
Notes to the Standa lone Financia l St at em ents 

Background 

Unison Metals Ltd is a public company limited by shares incorporated in India. Its registered office is located at Plot No 
SOlS, Ph-IV, Nr Ramol Cross Road, GIDC, Vatva, Ahmedabad-382445, Gujarat. 

The Company's shares are listed and and traded on stock excha nges in India. The com pa ny is primaril y engaged in the 
business Stainless Steel and Chemical. 

Signi ficant accounting policies 

This Note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Compa ny in prepa ration of these Standalone 
Financial Statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated 

a) Basis of p r eparation 

i) Statement of Compliance: 

The Standalone Financial Statements comply in all materia l respects with I ndian Accounting Standa rds (Ind AS) notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act, as amended. 
ii) Historical cost convention: 

The standalone financial statements have been prepa red on a historical cost basis except fo r certain financial assets and 
liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding f inancia l instruments) . 

iii) The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. 

iv) The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in t he Standalone Financial Statements. All 
assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the normal operating cycle of the Company and 
other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Compa nies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and 
the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their rea lisation in cash and cash equivalen ts, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months fo r the purpose of current or non-cu rrent classification of assets and liabilities. 

v) Recent accounting pronouncements: 

The MCA notifies new standards or amendment to the existing standards under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules as issued f rom time to time . On Ma rch 23, 2022, the MCA amended the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 as follows: 

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 
This amendment requires the entities to disclose the ir material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting 
policies. The effective date fo r adoption of th is amendment is an nua l periods beginning on or after Apri l 1, 2023. The 
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignif icant in the standalone financial 
statements. 

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
This amendment has introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help 
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of 
this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and 
there is no impact on i.ts standalone financial statements. 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes 

This amendment has na rrowed the scope of the initia l recognition exemption so that it does not apply to t ransactions that 
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods 
beginning on or after Ap ril 1, 2023 . The Company has eva luated the amendment and there is no impact on its sta ndalone 
financial statement. 

vi) The standalone financia l statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs. 
Any discrepancies in any table between totals and sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding off. 

b) Foreign currency transactions! 

i) Functional and presentation cu rrency: 

Items included in the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates (,functional currency'). The Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company are presented in Indian currency (~), which is also the functional currency of the Company. 

ii) Transactions and bala nces : 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency usi ng the excha nge rates at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gain I (loss) resulting from the settlement of such transactions and f rom the trans lation of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in 
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss except that they are deferred in other equity if they re late to qualifying cash 
flow hedges. Foreign exchange d iffe rences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gain I (loss) presented in the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss are on a net basis within other income I (expense). HAN 

~'\~ ~ Df!{If< 
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value that are denominated in a fo reign cu rrenc~ ~ translate ~~ 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation diffe rences on ass ~ ~~~k\jil~ . 'ed at 
fair value are reported as part of the fai r va lue gain I (loss) . Non-monetary items that are mea ~ dFRNt6M~5& t6 orical 
cost in a foreign currency are not revalued. ~5: t: 

'?.-9): ~'¥-
fliED ACCQ'l 



c) Rev e nue reco g n ition 

i) Revenue from contracts wi th customers: 

The Company manufactures and sells Stainless Steel Cold Rolled Sheets and its intermittent products in domestic and 
international markets. The Company also manufactures and sells Ceramic Glaze and Sodium Silicate in domestic markets. 

Revenue is recognised when control of goods is transferred to a customer in accordance with the terms of the contract. The 
control of the goods is transferred upon delivery to the customers either at factory gate of the Company or specific location 
of the customer or when the goods are handed over to the freight carrier, as per the terms of the contract. A receiva ble is 
recogn ised by the Company when the goods are delivered to the customer as this represents the point in t ime at which the 
right to cons ideration becomes unconditiona l, as only the passage of time is required before payment is due. 

Revenue from services including those embedded in contract for sale of goods namely freight and insurance services 
mainly in case of export sales, is recognised upon completion of services. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined 
terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it 
is the principal in al l of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has 
pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. 

il) Other income: 

Eligible export incent ives are recognised in the year in which t he conditions precedent are met and there is no 
significant uncertainty about the collectability. 

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross 
carrying amount of a financia l asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash 
flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financia i instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and 
Similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 
Dividends are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is 
established; it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the 
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

Lease rental income is recogn ised on accrual basis. 

d) Taxes 
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is the tax payable on the taxable income of the 
current period based on the applicable income tax rates. Deferred tax reflects changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and unused tax losses. 
The current income tax charge is calcu lated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the 
reporting period. The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which 
appl icable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 
Deferred income tax is provided in fu ll , on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of 
goodw il l. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor 
taxable profit I (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the Standalone Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income 
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

The Company considers reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning 
strategies in making the assessment of deferred tax liabilities and realisability of deferred tax assets. Based on the level of 
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax 
assets are deductible, the Management believes that the Company will rea lise the benefits of those deductible differences. 

Deferred tax assets and Jiabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 
offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simu ltaneously. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity. 

e) Govern men t gran ts 
i) Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the gra nt will be 
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. 

ii) Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as 
deferred income and are credited to profit or loss in proportion to depreciation over the expected lives of the related assets 

and presented within other income. >l!(\i~~@~li/l 
iii) Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Standalone State rJ; 
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to other 
income. 



f) Leases 

As a lessee : 

The Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a 
lease jf the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company 
assesses whether: i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset ji) the Compa ny has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and iii) the Company has the right to direct the use 
of the asset. 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises a right-oF-use asset and a corresponding lease liability 
for all lease arrangements in which it is lessee, except for short-term leases (leases with a term of twelve months or less), 
leases of low value assets and, for contract where the lessee and lessor has right to terminate a lease without permission 
from the other party with no more than an insignificant penalty. The lease expense of such short-term leases, low value 
assets leases and cancellable leases, are recognised as an operating expense on a straight-line basiS over the term of the 
lease. 

At commencement date, lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid during non­
cancellable period of the contract, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. The right-of-use assets is initially 
recognised at the amount of the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before 
commencement date less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. 

Subsequently the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Lease 
liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using effective 
interest rate method) and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. The right-of-use asset and 
lease liability are also adjusted to reflect any lease modifications or revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 

As a lessor: 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All 
other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected 
inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the Standalone Balance Sheet based on their 
nature. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company as a lessor has substantially transferred all the risks 
and rewards are classified as finance lease. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of 
the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rent receivables, net 
of interest income, are included in other financial assets. Each lease receipt is allocated between the asset and interest 
income. The interest income is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the asset for each period. 

Under combined lease agreements, land and building are assessed individually. 

g) Current I non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current classification. An asset 
is treated as current when it is: 

a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is treated as current when it is: 
a) expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

oeriod. 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

h) PropertYI plant and equipment 

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of asset or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and 
Loss during the period in which they are incurred. Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of assets are recognised 
in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Stan 
disclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress'. 



i) 

Depreciation methods, est imated useful lives and residual v a lue: 

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of expected useful life and the 
expected residual value of the assets at the end of its useful life. The lives are based on historical experience with similar 
assets as well as anticipation .of futUre events, which may impact their life. 

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method from the date of acquisition I installation till the 
date the assets are sold or disposed of: 

Particulars Useful life of assets 
Factory Building 30 years 
Office buildings 60 years 
Plant & Equipment 15-20 years 
Electrical installation 10 years 
Furniture & fixtures 10 years 
Office equipments 5 years 
Vehicles 8 years 
Data processing equipments 3 years 

The Company, based on technical evaluation carried out by internal technical experts, believes that the useful lives as 
given above best represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets.The residual values, useful 
lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 

The carrying amount of an asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount of the asset 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured, on initial recognition, at cost . Following the initial recognition, 
intang ible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Intangible assets are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. 

i) Investment properties 
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both and that is not in use by the Company, is 
claSSified as investment property. Land held for a currently undetermined future use is also classified as an investment 
property. Investment property is measured at its acquisition cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable, 
borrowing costs. 

k) Impairment of non-financial assets 

1) 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's 
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value 
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does 
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining 
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be 
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share 
prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. The Company bases its impairment calculation 
on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. ' 
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or Joss. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses on assets no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication eXists, the Company estimates the asset's 
or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment Joss was recognised. The reversal 
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the st,atement of profit or loss. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

m) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised when the right to consideration becomes unconditional. The 
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method where applicable, less provision f 
exoected credit loss. 

at 
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n) Tra de and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which 
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months from 
the reporting date. They are recognised initially at their fa ir value and subsequently measured at am ortised cost using the 
EIR method. 

0) Inventories 

Inventories are stated at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost is determined on mo.ving weighted average 
basis. 
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs 
necessary to effect the sale. 
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to the present 
location and condition. Cost includes the reclassification from equity of any gains or lossEs on qualifying cash flow hedges 
relating to purchases of raw material but excludes borrowing costs . 

Due allowances are made for slow I non-moving, defective and obsolete inventories based on estimates made by the 
Company. 

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which are not plant and machinery get classified 
as inventory. 

p) Investments and other financial assets 

Classification: 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
i) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehens ive income, or th rough profit or loss) 
if) Those measu red at amortised cost 

Debt instruments: 

Initial recognition and measurement: 
Financial asset is recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial 
asset is recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asset not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs that are attributable to the acqu isition of the financia l asset. Transaction costs of financia l asset carried at 
fa ir va lue th rough prof it or loss are expensed in the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss . 

Subsequent measurement: 
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model of the Company for managing the asset and 
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measu rement categories into which the Company classifies its 
debt instruments: 
Measured at amortised cost: 
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR method less impairment, if any, the amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is 
recoqnised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss . 
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI ) : 
Financial assets that are held within a bUSiness model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and 
collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognised in the OCI. Interest income measured using 
the EI R method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss. On 
derecognition, cumulative gain I (loss) previously recog nised in OCI is reclassified f rom the equi t y to other income in the 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPl ): 
A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVPl. Such financial assets are measured 
at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as other 
income in the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss. 

Equity instruments: 
The Company subsequently measures all investments in equ ity instruments other than subsidiary companies and associa te 
company at fair value . The Company has elected to present fair value 'ga ins and losses on such equ ity investments in other 
comprehensive income and there is no subsequent reclassification of these fair value gains and losses to the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income 
when the right to receive payment is established. 
Changes in the fair value of fina ncial assets at fai r va lue t hroug h profit or loss are recognised in the Standalone Statement 
of Profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are 
not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

Investments in subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture company : 
Investments in subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture company are carried at cost Jess accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and 
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary companies, associate 
companies and joint venture company, the difference between net disposa l proceeds and the carrying amounts are 
recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss. 
Impairment of financial assets: 

increase in credit risk . 
The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on 
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit ri 
impa irment loss allowance based on lifetime ECls at each reporting date, right from its initial recog 

ises 



Derecogn ition : 
A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 
asset, the asset expires or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a 
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised through the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive income as applicable. Where the Company has not transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financia l asset is not derecognised. 

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. 
Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of 
continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

Financial liabilities: 
i) Classification as debt or equity: 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Compa ny are class ified according to the substance of the 
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument, 
Ii) Initial recognition and measurement: 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractua l provisions of the instrument. 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at the fair value, 
iii) Subsequent measurement: 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fa ir value with all changes in fair value recognised in 
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, 
IV) Oerecognition: 
A financial liabi lity is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cance lled or expires, 

q ) Offsetting fina ncial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Standalone Balance Sheet where there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recogni sed amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

r) Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of t ransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost, Any difference between the proceeds (net of t ransaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised 
in profit or 1055 over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of 
loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility 
will be drawn down, In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. 

Borrowings are removed from the Standalone Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expi red, The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liabi lity that has been extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised in profit or loss as other income I (expense), 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period, 

s) Borrowings Costs 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. 
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which thev are incurred. 

t) Provisions & contingent liabi l ities 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obl igation and the amount can be reliably estimated. 
These are reviewed at each year end and reflect the best current est imate. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating losses. 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined 
by considering the class of obligations as a whole, A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect 
to anyone item included in the same class of obligations may be small. 
Provisions are measured at the present value of best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation 
at the end of the reporting period, The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre~tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specif ic to t he liability. The increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense, 



Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will 
be confi rmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

u) Employee benefits 

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution to provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no 
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the 
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contributi on payable to the 
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the 
scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution al ready paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds 
the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess ,is recognized as an asset to the 
extent that the pre-payment will lead to , for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund . 

The Company's liabilities towards gratuity payable to its employees are determined using the Acturial Valuation Report 
which is obtained in accordance with Ind AS 19 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a 
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Past service costs are recogn ised in profit or loss on the earlier of: 
a) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 
b) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises 
the foll owing changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss: 

a) Service costs comprising current serv ice costs, past-serVice costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine 
settlements; and 

b) Net interest expense or income. 

v) Earnings Per Share 
Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attri butable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity sha res outsta nding du ring the period. Earn ings considered in ascerta ining the EPS 
is the net profit for the period and any attributable tax thereto for the period. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted EPS, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares. 

Estimation of uncerta inties re lating to the global health pandemic COVID-19 

The Company has considered possible effects that may result from the COVID-19 pandemic and Russia-Ukraine war in 
preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements, and used relevant internal and external sources of information and 
expects that these events will not have any material implications on the operat ions of the Company in the near future. 

Critical estimates and judgements 
Preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements requires use of accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions, 
which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management 
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the 
Standalone Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the 
notes to the Standalone Financial Statements. This Note provides an overview of the areas that involves a higher degree of 
judgements or complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions 
turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Deta iled information about each of these estimates and 
judgements is included in releva nt notes together with information about the basis of ca lculation for each affected line item 
in the Standalone Financial Statements. 
The areas jnvolving critical estimates or judgements are: 
i) Estimation for income tax: Note 1 (d) 
ii) Estimation of useful life of tangible assets: Note 1 (h) 
iii) Estimation of provision for inventories: Note 1 (0) 
iv) Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables: Note 1 (m) 
v) Estimation of claims I liabilities: Note 1 (t) 
vi) Estimation of defined benefit obligations : Note 1 (u) 
vii) Fa ir value measurements: Note 31 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 2: Property, plant and equipment (Rs . In lakhs) 

leasehold Plant & Furniture & Office El ectrical 
Data Capital 

Particu lars Land * 
Bu i ld ings* 

Equipment* Fix ture 
Veh icles* 

Equipment Inst a l lations 
Processing Total w o r k-in-

Units I oroaress 

Gross carrying amount 

As at April 1, 2022 36.34 457.45 706.06 12.36 65.13 22.5 9 17.64 4.21 1,321.78 -
Addi t ions 513 .18 40.29 2.21 555.68 1.25 

Disposal -1.18 -52.33 - 14.26 -67.77 

Capi talized from I reduction in CWI P -
As at March 31, 2023 36.34 457 .45 1,218.06 12.36 53.09 24.80 3 .38 4.21 1,809.69 1.25 

As at April 1, 2023 36.34 457.45 1,218.06 12.36 53.09 24 .80 3 .38 4 .21 1,809.69 1.25 

Additions 68.77 1.62 2.82 73.22 

Inter Transfers - -
Impairment! Adjustment - - -

Disposal -3.04 ·5 .01 - -8.05 

Capi talized from I reduction in CWIP -

As at March 31, 2024 36.34 454.41 1,286.83 7.35 54.71 27.62 3.38 4.21 1,874.86 1.25 

Addi t ions 229.07 111.68 

Inter Transfers 

Impairment! Adjustment 

Impairment! Adjustment 

Capitalized from I reduction in CWIP 

As at March 31, 2025 265.41 454.4 1 1,398.51 7.35 54.71 27 .62 3.38 4.21 1,874.86 1.25 

Accum ulated depreciation -

As at April 1, 2022 - 77.45 208.78 4.84 20.40 12.6 0 15 .57 3.66 343.30 -
Depreciation for the year - 17. 13 92.44 0.84 10.12 4.22 0.20 124.95 

I nter Transfers - - -
Recoupment I Adjustment -
Disposal - ·0.52 - 26.00 -12 .20 - -38.72 

As at March 31, 2023 - 94.58 300.70 5.68 4.52 16.82 3 .37 3.86 429.53 -
As at April 1, 2023 94.58 300.70 5.68 4 .52 16.82 3 .37 3.86 429.53 -
Oepreciation for the year - 17. 17 154.01 0.84 7.82 2.88 0.11 182.83 

I mpairment for the period (Refer note 2.3) -
I mpa irment! Adjustment -
Disposal - -4.93 -4.93 

As at March 31, 2024 - 111.75 454.71 1.59 12.34 19.70 3 .37 3.97 607 .43 -
Depreciation for the year - 17.13 156.16 0.84 7.93 3.28 - 0 .11 

I nter Transfers 

I mpairment for the period (Refer note 2.3) 

I mpa irment! Adjustment 

Impa irment! Adjustment 

As at March 31, 2025 - 128.88 610.87 2.43 20.27 22.98 3.37 4.09 79 2.88 

Net carrying amount as on 31-3-2025 265 .41 325.53 787.64 4 .92 34.44 4.64 0.01 0.12 1,422.73 1.25 

As at March 31, 2024 36 .34 342.66 832.13 5.76 42.37 7.92 0.01 0.24 1,267.43 1.25 

As at March 31, 2023 36.34 342.66 832 .13 5.76 42.37 7.92 0.01 0.24 1,267.43 1.25 

As at April 1, 2022 36.34 380.00 497 .28 7.52 44.73 9.99 2.07 0.55 978.48 - ~~ l(HAN~ 
Asset held (or sale 3 1/03/2025 358.47 358.47 7 Oy 4 ;:; <-, 

2.1. Refer note 12.1 for the purpose oftanQible asset s offered as security 0::" ~ 
2.2. Refer Note 35 for contractual com mitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. ~ :~~EDA8AD) 0 
2.3. Assets categorized under "Assets held for Sale" cont inues to classify under the same head despite the fact that t he Assets have not been sold within a twelve· month t imeframe. This is due to unavailablli '" N 12382SW 
buvers and uniaue characteristics o f the assets. Althouqh the company actively engaged in ongoing efforts to identi fy a potential buyer for these assets. The management is still confident about the fai r valu\'bl. K!) 

~ 



Uniso n Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 3 : Investments (Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31 2025 31 2024 

Non- Current investments 
(i) Investment at Cost 

In Subsidiary 
103569 ( 103575) Equity Shares of Chandanpani Ltd of Rs. 10/- each fully paid. 60.17 60.05 

60. 17 60.05 

(ii) Investments at fa i r va lue through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 
Investment in Equity shares - Unquoted 

50 (50) Equity Shares of GreenEnvironment Service Co.op.Soc.Ltd.of Rs.100/- each fully paid 0.05 0.05 
100 (100) Equity Shares of Unison Forgings Pvt Ltd. of Rs.10/- each fully paid 0.01 0.01 

0.06 0 .06 

(a) In Partne rship Firm (Associate) 
Chandanpani Enterprise (See Note 3.1) 202.16 197.54 

202.16 197.54 

Tota l Non-current investment 262.39 257.65 

Aggreg at e amount of unquoted investments 262.39 257.65 

Aggrega t e amount of impairment in va lue of Investments. - -

Note 3 .1: Deta ils of Investment in Partnership Firm 

The partners of the firm are Unison Metals Limited and Mr. Uttamchand Mehta having profit share of 50% : 50% each. Total Capital of 
the firm as on 31.03.2025 is Rs. 160.07 lakhs and as on 31.03.2024 is Rs. 160.17 lakhs. 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

(Rs In lakhs) 
... s at Marc" .H, ... s at MarCn .> .. , 

NOTE: '4' INVENTORIES 2025 2024 

(As verified, valued and certified by management) 
(a) Raw Materials 2,630.82 681.60 

Finished Goods 967.45 1,457.02 
Less: Non-moving Inventory transferred to Non-
Current Financial Assets (See note 4.3) (105.85' (105.85) 

(b) Net Finished Goods 861.60 1,351.17 

, 
(c) Semi-finished Goods 23 .66 8.25 

(d) Stores & Spares 159.75 102.27 

(e) Trading Goods 12.26 12.26 

(f) Others - Sciap 18.97 16.25 
Tot,,1 3,707.06 2,171.80 

-

4.1 Method of Va luation of inventory for all above categories of inventory is lower of cost or net realizable 
value 

4.2 Refer note 12.1 for the purpose of Inventories offered as security. 

4.3. Note on Inventory lying at third party and amount receivable thereof 
The Company has outstanding receivables from Naaptol amounting to Rs . 113.12 (113.12) Lacs. In 
addition, inventory of Utensils, lying at their warehouse amounts to Rs. 105.85 (105.85) Lacs. Naaptol has 
appointed arbitrator to resolve the dispute between the company and Naaptol. Against this t he company 
has approached the Hon'ble Hig h Court at Mumbai, to rescind the appointment of arbitrator appointed by 
Naaptol and to seek appointment of independent arbitrator by the court. Since the matter is subject to 
litigation, the management does not expect to realise the amount within twelve months from balance sheet 
date. Amount receivable from Naaptol of Rs. 113.12 (113. 12) Lacs is classified as Non-Current Trade 
Receivables . Likewise non-moving invento ry amounting to Rs. 105.85 (105.85) Lacs lying at their 
warehouse is classified as Other Non-Current Asset. The company is confident of full recovery but as a 
matter of prudence the company has made a provision of 50% (40%) on above. 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 5 : Trade receivables (Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2025 2024 
Non current {See Note 5.1} 

Considered good 55.55 67 .87 
Considered doubtful 56 .56 45 .25 
Less : Allowance for doubtful receivables -56.55 -45.25 

56.56 67.B7 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

Current 
Consi dered good 4,678.51 4,799 .84 
Considered doubtful 114. 70 147. 51 
Less : Allowance for doubt ful receivables -114.70 - 147.51 

4,678.51 4,799.84 

Note : The Company has used a practical expedient for computin g expected credi t loss allowance for 
trade receivables, taking into account historical credit loss experience and accordingly, provisions are 
made for expected credit loss for amounts due from customers wherever necessary. 

Aa eina Schedule for Trade Receivables- Non Current outstandina as on March 31 2025 
Outstanding for fo llowing periods from due date of transaction 

Particulars Less than 3 3 - 6 Months 
6 Months- 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 

Months 1 e o< ears 

I (j) Undisouted Trade receivables - considered aood 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables which have 

sianificant increase in credit risk 
iii Undis uted Trade receivables - credit im aired 
I, Dis uted Trade receivables - considered ood 56 .56 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables which have significant 
increase in credi t risk 

iii Dis uted Trade receivables - credi t im ai red 56 .55 
Tota l - - - - 113.12 
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 
Net Trade Receivables- Non Cu rrent 

Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables- Non Current outstanding as on March 31 2024 
Outstandin for follow in eriods from due date of transaction 

Particulars Less than 3 3-6 Months 
6 Months-

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Months 1 vear yea rs 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables which have 

sionif icant increase in credit risk 
iii Undis uted Trade receivables - credit im aired 
I, Dis uted Trade receivables - considered ood 67.87 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables which have si gnificant 
increase in credit risk 

iii Dis uted Trade receivables - credit im aired 45 .25 
Total - - - - 113.12 
less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 
Net Trade Rece ivables 

Ageing I l as on Ma"h 31, 2025 
, fo, 

Particulars 
3-6 Months 

loood 3.789.70 404.89 2.08 110.71 192.60 201.53 

1,:,:)u':;J:e:,~;~a':'k I' n,,,",, 
I 

I I 

Total 

-

-
56.56 

-
56.56 

113.12 
56.56 
56.56 

Total 

-

-
-

67.S7 

-
45.25 

113.12 
45.25 
67.B7 

Total 

4.701.52 

114.70 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
Ageing Schedu le for Trade ReceivablesM Current o utstandina as on March 31, 2024 

Outstandln for followin eriods from due date of transaction 
Particulars Less than 3 

Months 
3-6 Months 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 1771.32 212.05 
{ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables which have 

sionificant increase in credit risk 
iii Undis uted Trade receivables - credit im aired 8.86 2.12 

" Dis uted Trade receivables - considered ood 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables which have significant 

increase in credit risk 
iii Dis uted Trade receivables - credit im aired 

Tota l 1780.18 214.17 
Less : Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 
Net Trade Receivables 

5.1 refer note no . 4.4 for non-current Trade Receivables and provision thereof. 

Summary of movement in a llowance for doubtful trade rece ivables 

Particu lars 
As at Marcn .:H, As at Marcn .iI, 

2025 2024 
Balance at the beginning of the year 192.78 166.12 
Allowances provided during the year 26.65 26.65 
Allowances reversed during the year 
Less: Write off of bad debts 
Balance at the end of the year 219.43 192.78 

Trade receivables are valued considering provision for allowance using expected credit loss method. 
In addition to the historical pattern of credit losses, the Company has considered the li kelihood of 
increased credit risks, subsequent recoveries, insurance and consequential default. This assessment 
is considering the nature of industries, impact immediately seen in the demand outlook of these 
industries and the financial strength of the customers in respect of whom amounts are receivable. 
Allowance for doubtful debts in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended as on 
31.03 .2025 is Rs.(44.32) lakhs and Rs. 1.70 lakhs for the year ended as on 31.03.2024 

N t 6 L o c , oans 

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2025 2024 

rUnsecured and considered oood, unless otherwise statedl 
Financial assetsMCurrent 

Loans to others (to Corporates) 48.79 45.37 
Loans to Employees 7.51 8.93 

56.30 54.30 

No t e 7 : Other Non Current I CUrrent financial assets 

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2025 2024 

[Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated] 
Non-current 

Deposits - Maturity more than 12 months * 228.09 224.00 
Security & tender deposits 13.68 6 .61 

241.77 230.61 

Current 
Accrued Income 241.78 

TDS Receivable with NBFC 4.94 4.35 
246 .71 4 .35 

488.48 234.96 

Non-Current DepOsits include Deposit under lien of Rs.228.09 lakhs (Previous Year Figure Rs. 
7.1 224.00 lakhs) 

6 Months- More than 3 
1 year 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 
vears 

595.74 1569.96 496.69 161.57 

17.87 78 .25 24. 83 8.08 

-
613.61 1648.21 521.53 169.65 

Total 

4807.34 

-
140.01 

-
-
-

4947.35 
147.51 

4 ,799.84 



Unison Met a ls Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 8 : Cash and Bank balances 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Particula r s 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

Cash and cash equiva lents 
Cash on hand 13.98 3.39 
Balance with Sank - -
Total cash and cash equiva lents 13.98 3 .39 

Othe r balances with Bank 
Deposits wi th bank held against marg in money 180.36 231.95 

194.34 235.34 

Note 9 : Other Non·current / Current assets 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Pa rticulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated] 
Non-current 
Capital advances (net off provisions) 1. 29 2.64 
Advance to suppliers - -
Non-moving Inventory lying at Naaptol (See Note 9.1) 105.85 105.85 
Less : Provision against inventory (42.34) (42.34) 
Net Non-moving Inventory lying at Naaptol -10.58 63.51 

54.21 66.15 

Current 
Advance to suppliers 310.44 453.70 
Balance with Government authorities 2 1.39 1.77 
Prepaid Expenses 86.02 26.18 
Unamortised Employee Benefit Exps - 0.36 

417.85 482.01 

419.14 484.65 

9.1 refer note no. 4.4 for non-moving inventory lying at Naaptol Wa rehouse 



Unison Meta ls Ltd 
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Note 10 : Share Capital 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 31, 

31 2025 2024 

Authorised 
3 ,50,00,000 (2,42,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs .10 /-each 3,500.00 2,425.00 

7,50,000 (7,50,000) Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.I0/-each 75.00 75.00 

Issued, Subscribed, & Fully Paid up : 

1,60,21,000 (1,60,21,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 1,602. 10 1,602.10 

1,602.10 1,602.10 
--- - --

(i) Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstandi ng at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year: 
\" ~ ' ~ ............ 

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024 

Numbers Amount Numbers Amount 
As at beginning of the year 1,60,21,000 1,602.10 1,60,21,000 1,602.10 
Bonus issued du ring the year - - -
Bought back during the year - - - -
Outsta nding at the end of the year 1,60,21,000 1,602. 10 1,60,21,000 1,602.10 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 
ii) Shareholders holdinQ more than 5% of total equity sha res 
rN Name of Shareholders Nos % of Holding Nos 0/0 of HoldinQ 

1 Shelj a Finlease Pvt. Ltd. 2435926 15.20% 24 35 926 15.20% 
2 Megh lyoti Impex Pvt.Ltd . 1769571 11.05% 176975 1 11.05% 
3 Tirth U.Mehta 14 44 750 9.02% 14 44 750 9.02% 
4 Pushpa U. Mehta 13 09 000 8.17% 13 09 000 8.17% 
5 Tushar U.Mehta 8,09,500 5.05% 8,09,500 5.05% 



• 

(ii i) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters: 

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters as on March 31. 2025 
Name No. of Shares 0/ 0 Held % CbanQe 

Name of promoters 
Tirth Uttam Mehta 1444750.00 9.02% 0 .00% 
Pushoa Uttamchand Mehta 13 09 000.00 8.17% 0.00% 
Tusha r Uttamchand Mehta 809500.00 5.05% 0 .00% 
Uttamchand Chandanmal Mehta 4 18 587.00 2.61% 0.00% 
Rekhaben Nareshbhai Chan rani 31 000.00 0.19% 0.00% 
Maheshbhai Vishandas Chanqrani 26000.00 0.16% 0.00% 
Mukesh Devendra Shah 20000.00 0. 12% 0.00% 
Uttamchand Chandanmal Mehta Huf 100.00 0.00% 
Trupti Shah 4000.00 0.03% 0.00% 
Name of promoter group 
Shei la Finlease Pvt Ltd 2435926.00 15.20% 0.00% 
Meqhjvoti I moex Private Limited 1769571.00 11.05% 0 .00% 
Total 82,68,434.00 51.61 0/0 0.00% 

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters as on March 31, 2024 
Name No. of Shares % Held % Chanqe 

Name of promoters 
Tirth U Mehta 1444750.00 9.02% 0.00% 
Pushoa Uttamchand Mehta 13 09 000.00 8.17% 0 .00% 
Tushar Uttamchand Mehta 809500.00 5.05% 0 .00% 
Uttamchand C Mehta 4 18 587.00 2.61% 0.00% 
Rekhaben Nareshbhai Changrani 31 000.00 0 .19% 0.00% 
Maheshbhai Visha ndas ChanQra ni 26000.00 0.16% 0 .00% 
Mukesh Devendra Shah 20000.00 0.12% 0.00% 
Uttamchand Chandanmal Mehta Huf 100.00 0.00% 
Truoti Shah 4000.00 0.03% 0.00% 

Name of promoter Qroup 
Shel'a Finlease Pvt Ltd 2435926.00 15.20% 0.00% 
Meghjyoti Impex Private Limited 17 69 571.00 11.05% -0.01% 
Total 82,68,434.00 51.61% 

The Compa ny has allotted 1,28,16,800 fully pa id-up equity shares of face va lue ~10 each during the year ended March 31, 2022, 
pursuant to bonus issue approved by the sha reholders. The bonus shares were issued by capita lization of profits transferred from 
general reserve, security premium and profit and loss ale. Bon us share of four equity share for every equity sha re held has been 
allotted. The bonus shares once allotted shall rank pari passu in all respects and carry the same rights as the existing equity 
sha reholders. These shall be entitled to participate in full , in any dividend and other corporate action, recommended and declared 
after the new equity shares are allotted . 



Unison Meta ls ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 11 : Other- equity 

Refer to the statement of changes in equity for movement in Other equity. 

Nature and purpose of reserves 

General reserve 

General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer profits from retained earnings for 
appropriation purposes. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another 
and is not an item of other comprehensive income . 

Security premium 

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares, in relation to issuance of equity, is 
recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. 

Retained earnings 

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general 
reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to the shareholders. 

Equity instruments through OCI 

This represents the cumulative gains and losses ari sing on the Fair valuation of equity instruments measured 
at fair value through other comprehensive income that have been recognized in other comprehensive 
income. 

Capital Reserve 
This represents gain on money forfeited due non - payment of balance ca ll amount after followi ng due 
procedures . 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 12 : Borrowings 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31 2025 31 2024 

Non-current 
Secured 
Term Loans from 

(i) Banks 143.88 287.50 
(ii) Non Banking Finance Company - -

Unsecured 
Loans from related parties 

(i) From Directors 11.42 6 .36 
(ii) From Bodies Corporate 1 314 .00 1049.51 

1469.30 1343.37 
Current 
Secured 

Working Capital Loans 1,308.49 1,308.91 
Ter m Loan 
i) From Banks 142.60 382.26 
ii) From NBFC - 6.49 

Unsecured 
From Non Ban king Finance Company - -

From Others 133.17 118.63 
1584.27 1816.29 

3053.56 3 159.66 

Loans referred above are to the extent of: 
Notes. 
12.1 
(a) 
(b) 

Loans from various· Banks, NBFC and Financial institution are as in shown in annexure. 

Loan from Directors is repayable after 31-03-2025 bearing interest at 8% (8%) p.a. 

( c) Loan from Bodies Corporate is repayable after 31-03-2025 bearing interest at 8% (8%) p.a. 

Note 13 : Trade Paybles 

(Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March A~ at March 

31 2025 31 2024 
Current 
Due to micro, small and medium enterprise 2.75 -
Due to others 4,853.23 2,593 .72 

4855.98 2593 .72 

Current 4,855.98 2,593.72 

4,855.98 2,593.72 

Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables as on 31 03 2025 (Rs Inlakhs) 
Outstanding for following periods from due 

date of payment 

Less than 1-2 2-3 More than 
Pa rticula rs 1 year years years 3 years 

Tota l 

(i) MSME - - - - -
U) Others 4847 .56 - - 8.42 4855.98 
iii Dis uted dues MSME - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -

Ageing Schedu le of Trade Payables as on 31 03 2024 (Rs In lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of avment 

Less than 
1-2 2-3 

More than 
TO,tal 

1 year 
years years 

3 years 
Particulars 

i) M5ME - - - - -
ii Others 2 326 .82 184.67 72.37 9.86 2593.72 

(iii) Disputed 
dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed 

fo~~ D~ dues Others - - - -
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Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 13.1 : The disclosure under Micro, small and medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 in respect 

of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31st March, 2025 has been made in the financial 

statements based on information received and on the basis of such information the amount due to small 

and medium enterprises is 2 .75 lacs as on 31st March, 2025. No interest is paid or payable to such 

enterpises due to disputes. Auditors have relied on the same . 

Note 14 : Other Current f inancial liabilities 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at ~arch 

31,2025 31,2024 

Payables on purchase of fixed assets 257.44 0.95 
Outstanding Expenses 37 .25 309.58 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.12 16.33 

Loan from Bank non fund based 1,158.66 1,063.23 

, 
1,454.47 1,390.09 

Note 15: Provisions 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31 2025 31 2024 
Non-current 
Provision for Gratuity (refer to Note 17) 22.30 17.96 

22.30 17.96 
Current 
Provision for Gratuity (refer to Note 17) 16.71 16.03 
Provision For Employees Benefit (See note 15.2 below) - 14.89 

16.71 30.92 

39.01 48.88 

Note 15.1: The expected timing of any resulting outfl ows ca nnot be determined as the said obligation IS 

based on employee attrition. Refer note 17B(a) 

Note 15 2 - Movement in the Provision (As at 31 03 2025) 

Additional Less: 

Particulars Opening Provision Utilised 

Provision for Bonus 2 .15 4.49 2.13 
Provision for leave encashment 4.01 4.59 4 .02 
Provision for contribution to various funds 0.28 1.02 0.28 
Provision for Sittinq Fees of directors 8.20 1.15 2.10 
Total 14.64 11.25 8.54 

Movement in the Provision (As at 31 03 2024) 

Additional Less: 
Particulars Opening Provision Utilised 

Provision for Bonus 2.40 2.15 2.40 
Provision for leave encashment 4. 00 4.01 4.00 
Provision fo r contribution to various funds 0.69 0.28 0.69 
Provision for Sitting Fees of directors 8 .80 1.20 1.80 
Total 15.89 7.64 8.89 

Note 16: Other current liabilities 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31,2025 31,2024 

Advance from customers 87.22 676.21 
Statutory dues 30.71 178.17 

117.93 854.38 
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Closing 
Balance 

4.51 
4.58 
1.02 
7.25 

17.36 

Closing 
Balance 

2.15 
4 .01 
0 .28 
8.20 

14.64 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standa lone Financial Statements 

Annex ure to Note 12 & 14 

Amount 

Is.No.IBank Name 

1, 
12 

13 
14 

Is 

t fl .2 
IT 
14 

iHDFC BANK 11."n nnnnn I 

IHDFC BANK WCTL 3.5 I 
CR 1 .sn.nn.nnn I 

HDFC BANK TL 5CR " .nn nn nnn 
HDFC BANK ECLGS 3.99

1 
I 

CR 3,99,70.000 

HDFC BANK LTD 1.99 
Icr 1 .qQ !=IS nnn 

313.5 CR 

SlOBl STAR SOLAR 
15 1.03 CR 1.0: 

IT 

19 

121 
U 

125 

"D 5.59L 
.52L 

I HDFC CAR LOAN 17.92L 

N DEERe 
: FIRST BANK LTD 

FINANCIAL 
I SERVICES PRIVATE 
LIMITED 
SHRI RM 

63,76,400 

17,92,998 
7,85,000 

12,1)5,000 

25.08.821 

Inte rest 

10.25 

10 .25 

10.25 

8.25 

8.25 

15.0 

14.45 I 

6.90 

18.00 

15.52 

EMI 

7.48 

12.57 

5.55 
---s.oo 

7. 
2. 

1.90 

::06 

1.50 
1.49 

1.25 

UnPa id As on 
EMI I Balance I 

I {count) 3] I n~ / 7n7r::; 

22 

60 

12 

36 

28 

32 1 

52 
53 

~nR.<1Q 

143 .93 

""""(f""i"6 

7.49 

I 
Balance 
Principal As on 
31r - , 

1,308.91 

67.21 

97.53 

199 .85 
175 .00 

29.8 1 

31.22 

T4l 

12.76 

---g:sj 

-

28 I
ASHV FINANCE LIMITED 1 1 
JAIN SONS 19.40L 19.40,590 14.00 I 0.66 1 24 1 - I 3.21 
HERO FINCUKr-

29 LIMITED 19,89,000 14.00 0.68 24 3.28 
30 CANARA BANK 10.58 LACS C 1065933.00 3.60 0.04 

131 CANARA BANK 135.00 LACS I 2317216.00 6.12 114.38 
132 _ CANARA BANK 16.15 LACS C 677188.00 2.17 9.68 
~ CANARA BANK 7.16 LACS CFi 768060.00 1.84 

~ Canara GI Account 1175603.00 I 

1,594.97 



Unis on Met a ls Ltd 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Note 17 : Employee benefits 

A . Defined contri bution plans: 

The Company deposits amount of contribution to government under PF and other schemes operated by government. 
Amoun t of Rs. 4.52 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 2.15 lakhs) is recognised as expenses and included in Note 23 "Employee benef it expense" 

(Rs. In lakl1s 

Par t icular s For t h e Year For the Yea r 
ended March 3 1 , en ded March 31, 
2 0 2 5 2024 

Provident and other funds 4.52 2 .15 
4 .52 2 .15 

B. Defined benefit plan s : 
The Company has following post employment benefits which are in the nature of defined benefit plans : 

Ca ) Gratu it y 

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to t he benefit as per scheme of the Company, fo r each completed 
year of service. The benefit vests only after five years of continuous service, except in case of death/disability of employee during service. 
The vested benefit is payable on separation from the Company, on retirement, death or termination. 

CRs In lakhs) 
Particu lars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Gratuity - Defin ed benefit o bligat ion 
Open ing Ba lan ce 33.99 30.41 
Gratuity cost charged to stat emen t of profi t and loss 

Serv ice cost 2.63 2.51 
Net interest expense 1.87 1.76 
Sub- tota l in cl uded in statement of profit and loss 4 .5 0 4 .27 
Benefit paid 

Rem easu rem ent ga ins / ( Iosses) i n other compreh ens ive 
income 

Retu rn o n p lan asset s ( excl uding amounts incl ud ed in n et 
interest ex oense) 
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financia l assumptions 

1.47 0.61 
Experience adiustments 3.92 -1.30 

Sub-tota l included in OCI 5 .3 8 -0.69 

Ben e fits pa id -0.86 - -

Defined b en e fi t obligation 43.0 1 33.99 

Fair va lue of p lan assets - -

Total b en ef it li ab ility 43.01 3 3 .99 

The net liability disclosed above relates to follOWing funded and unfunded plans . 

Particulars 
As at March 3 1, As at Mar ch 3 1 , 

2 0 2 5 2024 
Defined Benefit Obliga t ion 43.01 30.41 
Fair Value Of Plan Assets - -
Net Liabili t Asset 4 3 .01 3 0.4 1 



, 

Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 
The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obl igations for the Company's plans are shown below: 

For the Year For the Yea r 
Particulars ended March 31, ended March 31, 

2 0 2 5 2024 

Discount rate 6.70% 7.20% 
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 

3% at younger 3% at younger 
ages reducing to ages reducing to 

Attrition ra te 1 % at older ages 1 % at older ages 

Mortality rate during employment - -

Sensitivity analys is 
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted pri ncipal assumpt ions is: 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

Change in 
Impact on defined benefit obligation 

For the Year For t he Year 
Pa r t iculars assumptions ended March 31, ended March 3 1, 

2025 2024 

Gratuity 
Discount ra te 0.5% increase -3.41% -3.53% 

0.5% decrease 3.74% 3.87% 

Salary increase 0.5% increase 1.05% 1.63% 
0.5% decrease -1.29% -1.57% 

Withdrawal Rates 10% increase 0.96% 1.01% 
10% decrease -1.05% -1.04% 

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption whi le holding all other assumptions const ant. In practice, this is 
unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When ca lculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit 
ob ligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the 
projected unit credit method at t he end of the reporti ng period) has been applied while calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in 
the Standalone Balance Sheet. 

The methods and types of assumpt ions used in prepar ing t he sensitiv ity analysis did not change as compared to the prior year. 

The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan: 
(Rs In lakhs) 

For the Year For the Yea r 
Particulars ended March 31, ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

Gratuity 
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 20.71 13.68 
More than 1 Year 22.30 16 .73 

Tota l ex pected payments 43.01 30.41 
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Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 18: Income taxes 

1 Components of Income tax expense 

The major component of Income tax expense for the year ended on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows: 
(RS In lakhs) 

For the Year For t he Year 
Particu la r s ended March ended March 

31, 2025 3 1,2024 

Statement of Profit and loss 
CUrre nt tax 

Current income tax 4.82 50.23 
Adj ustment of tax relating to earlier periods 0.39 1.08 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax expense 49.2 1 -7.30 

54.42 44.00 

Other comprehensive income 
Deferred tax on 

Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses 1.35 0.17 
Eauitv instruments carried at FVTOCI -

1.35 0 . 17 

Income t ax expense as per the statement of profit and loss 55.77 44.18 

2 Reconciliation of effective tax 
(RS In lakhs) 

For the Year For the Year 
Particulars ended March ended March 

31,2025 31, 2024 

Profit before t ax from conti nuing and discontinued operations 190.13 137.97 

Tax@ 25.1680/0 (22% + 100/0 Surcharge + 40/0 Cess) 47.85 34.72 

Adjustments for: 

Permenant differences not allowable as per I ncome Tax Act, 1961 7.53 8.20 
Changes in deferred tax due to change in Future Tax Rate of the company -
Carried Forward credit forgone -
Impact of current tax of earlier years 0.39 1.08 
Other Adjustments -

Tax expense / (benefit) 55.77 44.00 
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3 Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities 

For the year ended on March 31, 2024 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

As at April 
Charge/ (credit) in the 

Charg,e/(credit) in Other As at March 
Particulars Statement of Profit and 

1, 2023 loss 
Comprehensive Income 31,2024 

Deferred ta x liabil it ies/(assets) 
Acce lerated depreciation for tax purposes 107.63 5 .69 113.32 
Items Disallowed u/s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (7.65) (0.73) (0 .17) (8.55) 
Amortisation/Reversal of Processing Fees 0. 19 (0 .14) 0.05 
Provision for doubtful debt (33.27) (6.76) (40 .03) 
Provision for Naaptol (16.53) (5.51) (22.04) 
Provision on loans and advances(RA loan) (0.79) 0 .82 0.Q3 , 
Provision on Capital Advances iO.50 (0.34 (0.84 

49.58 6 .97 0 .17 41.94 

For the year ended on March 31, 2025 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

As at March Charge/(credit) in the Charge/(credit) in Other As at Ma rc h 
Particula rs 

31, 2024 Sta~ement of Profit and Comprehensive Income 31, 2025 
l oss 

Deferred ta x liabilities / (assets) 
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 113.32 31.37 - 144.69 
Items Disallowed u/s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (8.55) (4 .03) - (12.58) 
Amortisation/Reversal of Processing Fees 0.05 0 .09 - 0.14 
Provision for doubtful debt (40.03) 28.88 - (11.15) 
Provision for Naaptol (22.04) (5.51) - (27.55) 
Provision on loans and advances(RA loan) 0.Q3 0.11 - 0.14 
Provision on Capita l Advances (0.84 {0.34 - (1.18 

41.94 50.57 - 92.51 

4 Current / Non-current tax assets and l iabilities 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

3 1,2025 3 1, 2024 

Non-current 
Current tax assets 25.88 25.72 

Current 
Current tax assets - -
Current tax liabilities -15.59 7.66 



Unison Metals ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financia l Statements 

Note 19 : Revenue from operations 
, (Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the Year ended For the Year ended 

March 311 2025 March 31, 2024 

Sale of Products 
Sale of products 

C.R.Patta/ Flat 2,890.08 6,052.80 
5.s.Utensils 5,126.59 -

Others 4,302 .34 2,865.54 
Ceramic Glaze Sales/ Sodium Silicate 3,177 .91 4,590.99 

Trading 

Trading Sales 2 13.34 394.02 

15710.27 13903.35 

Other operating income 
Job Charges Income 972. 15 1,035.52 

972.15 1 035.52 

16682.42 14938.87 

, 

Note 20 : Other income 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the Year ended For the Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 3 1, 2024 

Interest income 
a. Interest income from bank on: 

(i) Deposits 32.98 20.40 

b. Interest income from current investments 
c. Others 11.81 26 .85 

Profit from sales of Assets 0.73 1.13 
Foreiqn Exchanqe Gain/Loss 2.96 11.74 
Other mise income . 4.88 
Excess orovision written back 37 .08 0.64 

85.55 65.64 



Unison Meta ls Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 21 : Cost of Mat eria l Con sumed 
(Rs In lakhs) 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 20 24 

Opening Stock 681.60 931. 69 
Add: Purchase 
H R PattajPatti - -

5 5 Flat/Ingot 8,216.03 3,887.45 
S S Scrap 3,219.76 4,176 .65 
Frit RM & Silicate RM 2,219 .19 3,501.22 
Others 203.99 381.08 

14,540.57 12,878.09 
Less: Sales - 808 .99 
Less: Closing Stock 2630 .82 681.60 
Material Consumed 11,909.75 11,387.51 

Note 22 : Purchases of stock-in-trade 
(Rs . In la khs l 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 597 .22 395.07 , 
597.22 395.07 

Note 23 : Employee benefits expense 
CRs . In la khs l 

For the Year ended For the Yea r ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Salaries, wages, bonus & gratuity 268.46 211.47 
Contribution to provident fund and other fu nds 4 .52 2.15 
Staff welfare 3 .98 5.52 

276.96 219.14 

Note 24 : Finance costs 
IRs. In lakhsl 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest expense 258.12 493.84 
Foreclosure Charges 0.59 -

258.71 493.84 

Note 25 : Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
(Rs. In lakhsl 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment and investment property 185.45 182.83 
185.45 182.83 

NOTE: '26' (Increase)j Decrease in Inventory of Stock in Trade, Finished goods, Semi finished goods 
(Rs In lakhs) 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 
Par ticulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Openinq Inventory of 
Semi-finished Goods 8.25 36.46 
Finished Goods 1,457.02 374.13 
Scraps 16.25 9.18 

Trading Goods 12.26 12.26 
1,493 .78 432.03 

Less :Closing Inventory of 
Semi-finished Goods 23 .66 8.25 
Finished Goods 967.45 1,457.02 
Scraps ~ ~o«I;,.' 

18.97 16.25 
Trading Goods RJ~'\~ 12.26 12.26 

iJj y"., 1 022.34 1 4 93.78 
(Increase ) j Decrease in Inventory of Stock in Trade, Finishe fft AHM DABAD g 

(10 6 1.75' Iqoods Sem i fini sh ed qoods ~ FRN 123825W ". 471.43 
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Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 27 : Other expenses 

(Rs In lakhs) 
For the Year ended For the Year ended 

Particulars 
March 311 2025 March 311 2024 

Stores and spares consumed 63.53 68.73 
Job Charges 1,141.08 1,132.66 
Maintanance & Repairs 10.66 67.20 
Power & Fuel 68.65' 67.98 
Anneali ng Expenses 1,324. 17 1,631.51 
Excise Duty Assessment - -
Effluent Treatment Expenses - 0.06 
Water Charges 3.91 3.02 
Factory Expenses 2.01 3.25 
Weighbridge Expense - -
Freight & Cartage 105.26 68.76 
Packing Expenses - -
Insurance Charges 6.55 9.46 
Telephone Expenses 1.01 4.64 
Legal & Professional Fees & Expenses 49.76 22.98 
Postage & Stationery Expenses 1.87 1.74 
Rent, Rates & Taxes 4.00 3.60 
Miscellaneous Expenses 19.73 19.42 
GPCB Fees - -
Security Charges 9.17 4.13 
Travelling Expenses 4.14 3.42 
Commission On BG / LC 41.44 34.43 
Car Expenses 3.34 0.92 
VAT Assessment exps and other exps - -
Membersh ip & Subscription - -
Import Charges - -
Bad Debts -44.32 1.70 
Packing Exps - 0.73 
Bank Commission & Charges 2.32 4.67 
Freight & Cartage Outward - -
Loss on Partnership Firm 3.26 3.28 
Lease Rent for Pipeline 2.73 3.02 
Provision for doubtful receivable 21.90 37.24 
Sitting Fees to Directors 1.20 1.20 
Interest on Statutory Dues 9.32 7.83 
CFS charges - -
Advertisement Expenses 0.36 0.48 
Late TDS Filing 16.73 
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets - 0.72 
Payment to Auditors 3. 12 2.50 
Provision on Capita l Advance Exp 1.35 1.35 
Donation 0 .05 0 .34 

2,878.30 3,212.96 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 28: Related Party 
transactions 

Related party disclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, " Related Party Disclosures", are given below. 

(A) Particulars of related parties and nature of relationships 
Name of the related 
parties 

A. Holding Company 
Nll 

B. Subsidiary Companies (including step-down subsidiaries) 
Chandanpani Limited 

C. Associate Company 
Chandanpani Enterprise 

D. Companies over which Key Management Personnel and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence 
Unison Ceramics Limited 
Unison Forgings Private Limited 
Manglam Alloys Limited 
Meghjyoti Impex Pvt ltd. 

E. Key Management Personnel 

Executive directors 
Rashi Tirth Mehta 
Tirth Mehta 
Mahesh Changrani 

Non Executive directors 
Deepali Malpani 
Narendra Thakkar 
Himanshu Chokda 

Chief Finance Officer 
CA Roshan Bothra 

Company Secretary 
CS Mitali Patel 



(6) Related party transactions and balances 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parti es 
All the transactions with the related parties are done at arm's length price 

The details of material transactions and balances with related parties (Including those pertaining to discontinued operations) are given below : 

(RS. In 10kh,) 

I:~e year 
;du"ng ; 

; 
,,~~~ ~.~ .~ .. , 

~ 
,of K. 

1 Purchase 
Chandanpani Limted 212.67 1,517.23 
Unison Forgings '-Private 

I Li~it~d 1,057.19 162.37 

2 Sale 
Chandanpanl Limted 1,166.34 1,464.27 
Unison Forgings Private 

I Umlt~d 3,042.89 14.34 

3 Expenses 
Job work EXDense 
Chandanpani Llmted 1,374.01 593.41 

. Mangalam Alloys 
Limited 37.62 41.94 

Remuneration/Salary 

14ahesh Chanqrani 14.25 12.00 
Uttamchand Mehta 
Tlrth Mehta 46.20 46.20 
CA Roshan Bothra 13.61 12.06 
CS Mitali Patel 5.31 4.4 8 
Rashl Mehta 32.10 18.00 
$ittinq Fee 1.20 1.20 

Interest Exepense 
Unison Ceramics 0.66 0.58 

Limited 
Unison Forgings 48 .16 108.99 

Private Limited 
Meghjyoti I mpex 

1.08 
Private Limi ted 
Mahesh Chanqra ni 0.39 0.37 
Uttamchand f·1ehta 
Tirth Mehta 8.13 

Other Miscellaneous 

I E~~:~~:npanj Limted 4,100.20 491.77 

4 Income 
Interest Income 

Chandanpani 7.90 7.74 
Enterprise 



5 

6 

7 

Net Loan Taken 

Unison Ceramics Limited 1.45 

Unison Forgings Private 
263.82 5,458.36 

Limited 
Tlrth Mehta 179.41 

Net Loan Given 
Meghjyoti Impex Private 19.38 

Limited 

Unison Ceramics Limited 1.45 

Unison Forgings Private 4,719.95 
Limited 
Tirth Mehta 138.10 

Investment 

Chandanpani Enterprise 4.46 

Chandanpani Limted 0.12 

7 .90 1 2.20 6 853.34 4 066.68 4450.34 10529.89 430 .57 

~Ies 10 and pUfChses from related parties were made on normal commercial!e.ms and conditions ilnd ilt prev~iling market prices or when' milrket price is not available ill COU piu. milrgin. 

All ouUliioding balances are unlecured and are repayable in cnh al1(! cnh eQuivillent. 

The Compilny has iI policy of erening provision on trade receivables on the basis of an unbiued lind probilbility.weilhted ilmount th~t i~ dete rmined by e Villuiltinl ale of the tr.de receiviObles. 

(e) Closing Balances of Related Parties 

Part icula rs Relation 2024-25 2023-24 
Trade ReCe;VabJes J 

Advances (rom Customers 
Manglam Alloys KM P has Significant Influence 
Limited 555.42 121.09 
Chandanpani Limited 

Subsidiary 
( Net } -1,058 .29 
Unison Forgings KMP has Significant Influence 
Private Limited - 477.3 1 

Advances to suppliers 
Unison Forgings KMP has Significant Influence 
Private Limited ·97.73 

Trade Payables 
Chandanpani Limited Subsidiary -325 .84 732.45 
Unison Forgings KMP has Sign ificant Influence 
Private Limited 571.98 

Trade Receivables 
Unison Forgings 
Private Limited -1,706.20 

Salary Payabfes 
Tirth Mehta KMP -9.79 -3.43 
Mahesh ChanQrani KMP 1.04 1.60 
CA Roshan Bothara KMP 0.10 1.01 

Rashl Mehta Relative of KMP -6.69 -4.67 
Net Loan Taken 

Chandanpani Limited Subsidiary 
Unison Ceramics 

K~IP has Significant Influence 
Limited 9.84 9.17 
Unison Forgings 

K~lP has Significant Influence 
Private Limited 1,304.16 1,040.33 
Uttamchand Mehta KMP 
Tlrth Mehta KMP 5.64 0.96 
Mahesh ChanQrani KMP 5.78 5.39 

III vest ments 
Chandanpani Limited Subsidiary 60.17 60.05 
Chandanpani Enterpr ASSOCiate 197.52 197.54 

68.00 

248.9 1 

4 19. 3 5 



Unison Met a ls Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Not e 29 : Segm ent information 

The Company has presented segment information in the consolidated financia l statements which are presented in this same annual report. 
Accordingly, in terms of Ind AS 108 'Operating segments', no disclosures relating to segments are presented in these standalone financial 
sta tements. 

Note 30: Fin ancial ins truments b y ca t egory 

Financia l asse t s by category 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 
Particulars Amortised Amortised 

Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Cost FVTPL FVTOCI 
cost cost 

Investm en ts in 
- Associate 202.16 - - 197.54 - - -
- Subsidiary 60.17 60.05 
- Equity shares - Unquoted - 0.06 - - - 0.06 - -

Trade receivables - - 4,735.06 - - - 4,867.69 
Loans - - 56.30 - - - 54.30 
Cash & cash equiva lents (including - 194.34 - - - 235.34 
other bank balances) 

Other financial assets 
- Security & Tender deposits - - - 13.68 - - 6.61 
- Deposits - Maturity more than 12 
months '" - - - 228 .09 224.00 
- Interest Accrued - - - - - - - -
- Amount receivable from Stat utory - - - - - - -Authorities 
- Others - - - 4 .94 - - 4 .35 

To t a l Fin ancia l assets 262.33 0.06 - 5,232.40 2 57,59 0.06 - 5,392 .29 

Fi n ancia l li abili t ies by ca tegory 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Par t i cula rs Amortised Amortised 
Cost FVTPL FVTOCI 

cost 
Cost FVTPL FVTOCI 

cost 

Borrowings - - - 3,053.56 - - - 3,159.66 
Trade pay abies - - - 4,855.98 - - - 2,593.71 
Other financial liabilities -

- Payables on purchase of fixed ass - - - 257.44 - - 0.95 
- Unpaid Expenses - - - 37 .25 - - 309 .58 
- Interest accrued 1.12 16 .33 

Tota l Financia l li ab i lities - - - 8 ,205.35 - - - 6 ,080.23 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financia l Statements 

Note 31 : Fair value Measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or t ransfer the liabi lity takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair va lue of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in thei r economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's abil ity to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by se ll ing it to another market participant that would use the 
asset in its highest and best use. 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within 
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole: 

a) Levell -- This includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The fair value of all equity instruments 
which are traded on the Stock Exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. 

b) Level 2 -- The fai r va lue of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for exam ple over-the­
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and 
rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. 
c) Level 3 -- If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in level 3 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing ca tegorisation (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair va lue measu rement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

External va luers are involved, wherever required, fo r val uation of sig nificant assets, such as properties, unquoted 
financial assets and significant liabilities. Involvement of external val uers is decided upon by the Company after 
discussion with and approval by the Company's management . Selection cri teria include market knowledge, reputation, 
independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The Company, after discussions with its external 
valuers, determines which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case. 

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required 
to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For th is analysis, the Company verifies the 
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and 
other relevant documents. The Company also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with 
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. 

For the purpose of fai r value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

This note summarises accounting policy fo r fai r value measu rement. Other fair va lue related disclosures are given in the 
relevant notes. 

1 Carry i ng value and fair value 
Given below is the comparison by class of the carrying value and fair value of the Company's financial instruments. 

(Rs. In lakhs) 
Carrvin value Fair value See Note) 

Particulars As at March As at March As at March As at March 
31,2025 31,2024 31,2025 31,2024 

Financial Assets (1) 
Trade receivables 4 ,735.06 4,867.69 4 ,735.06 4,867.69 
Loans 56.30 54.30 56.30 54.30 
Cash & cash equivalents (including other 
bank balances) 194.34 235.34 194.34 235.34 
Security & Tender deposits 13.68 6.61 13.68 6.61 

Deposits - Maturity more than 12 months * 228.09 224.00 228.09 224.00 
Interest Accrued - - - -
Amount receivable from Statutory 
Authorities - - - -
Others Financial Assets 4.94 4.35 4.94 4.35 

Total Financial Assets 5232.40 5392.29 5232.40 5392.29 

Financi al Li abilities ( 2) 
Borrowings 3,053.56 3,159.66 3,053.56 3,159.66 40/ 

~HANDc( 
Trade payables 4,855.98 2,593 .71 4,855.98 2,593.71 ~ ..-
Payables on purchase of fixed assets 257.44 0.95 257.44 0.95 '" '" MEDABAD " Unpaid Expenses 37.25 309.58 37.25 309.58 co A 0 

0- F N·123825W 
* Interest accured 1.12 16.33 1.12 16.33 

~ 
~ 

Total Financia l Liabilities 8205.35 6080.23 8205.35 6080.23 ;$::~ 
, £0 ACCQ-:l 



The management assessed that cash and cash equiva lents, t rade receivables, other financia l assets, trade 
payables, working capital loa n and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to 
the short-term maturities of these instruments . . 

1 Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hie rarchy for assets 

Quanti tative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2025 (Valuation date - March 31, 2( 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Fair value measurement using 
Quotea 

Significant Significant prices in 
observable 

Particulars active 
inputs 

unobservable inputs Total 
markets (Level ~) 
(Level 11 

(Level 2) 

Assets m easured at fair value 
FVTPL investments 

EQuity shares-U nquoted 0.06 0.06 

FVTOCI investments 
EQuitv shares-UnQuoted -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2025 (Valuation date - March 31, 2C 
(Rs. In lakhs1 

Fair value measurement using 
Quotea 

Significant 
prices in 

ob~ervable 
Significant 

Particulars active unobservable inputs Total 
markets 

inputs (Level 3) 
(tp' , pl 11 (Level 2) 

Assets measured at fair value 
FVTPL investments 

Equity shares-Unquoted - - 0 .06 0.06 

FVTOCI investments 
Equity shares-Unquoted - - -

There were no transfers bet ween any levels during the year . 

Movements in level 3 financial instruments m easured at fair value 
The following tables show a reconci liation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and 
liabilities which are recorded at fair va lue. Transfers from Level 3 to Level 2 occur when the market for some 
securities became more liquid, wh ich eliminates the need for the previously requi red significant unobservable 
va luation inputs. Since the t ransfer, these instruments have been valued using va luation models incorporat ing 
observable market inputs. Tram;fers into Level 3 reflect changes in market conditions as a result of which 
ins truments become less liquid. Therefore, the Company requires significant unobservable inputs to calculate 
their fair value. 
The following tables show the reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and 
liabilities measured at fai r value: 

(Rs. in lacs) 

Particulars As at March As at March 31, 
311 2025 2024 

Openin Balance 0.06 0 .06 
Purchases 0.00 0.00 
Sales 0.00 0.00 
Issuances 0 .00 0.00 
Settlements 0 .00 0.00 
Transfer into Level 3 0.00 0.00 
Transfer from Level 3 0.00 0.00 
Net in terest income, net trading income and other income 0.00 0 .00 
Income / (loss) receognised in other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 
ClosinQ Balance 0.06 0.06 

Unrealised gains and losses related to balances held at the end of 
th e year 0.00 0.00 



Unison Meta ls Lt d 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

N ot e 32 : Financia l risk management 

The Company's pr incipal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The loans and borrowings are primarily taken 
to finance and support the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial asset s Include Investments, loans, cash and cash equivalents, t rade receivables and 
other finanCial assets. 

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit r isk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's 
senior management ensures t hat financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financia l risks are identified, measured and 
managed In accordance with t he Company's policies and risk objectives . The risk management system Is relevant to business reality, pragmatic and simple and 
involves the following: 
Ri sk identifi cation and definiti on: Focuses on identifying re levant risks, creating I updating clear definit ions to ensureundlsputed underst anding along with details of 
the underlying root causes I cont.ribu t ing factors. 

Risk classification: Focuses on understanding the variOUS impacts o f risks and the level of influence on its root causes . This involves identifying various processes 
generating t he root causes and clear understanding of risk interrelationships . 

Risk assessment and prioritisation: Focuses on determining risk priorit y and risk ownership for critical risks. This involves assessment of the various impacts taking 
into consideration risk appetite and existing mitigat ion controls. 

Risk mitigation: Focuses on addressing critical risks to restrict their impact(s) to an acceptable level (within the defined risk appetite). This involves a clear definition 
of actions, responsibilities and milestones. 

Risk reporting and monitoring: Focuses on providing to the Board periodic information on risk profile evolution and mitigation plans. 

1. Market Risk , 
Market r isk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices . Market risk comprises three 
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk or Net assset value ("NAV") risk in case of investment in mutual funds. 
Financia l instruments affected by market risk include investments, trade receivables, trade payables, loans and borrowings and deposits. 

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to t he position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. 

The sensi t ivity of the relevant profit and loss item is t he effect of t he assumed changes in respective market r isks. This Is based on the financial assets and financial 
liabilities held at March 31, 2025 and March 3 1, 2024. 

Interest r ate r isk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fai r value or future cash flows of a financia l instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates . The Company's 
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily t o the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

Interest rate sensitivity 
The following t able demonstrates t he sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and borrowings. With all other variables held constant, t he 
Company's profit before tax is affected throug h the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows : 

(Rs . In la khs 

Particulars Increasej(decrease) in basis points 
Incr easej(decr ease} in profit 

before tax 

March 31, 2025 
Rupee borrowinQS +50 (7.26) 

-50 7.26 
March 31,2024 
Rupee borrowinQS +50 (8.37) 

-50 8.37 

The assumed movement in basis pOints for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a significantly higher 
volatility than in prior years. 

Fo r e ig n currency risk 

The Company has international operations and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions . Foreign exchange risk arises from future 
commercial t ransactions and recognised financial assets and liabili t ies denominated in a currency t hat Is not it s functional currency (Rs) . The risk also includes highly 
probable foreign currency cash flows 

As an estimation of the approximate im pact of the foreign exchange rate r isk, with respect to the Standalone Financial Statements, t he Company has calculated the 
Impact as follows: 

fRS . In la khs 
Fore. n Currenc Amount R. ortin Cur renc Amount 

Particulars Asat As at 

Mar ch 3 1, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 3 1, 2025 March 3 1, 2 024 

Accounts Receivable 
U50 1.40 1.40 119.77 116.81 

Acco unts Pavab le 
U50 -



Foreign currency sensitivity 

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change USC exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The Impact on the 
Company's pront before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other 
currencies is not material. 

{Rs. I n lakhs} 

Particulars Change in USD rate Effect o n profit before tax 

March 31. 2025 5% 5.99 
-5% (5.99) 

March 31, 2024 5% (~.84 
-5% 5.84 

2 Credit Risk 

Credit risk 15 the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a nnancial instrument or customer contract, leading to a nnanclal loss. The Company is 
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily t rade receivables) and from Its nnanclng activities, including deposits with banks and nnancial institutions 
and foreign exchange transactions. 

Trade receivables 

j:ustomer credit risk is managed by the Company's internal policies, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is 
assessed based on an credit rating scorecard and credit limits are denned in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly 
monil ored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of credit. As at March 31, 2025, there were 8 customers with balances greater than 
RS.100 lakhs accounting for more than 91.88% of the total amounts receivables. As at March 31, 2024 there were 8 customers with balances greater than Rs.100 lakhs 
accounting for more than 89.64% of the total amounts receivables. 

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and 
operate in largely independent markets. 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14 days to 180 days credit term. Credit limit s are established for all customers based on internal rating 
criteria. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base Is widely distributed both economically and geographically. 

3 Liquidity Risk 

The principal sources of liquidity of the Company are cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and the cash flow that is generated from operations. It believes that current 
cash and cash equivalents, tied up borrowing lines and cash flow that 15 generated from operations is sufncient to meet requirements. Accordingly, liquidity risk is 
perceived to be low 

The following table shows the maturity analysis of financial liabilities of the Company based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the Standalone 
Balance Sheet date 

R,_ I n lakhs\ 

Particu lars On demand Less than 1 Year More than 1 Year Total 

As at year ended 
March 3 1, 2025 

Borrowings (Including current 1,308.49 275.77 1,469.30 3,053.56 
maturities of long-term borrowings) 
Trade &. other payables - 4,855.98 - 4,855.98 
Other nnancial liabilities 295.80 295.80 

Milrch 3 1, 2024 

Borrowings (Including current 1,308.91 507.37 1,343.36 3,159.65 
maturities of long-term borrowings) 
Trade &. other payables 2,593.72 2,593.72 
Other nnanclal liabilities 1,390.10 1390.10 



Unison Metals ltd 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Note 33 : Capital Management 

The primary objective of capital management is to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to 
support its business and maximise shareholder va lue, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the 
Company. It determines the capital requ irement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic 
investment plans. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and 
the requirements of the financia l covenants. To maintain or adjust the capita l structure, the Company may adjust the 
dividend payment to sha reholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital 
using a gea ring ratio, which is net debt divided by tota l capital plus net debt. The Company includes, withi n net debt, 
interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. 

(Rs In lakhs) 
Particulars As at March 31 2025 As at March 31 2024 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 12 & 14) 3,053.56 3,159.66 

Less: cash and cash equivalent (Note 8) 13.98 3.39 

Net debt 3039.58 3156.27 

Equity share capital (Note 10) 1,602. 10 1,602.10 
Other equity (Note 11) 524. 06 384 .95 
Total capital 2126.16 1987.05 
Capital and net debt 5165.73 5 143.31 
Gearing ratio (0/0 ) 58.84 % 61.370/0 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's ca pital management, amongst other things, aims to ensu re that 
it meets financia l covenants attached to the interest-bea ring loans and borrowings that define capita l structure 
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immed iately call loans and 
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loa ns and borrowing in the 
current period. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capita l during the yea rs ended March 31, 
2025 and March 31, 2024 



Unison Meta ls Ltd 
Notes to the Standalone financial Statements 

Note 34 : Con tingent Liabili ties 
Rs. In lakhs) 

As at As at Particulars 
March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

a. Claim against the company not 
3,196.00 450.00 

acknowledoe as debts 
b. Disputed demand under: 

income tax 
The Company has given corporate bank guarantee to Chandanpani Private Umited(WhoUy Owned Subsidiary) amounting to 
Rs. 3196 takhs (450 Lakhs) for borrowing sanction against sodium silicate project, Solar finance from SlOB!. And Wor1:ing 
capi ta l including non fund based and term loan from Punjab National Bank 
The regulatory cla ims are under litigation at various forums. The Company expects the outcome of the above matters to be 
in its favour and has, therefore, not recognised provision In relation to these claims. The above excludes Interest I pena lty 
unless demanded by the authorities. 

Note 35 : Commitments & Obligations 

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period, but not recognised as liabilities, is as follows: 
Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars AS at As at 
March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 
and not provided for; (net of capital advances) 

Note 36 : Earnings per Share ( EPS ) 
--.lRs. In lakhs 

For the Year ended 
For the Year 

Particulars 
March 31, 2025 

ended March 31, 
2024 

Basic & Diluted EPS 
Computation of Profit (Numerator) 

(i) Profit/(Ioss) from continuing operations 135.71 93.96 
(ii) Profit from d iscontinued operations 
(iii) Profit/(Ioss) from continuing & discontinued operatiOnS 135.71 93.96 

Weighted Average Number of Shares (Denominator) Nos. Nos. 
Weighted average number of Equity shares of Rs.10 each used for 

1,60,21,000 1,60,21,000 calculation of basic and d iluted earnings per share 

Basic & Diluted EPS (in Rupees) 
(i) Continuing operations 0.85 0.59 
(ii) Discontinued operations 
(iii) Continuing and DiScontinued operations 0.85 0.59 

I Face_~a!ue per share (in Rs.) 10 101 

Note 37 : Payment to Auditors 

Details of payment to Auditors are as follows: 
Rs. In lakhs) 

For the Year ended 
For the Year 

Particulars 
March 31, 2025 

ended March 31, 
2024 

Audi t fees and tax audit fees 2.50 1.88 
Certification and other services 0.63 0.62 
Total 3.13 2.50 

The Management is of the opinion that as on Balance Sheet Date, there are no indication of material Impairment loss on 
Ii Property, Plant and Equipment, hence, the need to provide for impariment loss does not arise. 
iii The figures of Previous Years have been regrouped wherever considered necessary. 



Not e 38 : 80rrow ings secured aga inst current assets 

As on date Nam e of 8a nk 

30-06-2024 

30-09-2024 
HDFC Bank 

31-12-2024 

31-03-2025 

Reasons for Material Discrepancies: 

Particulars 
Security Provided 

Primary- Stock & 
Book Debts & 

Rs. In lakhs 
Am ount reported in 

" oflAmount 
books 
account(a ) 

'"',ithe qUartetlYIAm oun t of-d ifference 
o retur~ /statement (a-b) 

submItted to 
bank(b ) 

6,465.18 5,988.66 476.52 

7,259.57 6,805.44 454.1 4 
Collateral- Land & 6,712.62 6,867.20 -154.59 

Building 8,385.57 8,879.77 -494.21 

Percentage 
o f variation 
d"' (c/a)*lOO 

7.37 

6.26 

-2.30 

-5.89 

1. The company submits the value of stock and debtor.; to the bank on historical cost basis whereas the same are valued In books of accounts as per the valuation criteria specified in Ind AS 2 
lind Ind AS 109. 

In terms of our report of even date attacn~ 
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Financial ratios: 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 % Change
Reasons for Material 
Change

Current ratio 1.16                               1.16                            0.26%
Total debt equity ratio 1.39                               1.54                            -9.77% -                                      
Debt service coverage ratio 0.69                               0.76                            -8.90% -                                      
Return on Equity (%) 6.60% 4.84% 36.24% As per Note 1
Inventory turnover ratio 5                                     8                                  -32.06%
Debtors turnover ratio (in days) 104                                123                             -15.44% -                                      
Trade payables turnover ratio (in days) 86                                   102                             -15.94%
Net capital turnover ratio (in days) 26                                   21                                22.72% As per Note 2
 Net profit ratio (%) 0.81% 0.63% 29.35% As per Note 1
Return on Capital Employed (%) 8.69% 12.27% -29.14% -                                      
Return on investment (%) 1.82% 1.75% 4.21%

Basis for ratios:

Current ratio
(Total current assets/Current liabilities)

Net Debt equity ratio
(Total debt/ equity)
[Total debt: Non-current borrowings + Current Borrowings - Deposits/Margin Money against Long Term Borrowings
[Equity: Equity share capital + Other equity]

Debt service coverage ratio

[EBIT: Profit before taxes +/(-) Exceptional items + Net finance charges]
[Net finance charges: Finance costs ]

Return on Equity (%)
Profit after tax (PAT)/Average Equity)
[Equity: Equity share capital + Other equity]

Inventory turnover ratio
(Cost of Goods sold/Average Inventory )

Debtors turnover ratio (in days)
(Average trade receivables/Turnover in days)
[Turnover: Revenue from operations]

Note 1: During the financial year under consideration productwise margins have been improved.

Note 2: Company's working capital management is more efficient and aim to increase the number of "turns".

(EBIT/(Net finance charges  + Scheduled principal repayments of non current borrowings and lease 
obligations (excluding prepayments) during the period))



Trade payables turnover ratio (in days)
(Average Trade Payables/Expenses in days)

Net capital turnover ratio (in days)
working capital/Turnover in days
[Working capital: Current assets - Current liabilities]
[Turnover: Revenue from operations]

 Net profit ratio (%)
(Net profit after tax/Turnover)
[Turnover: Revenue from operations]

Return on Capital Employed (%)
(EBIT/Average capital employed)

[EBIT: Profit before taxes +/(-) Exceptional items + Net finance charges

Return on investment (%)

[Capital Employed: Equity share capital + Other equity + Non current borrowings + Current borrowings]

((Net gain/(loss) on sale+fair value changes of mutual funds)/Average investment funds in current 
investments)

[Expenses: Total Expenses - Finance Cost - Depreciation and Amortisation Expense – Employee Benefit 
Expenses in respect of Retirement Benefits – Other expenses with respect to Royalty, Rates & Taxes, Prior 
Period Exps, Bad-Debts, Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances, Provision for Impairment and Foreign 
Exchange Gain/Loss, Sitting Fees of Directors and Interest on Statutory Dues]



CA Purushottam Khandelwal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

INDIA 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Members of 

Unison lVIetals Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Unison Metals L ilTlit(~Li 

(hereinafLl'1 relerl eel La dS the "Holding CornpclnY") and its subsidiaries (Holding C:Ull1fJdllY 

and its subsidiaries logelher referred to as "the Group"), its associates and its joint willures, 

which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the consolidated 

statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated sldlernent 

of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then endl~el, oHIO 

notes to the consolidateci linancial statel"nems, including material accounting policies ~llid 

other l'X!)I~:llciLUI y liliuII11~:[;On (hereinJli:2i' reierl 'ed to as "the consolidated rlilanciai 

stateme,lts" ). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the 'Basis for Qualified opinion' 
section of report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 

required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the mariner so required and give a true and 

fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

consolidated state of afiairs of the Group, its associates and joint ventures as at March 31, 

2025, 01 ils cOllsolidated pi orit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in 

equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

The Group's investment in the Chandanpani Enterprise (the "Associate"), an associate 

accounted for by the equity method, is carried at Rs.216.22 Lacs on the consolidated balancc:' 

sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Company's share of the Associate's net profit of Hs. 3.26 

Lacs is included in the Company's income for the year then ended. The Associate Iras an 

investment in a foreign entity which is carried dt Rs. 201.60 Lacs in its accounts as c.ll March 

31,2025. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the fdir value 

of Associate's investment in the foreign entity as at March 31, 2025 because of unavailability 

of its financial information. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any fair 

value adjustments to the carrying amount of the foreign entity were necessary. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the, Slanclards on Auditing ("SAs") specifi2d under 

Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). Our responsibilities under those 



., 

Responsibilities section below. We are independent of the Company in accordance with thE.' 

Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (lithe ICAI") together 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial 

results for the year ended March 31, 2025 under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtailled by 

us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion except for matter 

described under basis of qualified opinion. 

Key Audit Matter 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgmellt, wei l~ ()I ITlU,,1 

significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. rlll",(' 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial stlJ[('rT\l~nl '. 

as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 011 

these matters. 

The Key Audit Matter I How the matter was addressed in o~r audit 

Revenue Recognition - Refer Note 19 of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. 

Revenue is recognised when significant risk Our audit procedures included: 

and rewards of ownership of the products • Assessing the appropriateness of the 

have passed to customers and it is measured revenue recognition accounting 

at the fair value of the consideration policies, by comparing with 
received or receivable, net of returns and 

allowances, trade discounts and volume 

rebates. 

Owing to the variety of products, markets, 

product specifications, credit terms, delivery 

terms and other terms of supply, discounts 

and volurlle related concessions, the 

product pricing, recognition and 

measurement of revenue involves a 

significant amount of management 
judgement and estimation. 

Therefore, there is a risk of revenue being 

misstated as a result of faulty judgements or 

estimations. There is also a risk of revenue 

being overstated due to fraud resulting from 
the pressure on management to achieve 

performance targets at the reporting date. 

applicable accounting standards. 

• Performing substantive testing 
(including year- end cut-off testing) 

by selecting samples of revenue 

transactions recorded durine the 

year (and before and '-liter the I 

financial year end) by verifyillg the I 

underlying documents, which 

included sales invoices/col1lncts 

and shipping documents. 

• Comparing the historical Sales Price 
[0 current trends. We also 

considered the historical accuracy of 

the Company's estimates in previous 

years. 

• Seeking 



with available 
evidences wherever 
necessary 

documentary 
considered 

• Evaluating the adequacy of the 
Company's disclosures in 
respect of revenue. 

Suspension of manufacturing operations of Cold Rolled Patta-Patti Plant - Refer Note 2.3 
of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. 

Our audit of the Financial Statements for the Our audit procedures included: 

year ending 31st March, 2025 included the 

evaluation of the Accounting Treatment and 
disclosure of assets classified as "Held for 
Sale", which have not been sold within one 
year from the classification date. The assets 

in question have not been sold within the 

expected timeframe due to limited 

availability of buyers in the market, primarily 

attributed to the high value and specialized 

nature of the assets. 

Our audiL procedures revealed that 

management's decision to classify the assets 

as held for s<.Jle, even though 

a sale within one year was not feasible due 

to limited availabililY or buyers, was 

supported by Clppl opriJlc justifications. The 

market conditions and specialized nature of 
the assets were consistent challenges 

encountered in attracting potential buyers. 

We confirmed that the fair value 

determination was appropriately 

conducted, taking into account the unique 

circumstances surrounding the assets. 

Additionally, the related disclosures were 

found to be in and transparent 

comprehensive communicating the reasons 

for the delayed sale and the potential 

impact on the entity's operiJtions. 

• Evaluating the rationale and 
supporting documentation decision 
to classify these assets as held for 

management's for sale despite the 

absence of potential buyers within 
one year and assessing whether the 

decision was well-founded, 

considering factors such as market 

conditions, historical sales data, and 

expert opinions. 

• Examining whether management 
conducted market research to 

identify potential buyers and to 
assess the feasibility of sale within 

the designated timeframe as well 

as determining the credibility or the 

reasons provided for the lack of 
available buyers. 

• Reviewing the methodologies 
employed by management to 

determine the fair value less costs to 
sell relevant to the specialized 

niJture of the assets and limited I 

buyer availability and verified the 

inputs used in the valuation process 

and their alignment with market 

data and expert opinions. 

• Assessing whether the sale is 
anticipated to qualify for recognition 

JS CI completed sale withirl the 

stipulated time frame provided in 

Ind AS. 

• Evaluating whether the assets 
classified as held for sale are 

measured at lower of its 

- I ------...... 
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Other Information 

and whether further impairment loss 
to be provided or not in accordance 
with Ind AS-36 Impairment of Assets . 

• Reviewing the disclosures in the 
financial statements related to the 
classification of assets as held for 
sale and not sold within one year and 
evaluating the reasons for the delay 
in sale, potential impact on the 
entity's operations, and the 
uncertainties surrounding the timing 
of sale are accurately and adequately 

communicated to users of the 
financial statements. 

Evaluating whether the Cludil I 
procedures applied provides a 

reasonable level assurance on the 
accounting treatment and disclosure 

of these assets as "Held for Sale", 

despite the extended timeframe, are 

in accordance with the applicable 
framework financial reporting 
specifically IND AS . - ------- -

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other 

information. The othel in/ormation comprises the inforrnation included in the Cornpany's 

annual report, but does not include the fin(Jncial statements and auditor's reports thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained 

in the (Judit or otherwise appears to be m(Jterially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the consolidated financial 

statements 

The Comp(Jny's M(Jnagement Clnd Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated 

in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated tinanciai 

statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other 



the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Acl. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequale accounting records in accordallce with the provisions of tho Act fOI 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgmenb 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively fOI 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevanl to the 

preparation and present<llion of the consolid<lted financi<.d statements th<lt give a true and 

fair view and <lre fre e frorn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing 

the consolidated financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are 

responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 

or has no l ealistic i:llterIldLi ve but to do so . 

The Board 01 Directol s is <.llso responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements 

Our objectives are to oblail) reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 

statemenLs as a wlloll! dl 0 1100 from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 01 error, 

and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 

of assurance, but is not J guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 

error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influel)co lllo economic decisions of users taken on the basis 01 these' 

consolidaLe d finan cial sl<JLolm~nts. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated lillanciJi 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit prolL'dure~ 

resp onsive to tho se risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appi opriato 

to pr-ovide a b<lsi s for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) 

01 the Act, w e al e also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company 

has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls . 



• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of 

Directors. 

• Conclude 011 the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directol S usc: ul 

the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial 

statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether Cl IIlJteriJI 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a rn<Jteri<J1 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to tht' 

related disclosures in the consolidaLed fillancial sLaLements or, if SUcll disclu~.lIll'S ~lll' 

inadequate, to rnodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on Lhl' audit eviu(~IlCl' 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, luture events or cUllllitiul\'. 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated filldnci,JI 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated fillc..Hlcial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a m,)fllH'1 that 

c,clli~vcs I elil iJl L·sl~ IlLaLion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, thl' 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethicJI I equirC:llll'nts regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships c..1fld UtllL'1 1l1atters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mallers in 

our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the maLter or 

when, in eXlrernely Idll' circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicJted in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by 

lhe Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in thE' 

"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specitied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 

to the extent applicable 

2. A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that : 



a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to thE.: 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of 

the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation 

of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so fin as it 

appears from our examination of those books and reports of the other Juditor~. 

except for the matter stated in the paragraph 28(f) below on reporting under Rull' 

l1(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and los~ 

(including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of cllJllge', 

in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by thi~ He'por t 

are in agreernent with the books of Clccount 

d) In our opinion , the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply willI thl' 

Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of Holding 

Company as on May 02, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 01 

the directors of the Group Companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from 

being appointed ClS a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts <:lnd other IlIJtters 

cOllnectc;d lherewith are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reportine 

under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule l1(g) 

of the CompClnies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial stCltements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, 

dssuciaLe COllllJ,wies and joint venture companies incorporated in India dnd the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 

8" 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit <:lnd Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations Biven to 

us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separatl' 

financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, as noted in the 

"Other Matters" paragraph: 

a. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations 

as at March 31, 2025 on the consolidated financial position of the GIOUp, its 

associales and joint ventures . 

b. Tile GI oUjJ, iLS associates and joinL venLures did flot have any material foreseeable 

losses on longterm contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 

March 31, 2025. 

c. 



companies clild joinl venture conl[JJllies incorporated in India during the yeal 

ended Marcil 31, 202S. 

d. (i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 

companies, associate companies and joint venture companies incorporated in 
India whose financial 'statements have been audited under the Act have 

represented to us and to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have 

been <Jdv<Jnced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any 

of such subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture companies 

to or in any other . person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

("Intermediaries")' with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Holding Cornpany or any of such subsidiary companies, associate companies and 

joint Vel1tlm: companies ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 

securily or' the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 

companies, associate companies and joint venture companies incorpor<Jted in 

India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have 

I epresented to us and to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds havC:.' 

been rc'ceived by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary cornp<mies, 

associate companies and joint venture companies from any person(s) or 

entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of 

such subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture cornpanies 

shall direcLly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities idenlified in 

any rnanner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our or 

other auditors notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 

sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain 

any material misstatement. 

e. None of the group companies has declared and paid any dividend during the year 

under review. 

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Holding Company and 

its subsidiary cornpany has used accounting software for maintaining its books of 

account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same 

has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 

respective software. Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and 

operated throughout the year for the accounting software, we did not come 



., 

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 

197(16) of the J-\ct: 

In oLir opinion Jnd according to the information and explanations given to us, ttll' 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current YCdl is ill 

accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to 

any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) 

of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: May 30, 2025 

For Purushottam Khandelwal and Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 0123825W 

CA Mahendrasingh S Rao 
Partner 

Membership No: 154239 
UDIN: 25154239BMGYXT6103 
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Annexure A 

to the Independent Auditors' Report on the Consolidated financial statements of Unison 

Metals Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 

section of our report of even date) 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following 

companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have 

unfavourable remarks, qUCllification or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in 

their reports under tho Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO): 

~ 
~. 

Name of the 

Entities 

Chandanpani 

Limited 
--

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: May 30, 2025 

CIN Relationship 

U28999GJ2018PLC102117 Subsidiary 

Adver se 

rk Rema 

No Ad verse 

rk Rerna --

For Purushottam Khandelwal and Co 



Annexure B 

to the Independent Auditors' Report on the consolidated financial statements of Unison 

Metals Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to the Aforesaid Consolidated 

financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act (Referred to 

in Paragraph 2{A)(g) under 'Report on other legal and Regulatory Requirements' Section of 

our Report of Even Date) 

Opinion 

In conjunction with OUI Judit of the consolidated financial statements of Unison Metals 

Limited (hereinafter relerred to as "the Holding Company") as of and for the year ended 

March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to tinancial 

statements of the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Act 

which are its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and joint venture companies, as 

of that date, 

In our opinion and b<.lscc! 011 the consideration of reports the Holding Company and such 

companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, its associate companies 

and joint venture companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial controls with 

reference to financial st<.ltements criteria established by such companies considering the 

essential components 01 such internal controis stated in the Guidance Note on J\udit 01 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute or Chell tercd 

Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note"), 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible fOI 

establishing ~iild InJint~liililig internal liIlJlh;i~d (ollliois b~lsed on thl' intcrn,JI liIILlI1C1111 

controls with reference La financial statemenLs criteria established by the Company 

considering the essentiClI components of internal control stated in the Guidance NoLc, These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient: 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of fr auds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounLing I CCOI ds, 3nd the timely prep3ration of r'eliable financial informaLion, as 

required undel the AcL 



Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) 01 

the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to 

financial staLements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we cOlllfJly with 

ethical reqLli((:~ rnents alld plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance <-Ibout 

whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statemellts wen' 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects, 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of tht, 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operatinr., 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statement!:> 

included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk . The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks 

of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provid e a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 

reference to fil1anci<.l1 SlCllclllents. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process 

designed to iJlovide r< .. 'JsoI1Jble assurance I egal ding th e reliabililY of financial repol Lj r,g anc1 

the preparation of finc1l1ciClI statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles . A company's internal financial controls with refercl1Ce to 

financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statCrll(! nts in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expl'lIditures 

of the cornp any are being rnade only in accordance with authorisations of rnanagemenl and 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention at 

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements. 



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: May 30, 2025 

For Purushottam Khandelwal and Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 0123825W 



Unison Metals Limited 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 

(Rs in lakhs) 

Particulars Notes As at As at 
March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

ASSETS 

I. Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 2 2,957.19 2,677.94 
Capital work-in-proqress 2 2.22 2.22 
Non-current financial assets 

Investment 3 216.28 218. 29 
Trade Receivables 5 56.56 67,87 
Loans 6 - -
Other non-current financial assets 7 338.18 313.09 

Non-current tax assets 18 68.95 68. 99 

Other non-current assets 9 54.71 66.95 

3694.09 3415.34 

II.Current assets 
Inventories 4 6,068.04 4,357.07 
Current Financial Assets 

Investment 3 - -

Trade receivables 5 8,036,62 8,108,27 
Cash and cash equivalents 8 30,90 24.67 
Other balances with Bank 8 180.36 231.95 

Loans 6 264.80 240.72 

Other current f inancial assets 7 254.55 303.63 

Other current assets 9 523 .92 1,547.17 

Current tax Asset 18 - 37.27 
15359.19 14850.73 

Assets classified as held for sale 358.47 419.07 

Total Assets 19411.75 18685.18 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Equity share capital 10 1,602.10 1,602.10 
Other equity 11 2,139.76 1,696.86 
Equity Attributable to owners of Unison Metals Ltd. 3,741.86 3,298.96 
Non-Controlinq Interest 18.00 18.00 

3759.86 3316.96 
LIABILITIES 
I. Non-current liabilities 
Non-current financial liabilities 

Borrowinqs 12 2,641.76 2.486.32 
Lonq-term provisions 15 47.44 32.36 
Other Finanacial Liability - -
Deferred tax liabilities 18 144.74 77.93 

2833.94 2596.61 

II.Current liabilities 
Current financ ial liabilities 

Borrowinqs 12 3.684.90 3.4tlO .36 
Trade payables 

Total outstandinq dues of 
a) Micro enterprises and small 

13 31.13 . 
enterprises 
b) Creditors other than micro 

13 6,98l.33 6,315.51 
enterprises and small enterprises 

Other current financial liabilities 14 1.535.19 522.82 
Other current liabilities 16 502.76 2.279.49 
Short-term provisions 15 40.59 46.74 
Current tax liabilities 18 42.05 126.71 

12817.94 12 771.61 

Total Equity and liabilities 19,411.75 18685.18 

Notes forming part of financial statements ( including significant accounting policies) (Notes 1-37) 

In terms of our report of even date attached 

Cli'"d'.S;"" S R.~ 
Partner 
Membership No. 154239 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

For and on behalf of the B 
r W. \. 

Rashi Tirth Mehta 
DIN: 10697866 
Managing Director 

f2~ 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

CS Mitali Patel 

Mem No. 37334 

Company Secretary 



Unison Metals Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 

(Rs in lakhs) 
Particulars Notes For Year ended For Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31 2024 

Revenue from operations 19 31,525.23 27,575 .58 
Other income 20 102.23 90.95 

Total Revenue [I] 31627.46 27666.53 

Expenses 
Cost of Material Consumed 21 23,225.51 19,812.85 
Pu rchase of Stock in trade 22 1,553.41 2,120.57 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade 
and work-in-progress 26 394.00 -1,653.64 
Employee benefits expense 23 743.21 633 .33 
Finance costs 24 643.39 794.27 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 374.61 378.88 
Impairment on Tangible Assets - 36.96 
.other Expenses 27 4,083.71 5,041 .57 

Total expenses [II] 31017.84 27164.79 

Profit before tax [111=1-11] 609.62 501.73 

Tax expense 
Current tax 104.30 169.28 
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 0.39 2.45 
Deferred ta x 62.68 -21.99 
Total tax expense [IV] 167.37 149.73 
Profit for the year [V=III-IV] [A] 442.25 352.00 

Share Profit / (Loss) of Associates 3.26 4.47 

Profit / (Loss) of the period 445.51 356.47 

Other comprehensive income 
a) Items that will be classified to profit I loss 
b) tems that will not to be reclassified to profit I 
loss 

i) Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined 
benefit clans -4.98 2.95 
ii) Net gain / (loss) on FVOCI Equity instruments - -
i ii) Income tax effect on above - -

Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [B=i+ii] -4.98 2.95 

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [A+B] 440.53 359.42 

Earning per equity ·share of Rs.10/- each (Amount in Rs.) 
Basic 2.78 2.23 
Diluted 2. 78 2.23 

Notes forming part of financial statements (including significant accounting policies) (Notes 1-37) 

In terms of our report of even date attached For an~n behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ ). For Purushottam Khandelwal and Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 011825W ~ 
_,g ,fh==-. , 

CA Mahendrasingh 5 Rao 
Partner 
Membership No. 154239 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

Rashi Tirth Mehta 
DIN: 10697866 
Managing Director 

CA IfcFsh:rl -Bothara 
Mem No. 146769 
Chief Finance Officer 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

#~'~.IJL 
CS Mitali Patel 
Mem No. 37334 
Company Secretary 



Unison Metals Limited 
Consolidated statement of Cash flow for the year ended on March 31, 2025 

Particulars 

Cash flow from operating activities 

1. Profit before tax 

2. Adjustment for: 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Impairment on Tangible Assets 
Asset Written Off 
Finance cost 
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 
Share (Income)1 Loss from Partnership firm 
Interest income 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain 
Provision on Rajesh Asawa Loan 
Provision for Capital Advance 
Provision for Bad-Debts reversed 
Provision for doubtful debts 
Dividend Income 
Provision for Gratuity 
Liability written back 
Gratuity Paid 

Operating profit before working capital changes (1+2) 
3. Adjustments for working capital changes: 

Decrease I (Increase) in Trade and other receivables 
(Decrease) I Increase in Trade and other payables 
Decrease I( Increase) in Inventory 

Cash used in operations 
4. Direct taxes paid 
Prior Year's Adjustment 
Net Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 
[A] 
Cash Flow from investing activities 

Purchase of fixed assets (including capital advances) (Net of CWIP trf) 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Share income (loss) from partnership firm 
(Purchase) I Proceeds of non-current investments (Net) 

(Purchase) I Proceeds of current investments (Net) 
Proceeds from Loans and Advances (Net) 
Interest received 
Div idend Income 
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities [B] 

Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceeds from long term borrowings, net 
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net 
Finance cost 
Issuance of Capital 

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities [C] 

Net increase/(decrease} in cash 8< cash equivalents [A+B+C] 

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Notes: 
1 A) Components of cash 8< cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 
Cheques on hand 
Balances with banks 

- In Current accounts 
Total 

B) Cash and cash equivalents not available for immediate use 
Unclaimed dividend account 

Total 
Cash 8< cash equivalents as per Note 13 (A+B) -

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

609.62 
609.62 

374.61 

385.24 
257 .87 

-1.58 
-1.48 

-65 .00 
-2 .96 

1.35 

-29 .13 
-0 .20 
15.70 

-37.13 

1506.91 

1,212.44 
-144.30 

-1 710 .97 
864.07 
-32.98 

831.09 

-590 .78 
8 .77 

-3 .26 

0.01 
-24.63 
68 .26 

0 .20 
-541.43 

592.01 
-232.03 
-643.40 

-283.42 

6.23 

24 .67 

30.90 

15.71 

15 .19 
30.90 

30.90 

(Rs in lakhs) 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

501. 73 
501.73 

378.88 
36.96 
10.75 

794.27 
-4 .04 

-74.77 
-11.74 

1.35 

77 .73 
-1.20 
9.77 

-0.97 

1718,73 

-2,522.55 
2,411.55 

-1014 .73 
593 .00 
-59.47 

533.53 

-92.49 
24.34 

9.99 
-42.11 
74 .77 

1 .20 
-24.30 

433.08 
-337 .29 
-794.27 

-698.47 

-189.23 

213.90 

24.67 

7.56 

17.11 
24.67 

24.67 



., 

The amendments to IND-AS 7 Cash Flow Statements requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial 
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financial activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non· 

2 cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation beetween the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities 
arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. This amendment has become effective from 1st April, 2017 
and the required disclousre is made below. There is no other impact on the financial statements due to this amendment. 

The above cashflow statement has been prepared under the 'indirect method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard - 7 
3 "Statement of Cash Flows" . 

4 The previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary. 

Notes forming part of financial statements (including significant accounting policies) (Notes 1-37) 

In terms of our report of even date attached 

Chartered Accountants 

F.N T!';, , 
CA Mahendrasingh S Rao' 
Partner 
Membership No. 154239 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director. 

",M· 
R:i:( T;rth Mehta 
DIN: 10697866 
Managing Director 

a~ 
-== 

CA Roshan Bothara 
Mem No. 146769 
Chief Finance Officer 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

CS Mltllil Patel 
Mem No. 37334 
Company Secretary 



Unison Metals Limited :. 
Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on March 31, 2025 

.,. - _ .... ..... _.- _ .... 
Particulars 

Balance as at April 1, 2023 
Changes in Equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 

Balance as at April 1, 2024 
Changes in Equity share capital during the year 
Balance as ilt March 31, 2025 

~- - --

B. Other equity 

Attributable to the equity holders of the (:ompany 
ResE!rve and Sur Dlus Items or~ocr 

Particulars 
Capital 

Capital 
General Security 

Net gain I (loss) 

ReselVe 
Redemption 

Reserve premium 
Retained Earnings on FVTOCI Equity 

Reserve instruments 

Balance as at April 1, 2023 139.99 100.00 - 46.40 1,091.62 -40.57 
Profit for the year - - - 356.47 
Utilisation for Bonus Issue - -
Items of OCI, net of tax 

Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans 2.95 
Net gain / (loss) on Equity instruments carried - -
ilt fai r val"e t hrou!lh OCI 
Balance tm nsfer on derecognition of Equity 
Inst ruments carried .t fair value through OCI - -
I see note belowl 

Balance as at March 31 2024 139.99 1.00_~00 - 46.40 1 451.04 -40.57 

Balance as at April 1, 2024 139.99 100.00 - 46.40 1,451.04 -40.57 
Profit for the year - - - 445.51 
Utilisation for Bonus Issue - - - -
Items of OCl , net of tax 

Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans -4 .98 
Net gain / (loss) on Equity instruments carried 

2.37 
at fai r value through OCI 
Bal~ nce transfer on derecognition of Equity 
Instruments carried at fair value through DC! 
(See note below) 

Balance as at March 31, 2025 1.39.99 100.00 - 46.40 j,893.93 -40.57 

Note: The group has transferred the cumulative gain previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income to Retained Earnlgns on deregnitlon of the Equity Instrument. 
Refer Note 11 for nature and purpose of reserves . 
Notes forming part of financial statements (Including significant accounting policies)(Notes 1-37) 

In terms of our report of even date attached For and on b ehalf of t he Boa 

U 1::> 114 ~--
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

r-. 
OO':ehta 
OW : 1.0697866 

N~ 
CA Roshan Bothara 
Mem No. 146769 
Chief Finance Ofl\cef' 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : May 30,2025 

~:h,I/~~~ 
CS Mital; Patel 
Hem No. 37334 
Comoany Secretary 

, ..... . ......... .... ...... 
Amount 

1,602.10 
-

1602.'10 

1,602.10 
-

1,602.10 

no::» H I ICI\.II :' 

Total 

1,337.43 
356.47 

-
-

2.95 

1696.86 

1,696.86 
445.51 

-
-

·4.98 

2.37 

-
2,139.76 



Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Background 

Unison Metals Ltd is a public company limited by shares incorporated in India. Its registered office is located at Plot No 
5015, Ph-IV, Nr Ramol Cross Road, GIDC, Vatva, Ahmedabad-382445, Gujarat. 
The Company's shares are listed and and traded on stock exchanges in India. The company is primarily engaged in the 
business Cold Rolled Patta/Patti, Sodium Silicate and Ceramic.Chandanpani Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of Unison 
Metals Limited which engaged in the business of S S Ingots and Sodium Silicate. 

lIote 1 Significant accounting policies 

This Note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group in preparation of these Consolidated 
Financial Statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated 

a) Basis of preparation 
i) Statement of Compliance: 
The Consolidated Financial Statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act, as amended . 
ii) Historical cost convention: 
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and 
liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments). 
iii) The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. 
iv) The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the Standalone Financial Statements. All 
assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the normal operating cycle of the Company and 
other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and 
the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

v) Recent accounting pronouncements: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. 
Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting 
policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The 
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial 
statements . 
Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

This amendment has introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help 
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of 
this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and 
there is no imoact on its standalone financial statements. 
Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes 

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that 
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods 
beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone 
financial statement. 
vi) The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs. 
Any discrepancies in any table between totals and sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding off. 

b) Foreign currency transactions: 
i) Functional and presentation currency: 
Items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Group operates (,functional currency'). The Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Group are presented in Indian currency (' Rupees'), which is also the functional currency of the Group. 
ii) Transactions and balances: 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gain / (loss) resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss except that they are deferred in other equity if they relate to qualifying cash 
flow hedges. Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gain / (loss) presented in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss are on a net basis within other income / (expense). 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value that are denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined . Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at 
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain / (loss). Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical 
cost in a foreign currency are not revalued . 



. , 

c) Revenue recognition 
i) Revenue from contracts with customers: 
The Group manufactures and sells Stainless Steel products (such as Ingots, Flats, etc.) and Sodium Silicate Glass Solid in 
domestic and international markets. 

Revenue is recognised when control of goods is transferred to a customer in accordance with the terms of the contract. The 
control of the goods is . transferred upon delivery to the customers either at factory gate of the Company or specific location 
of the customer or when the goods are handed over to the freight carrier, as per the terms of the contract. A receivable is 
recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered to the customer as this represents the point in time at which the 
right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before payment is due. 

Revenue from services including those embedded in contract for sale of goods namely freight and insurance services 
mainly in case of export sales, is recognised upon completion of services. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined 
terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Group has concluded that it is 
the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has 
pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. 
ii) Other revenue: 
Eligible export incentives are recognised in the year in which the conditions precedent are met and there is no 
significant uncertainty about the collectability . 
Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross 
carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash 
flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and 
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 
Dividends are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment Is 
established; it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of 
the dividend can be measured reliably. 
Lease rental income is recognised on accrual basis. 

d) Taxes 

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is the tax payable on the taxable income of the 
current period based on the applicable income tax rates. Deferred tax reflects changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and unused tax losses. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the 
reporting period. The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes prOVisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

The Group has adopted option available under Section 115 BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, hence Minimum Alternate Tax 
(MAT) is not applicable to the Group from current year onwards. During previous years, MAT under the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 was recognised as current tax in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available 
under the Act in respect of MAT paid was recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there was 
convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried 
forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. Such an asset is reviewed at each Consolidated Balance Sheet date. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of 
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor 
taxable profit / (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the Consolidated Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income 
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

The Group considers reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning 
strategies in making the assessment of deferred tax liabilities and realisability of deferred tax assets. Based on the level of 
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax 
assets are deductible, the Management believes that the Group will realise the benefits of those deductible differences. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 
offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity. 

e) Government grants 
i) Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. 



f) Leases 
As a lessee: 

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at Inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a 
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses 
whether: i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits 
from use of the asset through the period of the lease and iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all 
lease arrangements in which it is lessee, except for short-term leases (leases with a term of twelve months or less), leases 
of low value assets and, for contract where the lessee and lessor has right to terminate a lease without permission from the 
other party with no more than an insignificant penalty. The lease expense of such short-term leases, low value assets 
leases and cancellable leases, are recognised as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

At commencement date, lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid during non­
cancellable period of the contract, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. The right-of-use assets is initially 
recognised at the amount of the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before 
commencement date less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. 

Subsequently the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Lease 
liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using effective 
interest rate method) and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. The right-of-use asset and 
lease liability are also adjusted to reflect any lease modifications or revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 

As a lessor: 
Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All 
other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected 
inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet based on their 
nature. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group as a lessor has substantially transferred all the risks and 
rewards are classified as finance lease. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rent receivables, net of 
interest income, are included in other financial assets. Each lease receipt is allocated between the asset and Interest 
income. The interest income is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the asset for each period. 

Under combined lease agreements, land and building are assessed individually. 

g) CUrrent / non-current classification 
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current classification. An asset is 
treated as current when it is: 

a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
A liability is treated as current when it is: 

a) expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period. 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets/materials for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents. As the Group's normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months. 

h) Property, plant and equipment 

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of asset or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss during the period in which they are incurred. Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of assets are recognised 
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 



c) Revenue recognition 
i) Revenue from contracts with customers: 
The Group manufactures and sells Stainless Steel products (such as Ingots, Flats, etc.) and Sodium Silicate Glass Solid in 
domestic and international markets. 

Revenue is recognised when control of goods is transferred to a customer in accordance with the terms of the contract. The 
control of the goods is transferred upon delivery to the customers either at factory gate of the Company or specific location 
of the customer or when the goods are handed over to the freight carrier, as per the terms of the contract. A receivable is 
recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered to the customer as this represents the point in time at which the 
right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before payment is due. 

Revenue from services including those embedded in contract for sale of goods namely freight and insurance services 
mainly in case of export sales, is recognised upon completion of services. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined 
terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Group has concluded that it is 
the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has 
pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. 
ii) Other revenue: 
Eligible export incentives are recognised in the year in which the conditions precedent are met and there is no 
significant uncertainty about the collectability. 
Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross 
carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash 
flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and 
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 
Dividends are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is 
established; it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of 
the dividend can be measured reliably. 
Lease rental income is recognised on accrual basis. 

d) Taxes 
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is the tax payable on the taxable income of the 
current period based on the applicable income tax rates. Deferred tax reflects changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and unused tax losses. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the 
reporting period. The Management periodically evaluates positi0l!s taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

The Group has adopted option available under Section 115 BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, hence Minimum Alternate Tax 
(MAT) is not applicable to the Group from current year onwards. During previous years, MAT under the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 was recognised as current tax in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available 
under the Act in respect of MAT paid was recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there was 
convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried 
forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. Such an asset is reviewed at each Consolidated Balance Sheet date. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of 
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor 
taxable profit / (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the Consolidated Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income 
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

The Group considers reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, prOjected future taxable income and tax planning 
strategies in making the assessment of deferred tax liabilities and realisability of deferred tax assets. Based on the level of 
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax 
assets are deductible, the Management believes that the Group will realise the benefits of those deductible differences. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 
offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity. 

e) Government grants 
i) Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. 



Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value: 
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of expected useful life and the 
expected residual value of the assets at the end of its useful life. The lives are based on historical experience with similar 
assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life. 
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method from the date of acquisition / installation till the 
date the assets are sold or disposed of: 

Particulars Useful life of assets 
Factory Building 30 years 
Office buildings 60 years 
Plant & Equipment 15-20 years 
Electrical installation 10 years 
Furniture & fixtures 10 years 
Office equipments 5 years 
Vehicles 8 years 
Data processing equipments 3 years 

The Group, based on technical evaluation carried out by internal technical experts, believes that the useful lives as given 
above best represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets.The residual values, useful lives 
and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 
The carrying amount of an asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount of the asset 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

i) Intangible assets 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured, on initial recognition, at cost. Following the initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised In the statement of profit and loss. 

Intangible assets are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. 

i) Investment properties 
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both and that is not in use by the Group, is 
classified as investment property . Land held for a currently undetermined future use is also classified as an investment 
property. Investment property is measured at its acquisition cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable, 
borrowing costs. 

k) Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable 
amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate 
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an 
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining 
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be 
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share 
prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. The Group Companies bases its impairment 
calculation on detailed budqets and forecast calculations. 
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses on assets no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group Companies estimates 
the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a 
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

I) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

m) Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are recognised when the right to consideration becomes unconditional. These assets are held at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method where applicable, less provision for impairment based on 
expected credit loss. 

n) Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to 
unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is 
reporting date. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measu 
method . 

I year which are 
nths from the 
using the EIR 



0) Inventories 
Inventories are stated at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost is determined on moving weighted average 
basis . 
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs 
necessary to effect the sale. 
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to the present 
location and condition. Cost includes the reclassification from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges 
relating to purchases of raw material but excludes borrowing costs. 
Due allowances are made for slow / non-moving, defective and obsolete inventories based on estimates made by the 
Group. 
Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which are not plant and machinery get classified 
as inventory. 

p) Investments and other financial assets 
Classification: 
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

i) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss) 

ii) Those measured at amortised cost 
Debt instruments: 
Initial recognition and measurement: 

Financial asset is recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial 

asset is recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asset not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, 

transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial asset carried at 

fa ir value through profit or loss are expensed in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Subsequent measurement: 
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model of the Group for managing the asset and 
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt 
instruments. 
Measured at amortised cost: 
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR method less impairment, if any, the amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is 
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): 
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and 
collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognised in the OC1. Interest income measured using 
the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. On 
derecognition, cumulative gain / (loss) previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to other income in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): 
A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVPL. Such financial assets are measured 
at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as other 
income in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Equity instruments: 
The Group subsequently measures all investments in equity instruments other than subsidiary companies, associate 

companies and joint venture companies at fair value. The Group has elected to present fair value gains and losses on such 

equity investments in other comprehensive income and there is no subsequent reclassification of these fair value gains and 

losses to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in 

profit or loss as other income when the right to receive payment is established. 
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at 
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 
Investments in subsidiary companies, associate companies and jOint venture companies: 
Investments in subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture companies are carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is 
assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary companies, 
associate companies and joint venture companies, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts 
are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss . 
Impairment of financial assets: 
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets carried at 
amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk. Note 32.2 details how the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk. 
The Group follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of 
simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 
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Derecognition: 
A financial asset is derecognised only when the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 
asset, the asset expires or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a 
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 
Where the Group has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 

rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised through the Consolidated 

Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive income as applicable. Where the Group has not transferred 

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. 
Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the 
Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement 
in the financial asset. 
Financial liabilities: 
i) Classification as debt or equity: 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 
ii) Initial recognition and measurement: 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at the fair value. 

. iii) Subsequent measurement: 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method . Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised In 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
iv) Derecognition: 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

q) Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheet where there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

r) Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred . Borrowings are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised 
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of 
loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility 
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. 

Borrowings are removed from the Consolidated Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised in profit or loss as other income / (expense). 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 

s) Borrowings Costs 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. 
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which thev are incurred. 

t) Provisions & contingent liabilities 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. 
These are reviewed at each year end and reflect the best current estimate. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating losses. 
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined 
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect 
to anyone item included in the same class of obligations may be small. 
Provisions are measured at the present value of best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation 
at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 
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u) Employee benefits 

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution to provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no 
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund . The Group recognizes contribution payable to the 
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the 
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the 
scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds 
the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the 
extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

The Group's liabilities towards gratuity payable to its employees are determined using the Acturial Valuation Report which 
is obtained in accordance with Ind AS 19. 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a 
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through ocr in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of: 

a) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 
b) The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises 
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss: 

a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine 
settlements; and 

b) Net interest expense or income. 

v) Earnings Per Share 
Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the EPS 
is the net profit for the period and any attributable tax thereto for the period. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted EPS, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares . 

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic COVID-19 

Manufacturing facilities of the Group in (Ahmedabad) Gujarat were closed on March 22, 2020 following countrywide 
lockdown due to COVID-19. The Group has since obtained required permissions and restarted its manufacturing facilities 
partially at Ahmedabad in the second fortnight of May 2020. Based on the immediate assessment of the impact of COVID-
19 on the operations of the Group and ongoing discussions with customers, vendors and service providers, the Group is 
positive of serving customer orders and obtaining regular supply of raw materials and logistics services after resumption of 
the operations. The Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on 
the carrying amounts of trade receivables and inventories. In assessing recoverability of trade receivables, the Group has 
considered subsequent recoveries, past trends, credit risk profiles of the customers based on their industry, macroeconomic 
forecasts and internal and external information available up to the date of issuance of these Consolidated Financial 
Statements. In assessing recoverability of inventories, the Group. has considered the latest selling prices, customer orders 
on hand and margins. Based on the above assessment, the Group is of the view that carrying amounts of trade receivables 
and inventories are expected to be realisable. The impact of COVID-19 may be different from that estimated as at the date 
of approval of these Consolidated Financial Statements and the Group will continue to closely monitor the developments. 

Critical estimates and judgements 
Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires use of accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions, 
which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results . Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management 
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in 
the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. This Note provides an overview of the areas that involves a higher 
degree of judgements or complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and 
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates 
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line 
item in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are: 
i) Estimation for income tax: Note 1 (d) 
ii) Estimation of useful life of tangible assets: Note 1 (h) 
iii) Estimation of provision for inventories: Note 1 (0) 
iv) Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables: Note 1 (m) 
v) Estimation of claims / liabilities: Note 1 (t) 
vi) Estimation of defined benefit obligations: Note 1 (u) 
vii) Fair value measurements: Note 31 



Un json Metals lImi'tc:!d 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 2: Property, plant and eQuipment (Rs. In lakhs) 

Leasehold Plant a Furniture & Office Electrical 
Data Capital work· 

Particulars hod· 
Buildings" Equipment· Fixture 

Vehicles· Equipment Installations pro~~~~fng Total In-progress 

Gross carrying amount 

As at April 1, 2022 57.97 824.23 1,342.18 15.60 261.91 30.53 129.79 5.93 2,668.13 777.38 

Additions 288.51 1,167.20 077 80 .78 477 30 ,58 0 .62 1,573.22 106.49 

Inter Transfers 

Recoupment I Adjustment ·120 .01 ·7 ,66 -127.67 I ·882. 62 

Disposal -1.18 '67 ,33 ·36 .26 -104.77 

As at March 31, 2023 57.97 1,112.74 2,388.19 16,37 267.70 35.30 124.11 6.55 4,008.911 1.25 

As at April 1, 2023 57.97 1,112.74 2,388.19 16.37 267.70 35.30 124.11 6.55 4'008.9~1 1.25 

Additions . 4 ,85 82. 14 - 1,62 341 0.13 92.16 097 

Inter Transfers -
Recoupment I Adjustment -15. 35 '17 ,6B . - -33.03 

Disposal ·3.04 . -1599 - -19.03 

As at March 31, 2024 57.97 1,114.55 2,454.98 0.38 251.64 3B.71 124.11 6.68 4,049.0n 2.22 

As at April 1, 2024 57.97 1,114.55 2,454.98 0.38 251.64 38.71 124.11 6.68 4,049.01 I 2.22 

Additions 229.07 367.47 54.06 0.77 651.37 

Inter Transfers 

Recoupment I Adjustment 7.22 

39.49 1 124.11 1 6. J 

7.22 

Disposal -23.51 1 -23.51 

As at March 31, 2025 287.04 1,114.55 2,822.45 7.60 282.19 4,684.09 I 2.22 

Accumulated depreciation 

As at April 1, 2022 .1 159.46 1 529.64 1 6.36 1 111.92 1 16.41 I 66.31 1 4.65 1 896. 78 

Depreciation for the year 37.42 230 .68 115 31.45 5.39 12 ,15 0.25 318.49 

Inter Transfers 
Impairment for the period 

~ 
Recoupment I Adiustment -114 06 -0,45 -114. 51 

Disposal -0 .52 -41.00 -34 .20 -75.72 

As at March 31, 2023 196.88 645.74 7.53 101.92 23.80 44.26 4.90 1,025.04- r 2.22 

As at April 1, 2023 196.88 645.74 7.53 101.92 23.80 44.26 4.90 1,025. 03 I 2.22 

Depreciation for the year 39.86 292 .74 1.18 29 .52 3.98 11 ,75 0.52 379.55 

Inter Transfers 

Impairment for the period 

Recoupment I Adjustment -0.77 -16 .80 -17.57 

Disposal ·1591 -15.91 

As at March 31, 2024 236.74 937.71 -7.20 114.64 27.78 56.01 5.42 1,371.10 I 2.22 

Additions 

Depreciation for the year 39.76 288.42 1.15 32.39 4.09 10.98 0.52 377.32 

Inter Transfers 

Impairment for the period 

Recoupment I Adjustment -21.51 I -21.51 

Disposal 

As at March 31, 2025 - 276.50 1,226.13 -6.04 125.52 I 31.87 I 66.99 1 5.941 1,726.90 

Net carrying amount 

As at March 31, 2025 287.04 838.05 1,596.32 13.64 156.67 7.62 57.12 1 0.74 1 2,957.19 1 222 

As at March 31, 2024 57.97 877.81 1,517.28 7.58 137.01 10.93 68.10 1 1.26 1 U77..94i 2.22 

As at March 31, 2023 57.97 915.86 1,742.45 8.84 165.78 11.SO 79.85 1 1.65 1 2,983.90 I -0.97 

As at April 1, 2022 57.97 664.77 812.54 1 9.22 I 149.99 12.12 63.48 1 1.28 j 1,771_37 I 777.38 

s~~=~\~~~~i~~~5a5 hald rer 358.47 I j 358.47 

2.1 Refer annexure note to Schedule 12 to 14 for the purpose of tanqible assets offered as security 

2.2 Refer Note 35 for contractual commitments for the acquisItion of property. plant and equipment . 
2.3. Assets categorized under ~Assets held for Sale" continues to classify under the same head despite the fact that the Assets have not been SOlO mt.tun a tweh-e-rnonth tJmdrame_ TIlls is due to 
unavailability of buyers and unique characteristics of the assets. Although the company actively engaged in ongoing efforts to identify a potential buyer for I::heSe assets The ~ment is still 
confident about the fair value of Assets held for Sale and therefore no impaIrment is provided to the carryinQ value of Assets held feN' Sale for'the year ended Hardl 31. 2023 

.. 



Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 3 : Investments (Rs.Inlakhs 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31,2025 31,2024 

Non-Current investments 
( i) Investments at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 

Investment in Equity shares - Unquoted 

50 (50) Equity Shares of GreenEnvironment Service Co.op.Soc.Ltd.ofRs.100/- each fully paid 0.05 0.05 
100 (100) Equity Shares of Unison Forgings Ltd . of Rs.10/- each fully paid 0.01 0.01 
Nil (40000 ) Shares of Nutan Nagarik Sahakari Bank Ltd. Of Rs . 25 each fully paid - 0.01 

0.06 0.07 

(ii) In Partnership Firm (Associate) 
Chandanpani Enterprise (See Note 3.1) 216.22 218.22 

216.22 218.22 

Total Non-current investment 216.28 218.29 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof; - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 216.28 218.29 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments. - -

Note 3.1: Details of Investment in Partnership Firm 
The partners of t he fi rm are Unison Metals Limited and Mr. Uttamchand Mehta having profit share of 50% : 50% each . Total Capital of t he 
firm as on 31.03.2025 is Rs. 160.07 lakhs and as on 31.03.2024 is Rs. 160.17 lakhs . 
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Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(Rs In lakhs) 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
NOTE: '4' INVENTORIES 2025 2024 

(As verified, valued and certified by management) 
(a) Raw Materials 2,894.43 1,091.28 
(b) Finished Goods 1,591.58 2,251.56 
(c) Semi-finished Goods 668.19 404.94 
(d) Stores & Spares 882.61 580.78 
(e) Trading Goods 12.26 12.26 
(f) Manufactured Component - -
(g) Others - Scrap 18.97 16.25 

Total 6,068.04 4,357.07 

4.1 Method of Valuation of inventory for all above categories of inventory is lower of cost or net 
realizable value 

4.2 Refer annexure note to Schedule 12 to 14 for the purpose of Inventories offered as security . 

4.3. Note on Inventory lying at third party and amount receivable thereof 
The Group has outstanding receivables from Naaptol amounting to Rs. 113.12 (113.12) Lacs. In 
addition, inventory of Utensils, lying at their warehouse amounts to Rs. 105.85 (105.85) Lacs. Naaptol 
has appointed arbitrator to resolve the dispute between the company and Naaptol. Against this the 
company has approached the Hon'ble High Court at Mumbai, to rescind the appointment of arbitrator 
appointed by Naaptol and to seek appointment of independent arbitrator by the court. Since the matter 
is subject to litigation, the management does not expect to realise the amount within twelve months 
from balance sheet date. Amount receivable from Naaptol of Rs. 113.12 (113.12) Lacs is classified as 
Non-Current Trade Receivables. Likewise non-moving inventory amounting to Rs. 105.85 (105.85) Lacs 
lying at their warehouse is classified as Other Non-Current Asset. The company is confident of full 
recovery but as a matter of prudence the company has made a provision of 50% (40%) on above. 
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Note 5 : Trade receivables (Rs . In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 

2025 31,2024 

Non current (See Note 5.1) 
Considered good 56.56 67. 87 
Considered doubtful 56.56 45.25 
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables -56.56 -45 .25 

56.56 67.87 
Current 

8,108. 27
1 

Considered good 8,036.62 
Considered doubtful 168.20 219 .88 
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables -168.20 -219. 88 

i 

8,036.62 8,108.27 J 

5.1 refer note no. 4.3 for non-current Trade Receivables and provision thereof. 

5.2 The Company has used a practical expedient for computing expected credit loss allowance for trade 
receivables, taking into account historical credit loss experience and accordingly, provisions are made for 
expected credit loss for amounts due from customers wherever necessary. 

- - .. ~ - hedule f - - de R - bl N -- - - -- d' -- --- - -- - h -- ----
Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction 

Particulars Less than 3 
3-6 Months 

6 Months-l 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

Months year 

en Undisputed Trade receivab les - considered good 
( ii ) Undisputed Trade Receiva bles -which have sign ificant increase 

in credit risk 
( ii i) Undisputed Trade receivab les - credit im paired 
( iv) Disputed Trade receiva bles - considered good 
(v) Dispu ted Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in 

credit risk 
( ii i) Disputed Trade receiva bles - credit impaired 
Total - - - -
Less: Allowance for doubtfu l trade receiva bles 
Net Trade Receivables-Non Current 

Total 

More than 3 
years 

-

-
-

56.56 56.56 

-
56.56 56.56 

113.12 113.12 

113.12 
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hedule for Trade Receivabl , . - .,.- ---------- --- -- - -- --- - _.-."---- d ___ T ______ • _________ _ _ _ ••• -- _.- - --- -_. - - ----
Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction Total 

Particulars Less than 3 
3-6 Months 

6 Months- 1 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

More than 3 
Months year years 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good -
(il) Undisputed Trade Receivab les -which have sig nificant increase 

in credit risk -
(Iii) UndisQuted Trade receivab les - credit impai red -
(iv ) Dis~uted Trade receiva bles - considered good 67.87 67.87 
(v ) Dispu ted Trade Receivab les - which have significant Increase in 

credit risk -
(i ii ) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired 45.25 45.25 
Total - - - - 113.12 113.12 
Less : Allowance for doubtful trade receivab les 45.25 
Net Trade Receivables 

- - L-___ 67.87 

A 
" 

, .. Schedule for Trade R bles-C ___________ -- 0 __ -t outstand' ... -- . . March 31. 2025 
Outstand ing for following periods from due date of transaction 

Particulars Less than 3 
3-6 Months 

6 Months-1 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

More than 3 Total 
Months year years 

(I) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 7279.51 431.98 31.57 127.85 200.33 206.39 8,277.64 
( ii) Undisputed Trade Receiva bles -which have signi ficant increase 

in credit risk -
(lii) UndisJ)tJted Trade recei vables - credit impaired 56.34 8.67 0.88 13 .80 22.35 10 .34 112.38 
( iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered qood -
(v ) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant Increase in 

credit risk - -
(iii) Disputed Trade receiva bles - cred it impaired - - - - - -
Total 7335.85 440.65 32.45 141.65 222.68 216.73 8390.02 
Less: Allowance for doubtfu l trade receivables 168.20 
Net Trade Receivables 8221.82 
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Aoeino Schedule for Trade Receivables- C d' March 31, 2024 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction 

Particulars Less than 3 
3-6 Months 

Months 

( i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 4, 556 355 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase 

in credit risk 
(iii ) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired 25 .94 3.91 
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in 

credit risk 
(iii) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impai red 
Total 4581 358.98 
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 
Net Trade Receivables 

Summary of movement in allowance for doubtful trade receivables 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 
2025 31,2024 

Balance at the beginning of the year 265.13 197.99 
Movement during the year -25 .03 67.14 
Less : Write off of bad debts - -
Balance at the end of the year 240.10 265.13 

Trade receivables are valued considering provision for allowance using expected credit loss method. In addition to 
the historical pattern of credit losses, the Company has considered the likelihood of increased credit risks, 
subsequent recoveries, insurance and consequential default. This assessment is considering the nature of 
industrres, impact immediately seen in the demand outlook of these industries and the financial strength of the 
customers in respect of whom amounts are receivable. 
Allowance(net of reversal) for doubtful debts in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 
as on 31.03.2025 is Rs. -44.32 lakhs and Rs. 1.70 lakhs for the year ended as on 31.03.2024. 

Note 6: Loans 
· ._. _ . .. _ .... _ , 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 

2025 31,2024 

rUnsecured and considered qood, unless otherwise statedl 
Financial assets-Current 

Loans to others 248.57 225.97 
Loans to Employees 16.23 14.74 

264 .80 240.72 

6 Months-l 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

year 

635 1694 626 

24.28 87.56 34.51 
-

-
659.62 1,781.66 660.27 

Total 

More than 3 
years 

250 8,115.78 

-
36.17 212.37 

- -

-
- -

286.12 8328.15 
219.88 

8,108.27 
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Note 7 : Other Non Current I Current financial assets 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 

2025 31,2024 
[Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated] 
Non-current 

Deposits as margin against Bank Guarantee 293.77 262.08 
Security & tender deposits - 6.61 
Security / Earnest Money Deposit 44.41 44.41 

338.18 313.09 

Current 
Interest accrued 2.82491 2.25 
Export Benefit Receivable 
Accrued Income 244.87 295.11 
TDS Receivable with NBFC 6.86 6.25 

254.55 303.62 

592.73 616.71 

7.1 Non-Current Deposits include Deposit under lien of Rs. 228.09 lakhs (Previous Year Fiqure Rs.224 lakhs) 
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Note 8 : Cash and Bank balances 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 30.90 7.56 
Balance with Bank 17.11 
Cheques on Hand -
Total cash and cash equivalents 30.90 24.67 

Other balances with Bank 
Deposits with bank held against margin money I 180.36 231.95 

211.25 256.62 
., 

Note 9 : Other Non-current / Current assets 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

[ Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Non-current 

Capital advances 1.79 3.44 
Advance to suppliers - -
Non-moving Inventory lying at Naaptol 105.85 105.85 
Less: Provision -52.93 -42.34 

54.71 66.95 

Current 
Advance to suppliers 311.33 1,487.92 
Balance with Government authorities 44.16 24.53 
Prepaid Expenses 93.21 34 .07 
Una mortised Employee Benefit Exps 0.23 0.36 

other Recievable 75.00 0.30 
523.92 1547.17 

525.71 1,550.60 

9.1 Refer note no. 4.3 for non-moving inventory lying at Naaptol Warehouse 
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Note 10 : Share Capital 
.,_. _.' .-. -.~ 

Particulars As at March As at March 31, 
31,2025 2024 

Authorised 
2,42,50,000 (2,42,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each 2,425.00 2,425.00 

7,50,000 (7,50,000) Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/-each 75.00 75.00 

Issued, Subscribed, & Fully Paid up : 

1,60,21,000 (1, 60,21,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 1,602.10 1,602.10 

- - -
1,602.10 1,602.10 

(i) Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year : 
.. _. _ ... _." ._" 

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024 

Numbers Amount Numbers Amount 
As at beginning of the year 1,60,21,000 1,602. 10 1,60,21,000 1,602.10 
Issued during the year - - - -
Bought back during t he year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 

---
1,60,21,000 _1,602.1~_ 1,6jl,21,000 1,602.10 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

(Ii) Shareholders holding more than SOfa of total equity shares 

Sr No Name of Shareholders Nos Ufo of Holding Nos 0/0 of Holding 
1 Shelja Finlease Pvt. Ltd. 2435,926 15.20% 2435926 15.20% 
2 Megh Jyoti Impex Pvt. Ltd. 17 69 571 11.05% 17,69,751 11.05% 
3 Tirth U.Mehta 1444.750 9 .02% 1444750 9 .02% 
4 Pushpa U. Mehta 13,09,000 8.17% 13,09000 8.17% 
5 Tushar U.Mehta ~9,5_00 5.05% ~~ 5.05% 

---- -



(iii) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters: 

Disclosure of Shareholdlng of Promoters as on March 31, 2025 
Name No. of Shares % Held 0/0 Change 

Name of promoters 
TIM Uttam Mehta 14 44.750.00 9.02% 0.00% 
Pushpa Uttamchand Mehta 13 09 ,000.00 8.17% 0.00% 
Tushar Uttamchand Mehta 8,09,500 .00 5.05% 0.00% 
Uttamchand Chandan mal Mehta 4 18587.00 2.61% 0.00% 
Rekhaben Nareshbhai Changrani 31 ,000.00 0.19% 0.00% 
Maheshbhai Vishandas Chanqrani 26000.00 0.16% 0.00% 
Mukesh Devendra Shah 20,000.00 0.12% 0.00% 
Uttamchand Chandanmai Mehta Huf 100.00 0.00% I 

TruDti Shah 4000.00 0.03% 0.00%1 
Name of promoter group I 

SheHa Anlease Pvt Ltd 2435926.00 15.20% 0.00% 1 
Meoh;yoti Impex Private Limited 17,6957 1.00 11.05% 0.00% 1 
Total 82,68,434.00 51.61% 

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters as on March 31, 2024 
Name No. of Shares % Held 0/0 Change 

Name ofpromoters 
Tirth U Mehta 14,44 750.00 9 .02% 0.00% 
Pushpa Uttamchand Mehta 13 09,000.00 8.17% 0.00% 
Tushar Uttamchand Mehta 809500.00 5.05% 0.00% 
Uttamchand C Mehta 4 18587.00 2.63.% 0.00% 
Rekhaben Nareshbhai Chanqrani 31,000.00 0.19% 0.00% 
Maheshbhai Vfshandas Chanqrani 26000.00 0.16% 0.00% 
Mukesh Devendra Shah 20,000.00 0.12% 0.00% 
Uttamchand Chandan mal Mehta Huf 100.00 0 .00% 
Truptl Shah 4000.00 0.03% 0.00% 

Name of promoter group 
Shelja Finlease Pvt Ltd 2435 926.00 15.20% 0.00% 
Meqhjyoti Impex Private Limited 17 69 571.00 11.05% 0 .00% 
Total 82,68,434.00 51.61% 

The Company has allotted 1,28,16,800 fully paid-up equity shares of face value no each during the year ended March 31, 2022, 
pursuant to bonus issue approved by the shareholders. The bonus shares were issued by capitalization of profits transferred from 
general reserve, security premium and profit and loss a/c. Bonus share of four equity share for every equity share held has been 
allotted. The bonus shares once allotted shall rank pari passu in all respects and carry the same rights as the existing equity 
shareholders. These shall be entitled to partiCipate in full, in any dividend and other corporate action, recommended and declared after 
the new equity shares are allotted. 

1 
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Note 11 : Other equity 

Refer to the statement of changes in equity for movement in Other equity . 

Nature and purpose of reserves 

General reserve 

General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer profits from retained earnings for 
appropriation purposes. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity 
to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income. 

Security premium 

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares, in relation to issuance of 
equity, is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. 

Retained earnings 

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to 
general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to the shareholders . 

Equity instruments through OCI 

This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the Fair valuation of equity 
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income that have been 
recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Capital Reserve 
This represents gain on money forfeited due non - payment of balance call amount after 
following due procedures. 

Capital Redemption Reserve 
Capital Redemption Reserve represents the amount transferred from Securities Premium towards 
redemption of preference shares by the subsidiary company in accordance of NCLT order of 
amalgamation dated 07th June, 2019. (Refer note 14.1) 
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Note 12: Borrowings 

( RS. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31,2025 31,2024 

Non-current 
Secured 
Term Loans from 

(i) Banks 734.29 847.60 
(ii) Non Banking Finance Company -

Unsecured 
Loans from related parties 

(i) From Directors 35.22 371.81 
(ii) From Bodies Corporate 1,872.26 1,266.91 
(iii) From Bank -
(iv) From NBFC -

2641.76 2486.32 
Current 
Secured 

Working Capital Loans 3,090.68 2,774.34 
Term Loan 
i) from Banks 461.04 577.35 
ii) from NBFC - 10.04 

Unsecured 
From Non Banking Finance Company 
From Others 133.17 118.63 

3,684.90 3480.36 

6326.66 5966.68 

Notes: 
12 Loans referred above are to the extent of: 
(a) Loans from various Banks, NBFC and Financial institution are as in shown in annexure. 
(b) Loan from Directors is repayable after 31-03-2025 bearing interest ranging from 8%-12% (8%-

12%) D.a. 
(c) Loan from Bodies Corporate is repayable after 31-03-2025 bearing interest ranging from 8%-9% 

(8%-9%) D.a. 

Note 13: Trade Paybles 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31,2025 31,2024 

Current 
Due to micro, small and medium enterprise 31.13 -
Due to others 6,981.33 6,315.51 

7 012.46 6 315.51 

Current 7,012.46 6,315.51 

7,012.46 6,315.51 

Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables as on 31.03.2025 
Outstanding for following periods from due 

Less than 1-2 2-3 More than 
1 year years years 3 years Particulars 

1m MSME 31.13 - - -
(1) Others 6,756.05 90 .32 26.40 108.56 
(iii) DISDuted dues - MSME - - - -
I (IV) lJlsput ea aues utners 

- - - -

Ag eing Schedule of Trade Payables as on 31.03.2024 
OutstandinQ for followlnQ periods from du e 

Less than 
1-2 2-3 

More than 
1 year 

years years 
3 years Particulars 

I) MSME - - - -
(ii) Others 5911.97 210.08 127.01 66.44 
(iii) Disputed 
dues - MSME - - - -
I (I V) lJ lsputea 
dues - Others 

- - - -

(Rs. In lakhs\ 

Total 

31.13 
6981.33 

-

-

(Rs. In lakhs) 

Total 

-
6 315.51 

-

-

Note 13.1: The disclosure under Micro, small and medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 in respect of the amounts p 
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Note 14 : Other Current financial liabilities 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31,2025 31,2024 

Payables on purchase of fixed assets 257.44 0.95 
Unpaid consideration to the equity shareholders of 

the Amalgamated company (Universal Metal 
Comoanv Limited) 15.18 15.18 
Accurued interest but not due on borrowinqs 4.30 18.34 
Outstanding Expenses 1,258.28 488.34 

1,535.19 522.82 

Note 15: Provisions ' 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31,2025 31,2024 

Non-current 
Provision for Gratuity (refer to Note 17) 47.44 32.36 

47.44 32.36 
Current 
Provision for Gratuity (refer to Note 17) 24.09 22 .76 
Provision For Employees Benefit (See note 15.2 below) 16.50 23.98 

40.59 46.74 

88.04 79.10 

Note 15.1: The expected timing of any resulting outflows cannot be determined as the said 
obligation is based on employee attrition . Refer note 17B(a) 

Note 15.2: Movement in the Provision (As at 31.03.2025) 
Ad(lItlonal 

Particulars Opening Provision Less: Utilised 
Provision fo r Bonus 5.54 17.63 9.59 
Provision for leave encashment 9.16 13.04 10.1,6 
Provision for contribution to various funds 2.08 1.02 0.28 
Provision for Sitting Fees of directors 15.29 1.15 2.1-0 
Other Provisions -8.09 - -
Total 23.98 32.84 22.14 

Movement in the Provision (As at 31.03.2024) 
Additional 

Particulars Opening Provision Less: Utilised 
Provision for Bonus 5.80 2.15 2.40 
Provision for leave enca,shment 9.15 4.01 4.00 
Provision for contribution to various fUl1dS 2.48 0.28 0.69 
Provision for Sitting Fees of directors 15.89 1.20 1.80 
Other Provisions 0.41 - 8.50 
Total 33.73 7.64 17.39 

Note 16: Other current liabilities 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31,2025 31,2024 
Advance from customers 255.71 1,920.66 
Creditor for capital Goods - -
Statutory dues 247.05 358.82 

502.76 2,279.49 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

Closing Balanc e 
13.57 
12.04 

2.82 
14.34 
-8.09 

34.67 

fRs. In lakhs) 

Closing Balanc e 
5.54 
9.16 
2.08 

15.29 
-8.09 

23.98 
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Annexure to Note 12 & 14 

EMI 
Interest UnPaid Balance Principal Balance Principal 

S.No. Bank Name Type of loan Rate(%) EMI (Count) As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/03/2024 Security 
Primary- Stock & Book Debts &. 

1 HDFC BANK Secure Loan- Bank 10.25 - 1,308.91 1,308.91 Collateral- Land & Building 
HDFC BANK WCTL 3.5 Primary- stock & Book Debts &. 

2 CR Secure Loan- Bank 10.25 7.48 22 .00 - 67.21 Collateral- Land & Building 
Primary- Stock &. Book Debts &. 

3 HDFC BANK TL 5CR Secure Loan- Bank 10.25 - 60 .00 - - Collateral- Land & Building 
HDFC BANK ECLGS 3.99 

4 CR Secure Loan- Bank 8.25 12.57 12.00 - 97.53 under GECL scheme as WCTL 
,Extentlon against Pnmary- St ocl< & 

HDFC BANK LTD 1.99 Book Debts & Collateral- Land & 
5 cr Secure Loan- Bank 8.25 5.55 36.00 143.93 199.85 Building 
6 5mBI LOAN 1.80 CR Secure Loan Bank 6.00 5.00 36.00 - 175.00 Under GECL scheme as WCTL 

::.uoservlem cnarges on all movaDle 
properties & Second charge on all 
immovable assets comprising of Land 

7 5mBI 3.5 CR Secure Loan- Bank 15.00 7.29 - - - and Building 
8 smBI Secure Loan- Bank 11.00 2.55 - - - Hypo. of Plant & Machinery 
9 5mBI Secure Loan- Bank 10.25 1.85 - - - Hypo. of Plant & Machinery 
10 SlDBT l CR (NEW) Secure Loan- Bank 10.15 1.85 - - - Hypo. of Plant & Madllnery 
11 smBI 1.8SCR Secure Loan- Bank 9 .70 3.42 23 .00 - 37.94 Hypo. of Plant &. Machinery 
12 SIDB! 1.S2CR Secure Loan- Bank 9 .50 2.84 23.00 - 29.74 Hy~o . of Plant & Machinery 
13 5mBI Secure Loan- Bank 7.40 9.09 - - - HYDO. of Plant & Machinery 
14 5mBI Secure Loan- Bank 7.40 5.00 - - - Hypo. or Plant &. Madllnery 

5mBI STAR SOLAR 1.03 Hypo. of SOlar rooftop Installed at 
15 CR Secure Loan- Bank 9 .00 1.90 28.00 - 31.09 manufacuring plant 
16 5mBI Secure Loan- Bank 10.15 6.00 - - - Under ECLGS 
17 HDFC BANK 6 .5L Secure Loan- Bank 8.60 0.13 3.00 - - Aga inst Vehicle owned 
18 IerCI BANK LTD 5.59L Secure Loan- Bank 15.51 0 .14 26.00 0.16 1.64 Against Vehicle owned 
19 IerCI BANK LTD 2.52L Secure Loan- Bank j,5 .51 0.06 26.00 0.07 0.74 Aga inst Vehicle .owned 
20 HDFC BANK 3 .67L Secure Loan- Bank 14.25 0.09 23.00 - 0.87 Aga inst Vehicle owned 

AXIS BANK LTD CAR 
21 LOAN Secure Loan- Bank 14.45 1.50 32.00 - - Against Vehicle owned 
2.2 HERO FINCORP LTD Secure Loan -NBFC 14 .00 3.49 - - - Hypo. of Plant & Machinery 
23 HERO FINCORP LTD Secure Loan -NBFC 14·00 0.54 - - - Hypo. of Plant & Machinery 

24 HDFC CAR LOAN 17.92L Secure Loan- Bank 0.37 52.00 9.29 12.76 Against Vehicle owned 
25 HDFC CAR LOAN 7.8SL Secure Loan- Bank 0.16 53 .00 4.20 5.71 Against Vehicle owned 
26 JOHN DEERE Secure Loan- Bank 6.90 0.33 46.00 6.53 9.51 AQalnst Vehicle owned 
24 IDFC FIRST BANK LTD Unsecure Loan- BanK 16.50 2.57 - - - Unsecured 

LAt'~LUA I ~lNANUAL 

SERVICES PRIVATE 
25 LIMITED Unsecure Loan -NBFC 18.00 1.25 - - - Unsecured 
26 SHRI RAM LOAN Unsecure Loan -NBFC 18.00 2.00 - - - Unsecured 
27 TATA CAPITAL Unsecure Loan -NBFC 15.52 0.67 - - - Unsecured 

I'~H~~ ASHV FINANCE LIMITED 

if r 28 JAIN SONS 19.40L Unsecure Loan -NBFC 14.00 0.66 24.00 - 3.21 Under ECLGS .:::s \I" 
g- AHMEDABAD g 

29 HERO FINCORP LIMITED Unsecure Loan -NBFC 14.00 0.68 24.00 - 3.28 Under ECLGS r; FRN-123825W ... 
CANARA BANK 10.58 ~ k ) 30 LACS CR Secure Loan- Bank 3.60 0.04 - '9'1I1l 
CANARA BANK 135.00 ~I?€DACC~ 

31 LACS CR Secure Loan- Bank 6.12 114.38 -



CANARA BANK 16.15 
32. LACS CR Secure Loan- Bank 2..17 9.68 -

CANARA BANK 7.16 
33 LACS CR Secure Loan- Bank 1.84 - -
34 Canara GI Account Secure Loan- Bank - - -

pnmary- ~toCK & BooK Debts & 

30 Nutan Nagarik Secured loan From Bank 9.50% - -0.06 Collateral- Land & Building 
Il'nmary- ~tOCK & BOOK ueots & 

31 Nutan Nagarik Tl Secured loan From Bank 10.15% 2.84 33.00 Collateral- Land & Building 

32 Nutan Nagarik TL Secured Loan From Bank 10.50% 2.77 30.00 Hypo. of Plant & machinery 
I pnmary- ~toCK & BOOK LJeDts & 

33 C5B CC Secured loan From Bank 10.15% - - 1,465.49 Collateral- Land & Building 
Il'nmary- Stock & BOOK ueors & 

34 CSB TL Secured Loan From Bank 10.15% 1.72 22.00 - 17.19 Collateral- Land & Building 
pnmary- ~toCK & BOOK Debts & 

35 CSB Tl Secured Loan From Bank 9.25% 10.70 36.00 - 385.00 Collateral- Land & Building 

36 SIOBI Secured Loan From Bank 6.65% 6.85 66.00 241.77 297.38 Hypo. of Plant & machinery 
37 Axis Bank Ltd Secured Loan From Bank 14.45% 1.37 34.00 - 12.52 Against Vehicle owned 
38 HOFC Bank Ltd Secured Loan From Bank 8.70% 0.33 23.00 - - Against Vehicle owned 
39 Hero Fincorp Ltd Secured Loan From Bank 15.84% 0.12 36.00 - 1.21 Against Vehicle owned 
40 Hero Fincorp ltd Secured Loan From Bank 15.84% 0.11 36.00 1.11 Against Vehicle owned 
41 Tata Capital Secured Loan From Bank 15.75% 0.30 13.00 - - Against Vehicle owned 
42 HOFC Bank ltd Secured Loan From Bank 7.80% 0.48 44.00 3.75 9.01 Against Vehicle owned 
43 HOFC Bank ltd Secured Loan From Bank 7.25% 0.15 59.00 - - Against Vehicle owned 
44 HDFC Bank ltd Secured Loan From Bank 7.10% 0.73 60.00 17.47 24.67 Against Vehicle owned 
45 Indusland Bank Secured Loan From Bank 13.79% 0.15 59.00 2.75 4.20 Against Vehicle owned 
46 AU small Bank Secured Loan From Bank 9.00% 0.58 31.00 - 3.90 Against Vehicle owned 
47 Kotak Mahindra Bank USL from Bank 9.25% 0.27 36.00 - 1.32 Business Loan 
48 Bajaj Finance Ltd USL From NBFC 17.50% 0.77 17.00 - Business Loan I 

49 India Infoline USL From NBFC 16.50% 1.97 - . - BUSiness Loan I 

50 India Infoline USL From NBFC 14.00% 0.25 36.00 - 1.23 Business Loan . 

51 Punjab National Bank Secured Loan From Bank 9.15% - - 1,782.19 - Secured Loan From Bank 
52 Punjab National Bank Secured Loan From Bank 9.15% 10.70 32.00 320.80 - Secured Loan From Bank 
53 Punjab National Bank Secured Loan From Bank 7.95% 0.06 79.00 7.15 - I 

54 SIOBI Secured Loan From Bank 8.40% 5.41 51.00 215.18 • Hypo. of Plant & machinery 

55 SIOBI Secured Loan From Bank 8.20% 1.85 49.00 65.75 - Hypo. of Plant & machinery 
56 HDFC Bank Ltd Secured loan From Bank 7.10% 0.55 51.00 34.24 - Against Vehicle owned 

57 SIOBI Secured Loan From Bank 6.65% 241.77 297.38 Hypo. of Plant & machinery 

58 HOFC Bank Ltd Secured Loan From Bank 7.80% 17.47 24.67 Aga1nst Vehicle owned 

59 HOFC Bank Ltd Secured Loan From Bank 7.25% 3.75 9.01 Against Vehicle owned 

60 HOFC Bank Ltd Secured loan From Bank 7.10% 34.24 • Against Vehicle owned 

61 Indusland Bank Secured loan From Bank 13.79% 2.75 4.20 Against Vehicle owned 
-- -_.- -- - -- --



Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 17 : Employee benefits 

A. Defined contribution plans: 

The Group deposits amount of contribution to government under PF and other schemes operated by government. 
Amount of Rs. 11.19 lakhs (P.Y. : Rs. 8.73 lakhs) Is recognised as expenses and included in Note 23 "Employee benefit expense" 

(Rs. In lakhs) 
Particulars For the Year ended March 31, 2025 For the Year ended 

March 31 2 024 
Provident and other funds 11.19 8.73 

11.19 8.73 

B. Defined benefit plans: 
The Group has following post employment benefits which are in the nature of defined benefit plans: 
Ca) Gratuity 

The Group operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit as per scheme of the Group, for each completed year of 
service. The benefit vests only after five years of continuous service, except in case of death/disability of employee during service. The vested 
benefit is payable on separation from the Group, on retirement, death or termination. 

(Rs. In lakhs 
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Gratuity - Defined benefit obligation 
Opening Balance 54.99 49.32 
Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and 
loss 

Service cost 7.09 6.68 
Net interest expense 3 .19 2.96 
Transfer in / (out) obliqation - -
Benefits paid - -
Sub-total included in statement of profit and loss 10.28 9.64 
Benefit paid 
Remeasurement gains/(/osses) in other 
comprehensive income 

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest exoense) 
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic 
assumotions - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial 
assumotions 2.33 0.70 
Experience adjustments 8.66 -4.68 

Sub-total included in OCI 10.99 -3.98 
Benefits paid -0.86 

Defined benefit obligation 75.40 54.99 

Fair value of plan assets - -
Tota l benefit liab ili ty 75.40 54.99 

The net liability disclosed above relates to following funded and unfunded plans: 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Deflneod Benefit Obligation 75.40 54.99 
Fair Va lue Of Plan Assets - -
Net Liabi lity { Asset ) 75.40 54.99 

Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 
The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations for the Group's plans are shown below: 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Discount rate 6070% 7.20% 
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 

3% at younger ages 3%-15% at younger ages 
reducing to 1 % at older reducing to 1%-15% at 

Attrition rate ages older age~ 1 
Mortality rate during employment -



. , 

Sensitivity analysis 
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes In the weighted principal assumptions is : 

(Rs. In lakhs \ 

Impact on defin/i!d benefit obligation 

Change In For the Year ended 
Particulars assumptIons For the Year ended March 31, 2025 

March 31, 2024 

Gratuity 
Discount rate 0.5% Increase -2.96% -3.01% 

0.5% decrease 3.21% 3.27% 

Salary increase 0.5% increase 1.51% 1.88% 
0.5% decrease -1.63% -1.81% 

Withdrawal Rates 10% Increase 0.44% 0.46% 
10% decrease -0.51% -0.49% 

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant . In practice, this is unlikely to 
occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When ca lculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant 
actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the prOjected un it credit method at the 
end of the reporting period) has been applied while calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet . 

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change as compared to the prior year. 

The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan : 
( Rs. In lakhsl 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Gratuity 
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 27.97 18.55 
More than 1 Year 47.43 30 .78 

Total expected payments 75.41 49.33 
I 



Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 18: Income taxes 

1. Components of Income tax expense 

During the year the Group has adopted option available under Section 115 BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as per the taxation laws (amendment) Act, 2019 dated December 11,2019. Accordingly, 
tax expenses, deferred tax assets I liabilities have been recomputed and impact of this has been recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025. 
The maior component of Income tax expense for the year ended on March 31. 2025 and March 31. 2024 are as follows: 

(Rs. In 'akhol) 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Statement of Profit and Loss 
Current tax 

Current income tax 104.30 169.26 
Adlustment of tax relatinQ to earlier periods 0.39 2 .45 

I-
Deferred tax 

Deferred tax expense 62.6B ·21.99 

167.37 149.74 

Other comprehensive income 
Deferred tax on 

Net loss/(Qain) on actuarial Qains and losses 1.02 
Eauitv instruments carried at FVTOCI · 

· 1 .02 

Income tax expense as per the statement of profit and loss and Other Comprehensive Income 167.3'7 1/;0 .7(\ 

2 Reconciliation of effective tax 
(It • • In Inkh"l 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Profit before tax from continuing and discontinued operations 609.62 501.73 
Inter·Companv profit/Closs) on which tax Is reaulred to be paid bv respective companies . (4.54) 
Total profit on which tax is payable 609.62 497.19 

Tax @ 25.168% (22% + 10% Surcharge + 4 0/0 Cess) 153.43 125.13 

Adjustments for: 

Permenant differences not allowable as per Income Tax Act. 1961 7.53 19.15 
Changes in deferred tax due to chanqe in Future Tax Rate of the Group · . 
CarrIed Forward credit forgone 
Tax required to be paid at lower rate . 
Impact of current tax of earlier years 0.39 2 ,46 
Other Adjustments 
Effect of Differential Tax Rate under various jurisdiction 6.01 2.99 

Tax expense / (benefit) 167.37 149.73 



3 Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities 

For the year ended on March 31, 2024 
(R~. In I~k~~) 

Particulars As at April 1, 2023 Charge! (credit) In the Statement of 
Charge! (credit) In Other ComprehensIve AI lit March 31, 

Profit and Loss 
Income 2024 

Deferred tax liabilities/tassets) 
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 193.03 3.78 196.81 
Items Disallowed u/s 438 of Income Tax Act, 1961 (12.56) (2.12) 0.67 (14.01 ) 
Amortisation/Reversal of Processing Fees 1.03 (0.48) 0.55 
Una mortised Employee Benefit ale (0.03) (0.51) (0.54) 
Provision for doubtful debt (41.46) (17.28) (58.74) 
UnwindinQ of Interest on GAIL Deposit 0.93 (0.93) 0.00 
Una mortised amount on GAll Deposit (0.98) 0.98 
UnwindinQ of Interest on Staff loan 0.06 (0.06) (0.00) 
Provision for Naaptol (16. 53) (5.51 ) (22.04) 
Provision on Capital Advances (0.50) (o.sO) 
Provision on loans and advances(RA Loan) (0.79) 0.82 0.03 
Loss of Current year to date figures (1.56) (1.56) 
MAT Credit Entitlement (21 .72 (0 .34 P·H§l 

98.09 21..66 0.67 77.9 3 

For the year ended on March 31, 2025 
CR. In IOkh" 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

Charge/( credit) In the Statement of 
Charge/(credlt) In Other Comprehensive As at March 31, 

2024 Income 2025 
Profit and l oss 

Deferred tax liabilities/fassets} 
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 196.81 33.45 230.26 
Items Disallowed u/s 436 of Income Tax Act. 1961 (14.01) (7.02) . (21.03) 
Amortisation/Reversal of ProcessinQ Fees 0. 55 (0.11) 0.44 
Una mortised Employee Benefit a/c (0. 54) 0.71 0.17 
ProviSion for doubtful debt I (58.74) 41.87 (16.87) 
UnwindinQ of Interest on GAIL Deposit 0.00 0.00 
Unarnortised amount on GAIL Deposit 2.09 2.09 
UnwindlnQ of Interest on Staff Loan (C.OO) . (0.00) 
Provision for Naaptol I (22 . 0~ ) (5.51 ) (27.55) 
Provision on Capital Advances (0. 50 ) (0.34) (0.84) 
PrOvISion on loans and advances(RA Loan) I 0.03 0.11 0.14 
Loss of Current year to date fiQures (~i:~:l 1.56 (0.00) 
MAT Credit Entitlement (21.061 

77 .9 3 66.St - ~44.74 

4 Current I Non-current tax assets and Uabilltles 
(Rs . In lakh.) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

20:25 2024 

Non-current 
Current tax assets 68.95 68.99 

Current 
Current tax assets . 37.27 
Current tax liabilities 42.05 126.71 



Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 19 : Revenue from operations 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the Year ended For the Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Sale of Products 
Sale of products 

SS Flat/ CR Patta 8,318.86 7,357.40 
SS Ingots 7,880.88 8,731.29 
Ceramic Glaze sales & Silicate Sales 3,063.82 7,296.47 
S. S. Round 2,922.89 116.34 
Others 8,164.36 1,226.43 

-
Trading -
Trading sales 269.56 1,046.21 

30,613.35 25774.14 

Other operating income 
Job Charges Income 911.88 1,801.44 

911.88 1801.44 

31,525.23 27575.58 

Note 20 : Other income 
(Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the Year ended For the Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest income 
a. Interest income from bank on: 

(i) Deposits 25.08 20.40 
b. Interest income from current investments -
c. Others 35.28 46.63 

-
Profit from sales of Assets 1.58 4 .76 
Dividend Income 0.20 1.20 
Liabilities Written Back 37.13 0.33 
Misc Income - 4.88 
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 2.96 11.74 
Reversal of BDR - -

Income tax Refund - 0.37 
Excess prov ision wri t ten back - 0.64 

102.23 90.95 



Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 21 : Cost of Material Consumed 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended For'the Year ended 
March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024 

Opening Stock 1,091.28 1,795.78 
Add: Purchase -
H R Patta/Patti - -
S S Flat/ Ingot 11,213.06 5,005 .15 
S S Scrap 8,732.79 8,607.43 
Frit RM - -
Purchase Copper - -
Soda Ash & Silica Sand 4,137.29 4,718.48 
Purchase Ferro Alloys 786.17 761.70 
Others 159.35 611.40 

26,119.94 21,499.93 
Less: Sale of Scrap & Soda Ash - 595.80 
Less : Closing Stock 2894.43 1 091.28 
Material Consumed 23,225.51 19.812.85 

Note 22 : Purchases of stock-in-trade 
{Rs. Tn lakhsl 

Particulars For tne Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31, 2.025 March 31. 2024 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 1,553.U 2 120.57 
1,553.41 2, 120.57 

Note 23 : Employee benefits expense 
(Rs. In lakhsl 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31. 2025 March 31,2024 

Salaries, wages, bonus & gratuity 719.47 612 .61 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 11.19 8.73 
Staff welfare 12.54 11.99 

743.21 633.33 

Note 24 : Finance costs 
(Rs. In lakh& 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest expense 615.17 771.33 
Foreclosure Charges 
Other borrowing cost 28.22 22 .93 
Bank Commsission & Charges - -

643.39 794.26 

Note 25 : Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024. 

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment and investment property 374.61 378.88 
374.61 378.88 

NOTE: '26' (Increase)/ Decrease in Inventory of Stock in Trade, Finished goods. Semi finished goods 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31. 2025 March 31. 2.02.4 

Openinq Inventory of 
Semi-finished Goods 404.94 592 .51 
Finished Goods 2,365.73 531.59 
Scraps 16.25 9.18 

Trading Goods 12.26 12.26 
2,799.18 1,145.54 

Less :Closing Inventory of 
Semi-finished Goods 668.19 404.94 
Finished Goods 1,705.75 2,365.73 
Scraps 18.97 16.25 

Trading Goods 12.26 12.26 
2405.17 2,799.18 

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory of Stock in Trade, 
Finished goods. Semi finished goods 394.00 (1,653.64) 



J 

Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 27 : Other expenses 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 

Stores and spares consumed 488.27 431.65 
Job Charges 241.98 779.93 
Maintanance & Repairs 27.69 81.76 
Power & Fuel 1,538.78 1,643.41 
Annealing Expenses 1,324.17 1,631.51 
Effluent Treatment Expenses - 0.06 
Water Charges 3.91 3.02 
Factory Expenses 5.84 6.50 
Machinery Hiring Charges 5.12 5.93 
Laboratory Expenses - 0.78 
Freight & Cartage 198.48 123.14 
Insurance Charges 15.71 21.81 
Telephone Expenses 1.88 5.52 
Legal & Professional Fees & Expenses 95.76 44.26 
Postage & Stationery Expenses 2.86 2.76 
Rent, Rates & Taxes 4.50 3.76 
Miscellaneous Expenses 41.35 38.38 
GPCB Fees -
Security Charges 13.88 9.60 
Travelling Expenses 4.14 3.42 
Commission On BG / LC 41.44 34.43 
Car Expenses 12.39 13.53 
Membership & Subscription -
Import Charges 
Packing Expenses - 0.73 
Bad Debts -44.32 1.70 
Bank Commission & Charges 2.32 4.67 
Freight & Cartage Outward 20.47 19.71 
Loss on Partnership Firm 3.26 -
Lease Rent for Pipeline 2.73 3.02 
Tractor Exp 9.86 5.41 
Truck Exp -1.83 9.48 
JCB Expense 12.72 13.16 
Provision for doubtful receivable -29.41 77.74 
Hydra Exp 2.49 4.13 
Loss on sa le of Fixed Assets - 0.72 
Generator Exp 1.86 
Sitting Fees to Directors 1.20 1.20 
I nterest on Statu tGry Dues 9.32 7.83 
Advertisement Expenses 0.36 0.48 
Pay ment to Audi tors 6.37 4.60 
La te TDS Fi ling 16.73 
Donation 0.10 0.50 
Provision for capital advance 1.35 1.35 

4,083.71 5,041.57 



Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Flnandal Statements 

Note 28: Related Party transactions 

Related party disclosures. as required by 100 AS 24 •• Related Party Disdosun!s". are Qiven below. 

(AI Particulars of related parties and nature ohelationships 
Name of the related parties 

A. Associate Company 
Chandanpanl Enterprise 

B. Companies over which Key Management Personnel and their reIatiwes are able to exercise significant influence 

Unison Ceramics Limited 
Unison ForQinQs Pvt Umited 
Manqlam Alloys Umited 
Sheila Finlease Pvt Ltd 
Meqhiyoti Impex Pvt Ltd. 
MSR Alloys 

c. Key Management Personnel 

Executive directors 
Rashl Tirth Mehta 
Tirth Mehta 
Mahesh Chanqranl 
Uttamchand C Mehta 
Naresh ChanQrani 

Non Executive directors 
Deepali Malpanl 
Hlmanshu Chokda 
Manlsha Panchal 

Chief Finance Office 
CA Roshan Bothara 

Company Secretary 
CS Mitall Patel 

D. Relatives of Key Management Personnel 
Nimit N Chanqranl 
Rekhaben N Chanqrani 
Naresh Chang rani HUF 

~ 



(6) Related party transactions and balances 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
All the transactions with the related parties are done at arm's length price 

The details of material transactions and balances with related parties (including those pertaining to discontinued operations) are {;!'Jen below: 

( Rl; In L3~hs 1 

Companies over which Key Key Managerial Person and 
Management Personnel and their 

a) Transactions during the year Associate Company relatives are able to exercise 
Relative of Key managerial 

significant influence 
Person 

2024-25 20 23-24 2024-2 5 20 23-24 2024-25 2023-24 

1 Purchase 
Manqalam AllOYS Limited 28.05 259.22 

Msr AllOYS 878. 54 132.98 

Unison Forqinqs Pvt Ltd 1.923.06 3.922.81 

2 Sale 
Manoalam AllOyS Limited 71.19 294.81 

Msr AllOys 111.96 2.170.45 

Unison Forqinqs Pvt Ltd 5.912.61 2.092.06 

3 Expenses 
)obwork Exoense 

Mangalam Alloys Limited 58.19 124.11 

Unison Forgings Pvt Ltd 535 .64 

Remuneration to Managerial Personnel 

Mahesh Chanqrani 14.25 12.00 

Uttamchand Mehta -
Tirth Mehta 46.20 46.20 

CA Roshan Bathra 13.61 12.06 

Rashi Mehta 32.10 18.00 

Naresh V Chanqrani 11.02 11. 02 

Nimit N Chanqrani 7.98 7.80 

C5 Mitali Patel 5.31 4.48 

Sittina Fees 1.20 2.40 

Interest Exeoense 
Unison Ceramics Limited 0.66 058 

Unison Farainas Private Limited 86.59 124. 65 

MeQhivoti Imoex Private Limited 1.08 

Mahesh Chanorani 0.39 0.37 

Uttamchand Mehta 
Tirth Mehta 10.38 43 14 

Shelia Finlease Pvt Ltd 22.38 1.00 

Naresh V Chanorani -
Nimit N Chanarani -

Other Miscellaneous Exoenes 
Chandanpani Enterorise 3.28 

4 Income 

Interest Income 
Chandanoani Enterorise 7.90 774 
Unison ForQinos Pvt Ltd 
Unison ForQinQs PYt Ltd 3.01 -

5 Net Loan Taken 

Unison CeramiCS Limited 145 

Unison FOrQinQS Private Limited 46040 5.458. 36 

Manoalam AllOYS Limited 111.00 

Tirth Mehta 521.07 195. 31 

Sheila Finlease Pvt Ltd - 143. 54 1. 10 

6 Net Loan Given 

Unison Ceramics Limited 1,45 

Meahivoti Imoex Private Limited 19.38 

Unison Foroinos Pvt ltd 4.719.95 

Shelia Finlease Pvt Ltd 6.45 

Tirth U Mehta 415.93 

7 Investment 
Chandanoarfi Enterprise - 446 



Sales to and purchases from related partle~ were ~ on ~ (~f~ ¥d (cndltlOf'lS and at prevailing market prices or where markel price is not available 011 cost plus margin 

All oUlslanding balanceOj are unsecured and are ~ 11\ ~,JnCI ~ ~ 
The Companv has a policy of creating proVlUOfI on t"" r-ec~ en ~ ~ d., ~t.ed ~ probability-weighted amount that is determined bV evaluating age of the !rade receivables 

eel Closing Balances of Related Parties 

PartIculars Relation 2024-25 2023 - 24 

Trade Receivables 
Manalam Allovs Limited KHP has Sognd\cant Influence 76.07 

Unison Famines Private Umited KMP has SIgnificant Influence 559.75 988 .84 

Advifnc.es from Customers 
Mana lam Allovs Limited KMP has Sogndicant Influence 555.42 25.42 

Msr Alloys KMP has Signd\cant Influence 103.79 

Unison Forainas Private Limited KMP has Signd\cant Influence 477.31 

Advances to suooliers 
Unison Foroinas Private Limited KMP has Signincant Influence -97.73 

Trade Payables 
Manolam Allovs Limited KMP has Significant Influence -
Msr Allovs KMP has Significant Influence 31.57 7.46 

Unison Foroines Pvt Ltd KMP has Significant Influence 571.98 

Salary Payables 
nrth Mehts KMP -9.79 -3.43 

Mahesh Chanarani KMP 1.04 1.60 

Uttamchand Mehta KMP 

CA Roshan Bothara KMP 0.10 1.01 

RoShl Mehta Relative of KMP -6.69 -4.67 

Naresh V Chanarani KMP 0.92 0.92 

Nrmll N Chanorani Relative of KMP 0.65 

Loan- Liability 
Unison Ceramics Limited KMP has Significant Innuence 9.84 9 .17 

Unison Foroinas Private Limited KMP has Significant Innuence 1.709.67 1.249.26 

HeohlVoti Imoex. Private Limited KMP has Significant Innuence 

Utt.mmand Mehta KMP -
nnh Mehta KMP 29.43 366.41 

Mahesh Chanaranl KMP 5_78 5.39 

Sheila Finlease Pvt Ltd KMP has Significant Influence 153.90 10.36 

Nlmit N Chaneran i Relative of KMP 

Tlrth U Mehta KMP 

LaiJn~A55et 

Untson Forainos Private Limited KMP has Significant Influence 

Shclia Finlease Pvt Ltd KMP has Significant Influence 

Manc lam AlloYS Limited KMP has Significant Influence 0. 31 

Investments 
Ch1!ind.anoani Ent!!rorlse Associate 197.52 197. 54 



Unison Metals Ltd 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 29 : Segment information 

Year Ended 
No. Particulars 

31st Mar 2025 31st Mar 2024 

1 Segment Revenue (Revenue from Operaion) 
Stainless Steel 26,663.24 19,206.10 
Ceramic 938.16 1,036.83 
Sodium Silicate 6,038.24 7,332.65 

Sub Total 33,639.64 27,575.58 
Less: 

Inter Segment - -
Total Revenue 33,639.64 27,575.58 

2 Segment Results 
Stainless Steel 1,010.63 1,471.11 
Ceramic 64.97 169.60 
Sodium Silicate 916.67 400.66 

Sub Total 1,992.27 2,041.37 
Less: 

Unallocable Finance Cost 648.61 780.32 
Unallocated Employee Benefit Exps 551.02 403.07 
Unallocated Depreciation 56.26 88.78 
Unallocated Other Expenses 302.17 358.40 

Add: 
Unallocated Income 110.13 98.68 

Total Profit Before Tax 544.35 509.48 

3 Segment Assets 
Stainless Steel 11,677.20 8,635.82 
Ceramic 3,020.30 3,559.80 
Sodium Silicate 2,016.30 4,174.08 
Unallocable Assets 2763.73 2,279.50 

Total Assets 19,477.54 18,649.20 

4 Segment Liablities 
Stainless Steel 6,589.92 6,877,95 
Ceramic 47.81 105.40 
Sodium Silicate 298.46 878.19 

I Unallocable Liablities 8 711.67 7470,70 
Total Liablities 15, 647.86 15,332.24 

Information about major customers: 
The group's external revenue to a single customer exceeds 10% of its total external revenue. The 
details are as follows; 

Ufo or revenue 
generated in 

Segment in which revenue is generated from respect of total 
major customer revenue of group Related Segment 
Revenue genereated from such customer: Rs, 5705.24 
Lakhs 18.10% Steel and Chemical 



Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 30: Financial instruments by category 

Financial assets by category 
CRs. In lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Particulars Amortised Amortised 
FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL FVTOCI 

cost cost 

Investments in 
- Associate 216.22 - - 218.22 - -
- Subsidiary 
- Equity shares - Unquoted 0.06 - - 0.07 - -

Trade receivables - 8,093.17 - - 8,176.14 
Loans - - 264.80 - - 240.72 
Cash & cash equivalents (including other bank - - 211.25 - - 256.62 
balances) 

Other financial assets 
- Security,Tender deposits & Earnest Money 
Deposit - - 44.41 - - 51.02 
- Deposits - Maturity more than 12 months * - - 293.77 262.08 
- Interest Accrued - - 244.87 - 2.25 

- - - - - -
- Amount receivable from Statutory Authorities 
- Others - - 6.86 - - 6.25 

Total Financial assets 216.28 - 9,159.14 218.29 - 8,995.08 

Financial liabilities by category 
IRs. In lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Particulars Amortised Amortised 
FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL FVTOCI 

cost cost 

Borrowings - - 6,326.66 - - 5,966.68 
Trade payables - - 7,012.46 - - 6,315.51 
Other financial liabilities -

- Current maturities of long-term borrowings - - - - - -
- Payables on purchase of fixed assets - - 257.44 - - 0.95 
- Unpaid Expenses - - 1,258.28 - - 488.34 
- Others - - 19.47 - - 33.52 

Total Financial liabilities - - 14,874.31 - - 12,805.01 



~- ~ ---

Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 31 : Fair value Measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset 

in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
a) Levell -- This includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded on the Stock 
Exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. 

b) Level 2 -- The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter derivatives) is determined 
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. 

c) Level 3 -- If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring baSiS, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred 
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
External valuers are involved, wherever required, for valuation of significant assets, such as properties, unquoted financial assets and significant 

liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon by the Group after discussion with and approval by the Group's management. Selection 

criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The Group, after discussions with 

its external valuers, determines which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case. 

At each reporting date, the Group analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed 

as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analYSiS, the Group verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the 

information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. The Group also compares the change in the fair value of each 

asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and 

risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value measurement. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 

1 Carrying value and fair value 
Given below is the comparison by class of the carrying value and fair value of the Group's financial Instruments. 

Carrying value Fair value 
Particulars As at March As at March As at March As at March 

31 2025 31 2024 _31 2025 31 2024 

Financial Assets (1) 

Trade receivables 8,093.17 8,176.14 8,093.17 8,176.14 
Loans 264.80 240.72 264.80 240.72 
Cash & cash equivalents (including other bank 
balances) 211.25 256.62 211.25 256.62 
Security & Tender deposits 44.41 51.02 44.41 51.02 
Deposits - Maturity more than 12 months 293.77 262.08 293.77 262.08 
Interest Accrued 244.87 2.25 244.87 2.25 

Amount receivable from Statutory Authorities - - - -
Others Financial Assets 6.86 6.25 6.86 6.25 

Total Financial Assets 9 159.14 8995.08 9159.14 8995.08 

Financial Liabilities (2) 

Borrowings 6,326.66 5,966.68 6,326.66 5,966.68 
Trade payables 7,012.46 6,315.51 7,012.46 6,315.51 
Current maturities of long-term borrowing~ - - - -
Payables on purchase of fixed assets 257.44 0.95 257.44 0.95 
Unpaid Expenses 1,258.28 488.34 1,258.28 488.34 
Other 19.47 33 .52 19.47 33.52 

Total Financial Liabilities 14874.31 12805.01 14874.31 12805.01 

(1) The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans - current, other financial assets, trade payables, working 
capital loan and other financial liabilities (excluding current maturities of long-term borrowings) approximate their carrying amounts largely due 
to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 



1 Quantitative disclosures fair value measuremont hierarchy for IIssetl; 

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hlelOJrchy 1(11 .I.'i.·.d·. oJ.'. 'It Milich 3 I, 2025 (Valuation date - March 31, 2025) 
(Rs.Inlakhs) 

Fair value. measurement using 
Quoted 

prices In Significant observable Significant unobservable 
Particulars active inputs inputs Total 

markets (Level 2) (Level 3) 
(Levell) 

Assets measured at fair value 
FVTPL investments 

Equ ity shares-Unquoted 0.06 0.06 
Investment in Associate 216.22 216.22 

FVTOCI investments 
Equity shares-Unquoted - -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024 (Valuation date - March 31, 2024) 

Fair value measurement using 
Quoted 

prices in Significant observable Significant unobservable 
Particulars active inputs inputs Total 

markets (Level 2) (Level 3) 
(Levell) 

Assets measured at fair value 
FVTPL investments 

Equity shares-Unquoted - - 0.07 0.07 
Investment in Associate 218.22 218.22 

FVTOCI investments 
Equity shares-Unquoted - - - -

There were no transfers between any levels during the year. 

Movements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value 

The following tables show a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair 
value. Transfers from Level 3 to Level 2 occur when the market for some securities became more liquid, which eliminates the need for the 
previously required significant unobservable valuation inputs. Since the transfer, these instruments have been valued using valuation models 
incorporating observable market inputs . Transfers into Level 3 reflect changes in market conditions as a resul t of which instruments become 
less liquid. Therefore, the Group requires significant unobservable inputs to calculate their fair value . 

The following tables show the reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value : 

(Rs. in lacs) 

Particulars 
',Equlty Instrument: 

As at March 31 2025 A.s at March 31 2024 
Opening Balance 228.30 223.82 
Purchases 0 .00 0.00 
Sales 0.00 0.00 
Issuances 0.00 0.00 
Settlements 0 .00 0.00 
Transfer into Level 3 0.00 0.00 
Transfer from Level 3 0.00 0.00 
Income / (loss) receognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 3.26 4.47 
Income / i loss) receoonlsed In other comorehenSive income 0.00 0.00 
Closing Balance 231.56 228.30 

Unrealised gains and losses related to balances held at the end of the 
year 0.00 0.00 



Unison Metals Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 32 : Financial risk management 

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The loans 
and borrowings are primarily taken to finance and support the Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets include 
investments, loans, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets. 

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the management of 
these risks. The Group's senior management ensures that financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and 
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk 
objectives. The risk management system is relevant to business reality, pragmatic and simple and involves the following: 
Risk identification and definition: Focuses on identifying relevant risks, creating / updating clear definitions to 
ensureundisputed understanding along with details of the underlying root causes / contributing factors. 

Risk classification: Focuses on understanding the various impacts of risks and the level of influence on its root causes. This 
involves identifying various processes generating the root causes and clear understanding of risk interrelationships. 
Risk assessment and prioritisation: Focuses on determining risk priority and risk ownership for critical risks. This involves 
assessment of the various impacts taking into consideration risk appetite and existing mitigation controls. 

Risk mitigation: Focuses on addressing critical risks to restrict their impact(s) to an acceptable level (within the defined risk 
appetite). This involves a clear definition of actions, responsibilities and milestones. 
Risk reporting and monitoring: Focuses on providing to the Board periodic information on risk profile evolution and mitigation 
plans. 

1. Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk or 
Net assset value ("NAV") risk in case of investment in mutual funds. Financial instruments affected by market risk include 
investments, trade receivables, trade payables, loans and borrowings and deposits. 
The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. 
The sensitivity of the relevant profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based 
on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long­
term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

Interest rate sensitivity 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and borrowings. With 
all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as 
follows: 

(Rs In lakhs) 
Particulars Increase/(decrease)in I ncrease/(decrease) in 
March 31, 2025 
Rupee borrowings +50 (19.22) 

-50 19.22 

March 31, 2024 

Rupee borrowings +50 (10.63) 
-50 10.63 

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market 
environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years. 

Foreign currency risk 

The Group has international operations and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. 
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and liabilities denominated in a 
currency that is not its functional currency (Rs). The risk also includes highly probable foreign currency cash flows 

As an estimation of the approximate impact of the foreign exchange rate risk, with respect to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, the Group has calculated the impact as follows: 

(Rs. In lakhs) 
Foreign CurrencY Amount ReDortinQ CUrrenCY Amount 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 
2025 2024 2025 2024 

Net Accounts Receivable 
USD 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 

Net Accounts Pallable 
A ~H~~ USD - - -

B' .:::; ('> :5 AHMEDABAD 0 
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Foreign currency sensitivity 

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change USD exchange rates, with all other variables 
held constant. The impact on the Group's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. 
The Group's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. 

Particulars 
Change in Effect on profit before tax 
USD rate 

March 31, 2025 5% 0.07 
-5% (0.07) 

March 31, 2024 5% 0 .07 
-5% (0 .07) 

" 2 Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to 
a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its 
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and foreign exchange transactions. 

Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group's internal policies, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an credit rating scorecard and credit limits are defined in 
accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major 
customers are generally covered by letters of credit. As at March 31, 2024, there were 128 customers with balances greater than 
Rs.100 lakhs accounting for more than 86% of the total amounts receivables. As at March 31, 2023 there were 11 customers with 
balances greater than Rs.100 lakhs accounting for more than 84% of the total amounts receivables. 

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several 
jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets. 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14 days to 180 days credit term. Credit limits are established for 
all customers based on internal rating criteria . The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely 
distributed both economically and geographically. 

3 Liquiditv Risk 

The principal sources of liquidity of the Group are cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and the cash flow that is generated from 
operations. It believes that current cash and cash equivalents, tied up borrowing lines and cash flow that is generated from 
operations is sufficient to meet requirements . Accordingly, liquidity risk is perceived to be low 

The following table shows the maturity analysis of financial liabilities of the Group based on contractually agreed undiscounted 
cash flows as at the Consolidated Balance Sheet date 

Particulars 

As at year ended 
March 31, 2025 

Borrowings (including 
current maturities of long­
term borrowings) 
Trade & other payables 
Other financial liabilities 

March 31, 2024 
Borrowings (including 
current maturities of long­
term borrowings) 
Trade & other payables 
Other financial liabilities 

On demand 

3,090.68 

2,774 .34 

Less than 1 
Year 

594.21 

7,012.46 
1,535.19 

706.02 

6,315.51 
522.82 

More than 1 
Year 

2,641.76 

2,486.32 

( Rs. In lakhs) 

Total 

6,326.66 

7,012.46 
1,535.19 

5,966.68 

6,315.51 
522.82 
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Note 33 : Capital Management 

The primary objective of capital management is to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to 
support its business and maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the 
Group. It determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic 
investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and operating cash flows generated. It is not 
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements . 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and 
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital 
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes, within net debt, 
interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and short-term deposits . 

Particulars As at March 31 2025 As at March 31 2024 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 12 & 14) 6,326.66 5,966.68 

Less: cash and cash equivalent (Note 8) 30.90 24.67 

Net debt 6295.76 5942.01 

Equity share capital (Note 10) 1,602.10 1,602.10 
Other equity (Note 11) 2,139.76 1696.86 
Total capital 3741.86 3298.96 
Capital and net debt 10037.62 9240.97 
Gearing ratio (%) 62.72% 64.30% 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that 
it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure 
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and 
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the 
current period. 
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 
2025 and March 31, 2024 
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Note 33 : Capital Management 

The primary objective of capital management is to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to 
support its business and maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the 
Group. It determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic 
investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and operating cash flows generated. It is not 
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and 
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital 
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes, within net debt, 
interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and short-term deposits. 

Particulars As at March 31 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 12 & 14) 6,326.66 5,966.68 

Less: cash and cash equivalent (Note 8) 30.90 24.67 

Net debt 6295.76 5,942.01 

Equity share capital (Note 10) 1,602.10 1,602.10 
Other equity (Note 11) 2139.76 1,696.86 
Total capital 3741.86 3298.96 
Capital and net debt 10037.62 9240.97 
Gearing ratio (%) 62.72% 64.30% 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that 
it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure 
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and 
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the 

current period. 
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 
2025 and March 31, 2024 
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Note 34 : Contingent Liabilities (Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars 
As ,at; As at 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 
a, Claim against the company not acknowledge - -
as debts 
b, Disputed demand under : 

Income tax - -
, , 

The regulatory claims are under litigation at various forums. The Group expects the outcome of the above matters to be In ItS 
favour and therefore, not recognised provision in relation to these claims, The above excludes interest / penalty unless demanded 
by the authorities, 

Note 35 : Commitments 8< Obligations 

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period, but not recognised as liabilities, is as follows: 

Particulars 

a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for; (net of capital advances) 

Note 36 : Earnings per Share (EPS) 

Particulars 

Basic 8< Diluted EPS 
Computation of Profit (Numerator) 

(i) Profit/(Ioss) from continuing operations 
( ii) Profit from discontinued operations 
(Iii) Profit/(Ioss) from continuing & discontinued operations 

Weighted Average Number of Shares (Denominator) 
Weighted average number of Equity shares of Rs.10 each used for calculation of 
basic and diluted earnings per share 

Basic 8< Diluted EPS (in Rupees) 
(i) Continuing operations 
(ii) Discontinued operations 
(iii) Continuing and Discontinued operations 

Face value per share (in Rs.) 

Note 37 : Other Notes 
Payment to Auditors 

Details of payment to Auditors are as follows : 

Particulars 

Audit fees and tax audit fees 
Certification and other services 
Total 

(Rs. In lakhs \ 
As at AS at 

March 31 2025 March 31 20~4 

-

For the Year 
ended March 31, 

2025 

445,51 
. 

445,51 

Nos. 

1,60,21,000 

2.78 

2,78 

10 

For the Year 
ended March 31, 

2025 
5.50 
0.88 
6.38 

(Rs In lakhs) 
For the Year 
ended March 

31 2024 

356.47 
-

356.47 

Nos. 

1,60,21,000 

2.22 

2,22 

10 

(Rs, In lakhs) 

For the Year 
ended March 

31 2024 
3,73 
0,88 
4.61 

The Management is of the opinion that as on Balance Sheet Date, there are no indication of material impairment loss on Property, Plant and 
ii Equipment, hence, the need to provide for imparlment loss does not arise. 
iii The figures of Previous Years have been regrouped wherever considered necessary 
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Current ratio 1.20 1.16 3.05% 
Net debt equity ratio 1.10 1.78 -37.95% 

Debt service coverage ratio 1.02 0.91 11.96% Notel 
Return on Equity (%) 12.65% 11.43% 10.73% Note 2 

Inventory turnover ratio 5.56 6.49 -14.26% Note 3 
Debtors turnover ratio (in days) 93 101 -7.57% Note 4 
Trade payables turnover ratio (in days) 83 89 -6.99% Note 5 
Net capital turnover ratio (in days) 27 23 17.70% Note 6 
Net profit ratio (%) 1.41% 1.29% 9.32% Note 1 
Return on Capital Employed (%) 12.94% 14.31% -9.60% 
Return on investment (%) -0.77% -0.54% 42.53% 

Note 1: As the company is highly leveraged, the debt service ratio is favourable i.e. below 1. 

Note 2: During the financial year under consideration there was high volatility in raw material prices in the industry which was 

Note3: Inventory turnover ratio has been increased due to inverse proportionality between cost of material consumed and 

Note 4: Account receivable turnover indicates that company is efficient with its collection and practices. 

Note 5: Account payable turnover indicates that company managing its debts and cash flow effectively. 

Note 6: Company's working capital management is more efficient to meet the financial needs. 

Basis for ratios: 

. I . 

(Total current assets/Current liabilities) 

(Total debt/ equity) 
[Total debt: Non-current borrowings + Current Borrowings - Deposits/Margin Money against Long Term 

Borrowings 

[Equity: Equity share capital + Other equity] 

(EBIT/(Net finance charges + Scheduled principal repayments of non current borrowings and lease 

obligations (excluding prepayments) during the period)) 

[EBIT: Profit before taxes +/(-) Exceptional items + Net finance charges] 

[Net finance charges: Finance costs] 

Profit after tax (PAT)/ Average Equity) 

[Equity: Equity share capital + Other equity] 

(Cost of Goods sold/Average Inventory) 

(Average trade receivables/Turnover in days) 

[Turnover: Revenue from operations] 

-
-

-
-



(Average Trade Payables/Expenses in days) 

[Expenses: Total Expenses - Finance Cost - Depreciation and Amortisation Expense - Employee Benefit 

Expenses in respect of Retirement Benefits - Other expenses with respect to Royalty, Rates & Taxes, Prior 

Period Exps, Bad-Debts, Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances, Provision for Impairment and Foreign 

Exchange Gain/Loss, Sitting Fees of Directors and Interest on Statutory Dues] 

working capital/Turnover in. days 

[Working capital: Current assets - Current liabilities) 

[Turnover: Revenue from operations) 

(Net profit after tax/Turnover) 

- [Turnover: Revenue from operations] 

(EBIT/Average capital employed) 

- ---- --- - .. 

[Capital Employed: Equity share capital + Other equity + Non current borrowings + Current borrowings) 

[EBIT: Profit before taxes +/(-) Exceptional items + Net finance charges 

((Net gain/(Ioss) on sale+fair value changes of mutual funds)/Average investment funds in current 

investments) 


		2025-09-05T17:30:24+0530
	MITALIBEN RITESH PATEL




